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Focusing on value
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Total Completions 2011: 4,005 (2010: 3,889)
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– In addition, we build affordable housing
across the UK, which represented 20%
of our 2011 completions.

Eastern

South
West and
Wales

South
East and
London

Proportion of continuing
Group revenue

Overview

1.6%

– We build high quality homes that appeal
to both foreign and Spanish buyers.
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For more information
see page 22
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Chief Executive’s Review

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

Sale of North American business

The UK housing market cycle

As I reported in my Chief Executive’s Review last year, we received
interest in our North American operations towards the end of 2010.
Following a comprehensive evaluation of these approaches, we
completed the sale in July 2011. The total proceeds of £731.9 million
represented an attractive valuation for the business and provide us with
a strengthened balance sheet and increased ﬁnancial capacity to
invest in the UK.

In last year’s Annual Report, we set out our value cycle and the
associated strategy in some detail. The fundamental principle on
which this is based is that the UK housing market is cyclical, albeit
this is all too easy to forget when house prices are rising and there is an
opportunity to deliver higher proﬁts through increasing the number of
home completions each year.

As a result of the sale, we are reporting a proﬁt from discontinued
operations of £43.1 million in the 2011 results and Ryan provides
more detail on this ﬁgure in his Group Financial Review.

Monitoring the status of the UK housing market is a key requirement of
taking a more active approach to managing the cycle. While we do not
expect to be able to forecast the timing of this entirely accurately, we
are monitoring a wide range of indicators in order to inform our
judgement. As a management team we have in excess of 115 years
of experience of the UK housebuilding industry and recognise that
there are signiﬁcant advantages to adjusting the operational tactics
of the business according to the stage of the market cycle.

Market data

7KHFKDUWVEHORZLOOXVWUDWHWKHF\FOLFDOQDWXUHRI
WKH8.KRXVLQJPDUNHWDQGVRPHRIWKHH[WHUQDO
LQGLFDWRUVWKDWZHPRQLWRULQDVVHVVLQJWKHVWDWXV
RIWKHPDUNHW
Mortgage/Earnings ratio

Gross secured lending

2011

We have also revised our management structures combining the
previous Executive Committee and UK Management Team into a single
Group Management Team, which is responsible for the day to day
running of the Company. As a team we are now able to focus more of
our attention on the UK business and have made good progress on a
number of operational initiatives, which are discussed in more detail in
the UK Housing section of this Annual Report.

2011

Enhanced focus on the UK
We have already taken a number of steps to deliver the beneﬁts of our
enhanced focus on the UK, the most apparent of which has been the
completion of the merger of our former Corporate ofﬁce with our former
UK Housing head ofﬁce into a single team based in our existing High
Wycombe ofﬁce. Regrettably this has resulted in a small number of
redundancies, although in most cases we were able to redeploy people
whose roles were at risk into other parts of the business.

1997

2011 has been another year of signiﬁcant progress for the Group,
building on the improved ﬁnancial performance that we delivered
in 2010 and the strengthening of our ﬁnancial position during
2009. Following the sale of our North American business and the
successful implementation of the strategy for recovery that I set
out in the 2009 Annual Report, we have now ﬁnalised our strategy
to optimise our UK business with the aim of becoming the UK’s
leading residential developer for creating value and delivering quality.

1997

:HKDYHQRZ¿QDOLVHG
RXUVWUDWHJ\WRRSWLPLVH
RXU8.EXVLQHVV

Source: Halifax
The mortgage/earnings ratio provides an
indication of the affordability of housing, taking
into account the underlying mortgage interest
rates. Affordability is signiﬁcantly improved as
a result of recent declines in both house prices
and Bank of England base rates.

Source: Bank of England
The correlation between the gross secured
lending chart above and the housing starts
chart below reﬂects the impact of restricted
credit availability on the housing market.

Average annual
house price change

Housing starts,
Great Britain

On the right hand side of this page you will see four of these indicators,
along with a brief commentary on their relevance to the housing
market cycle.

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

Ryan Mangold
Group Finance
Director

James Jordan
Group Legal Director
and Company
Secretary

Fergus McConnell
Divisional Chairman,
North

Peter Truscott
Divisional Chairman,
South

Peter Andrew
Director of Land
and Planning

Maria Pilfold
Group Human
Resources Director

Responsibilities
As head of the GMT,
my responsibilities
include key strategic
and operational
decisions, corporate
responsibility and
health and safety.

Responsibilities
Ryan’s role covers
all areas of Finance,
including tax and
treasury, as well
as Information
Technology. Ryan
also plays an active
part in our Investor
Relations programme.

Responsibilities
James is responsible
for our Company
Secretariat
department, as well
as overseeing all
legal matters from
plot conveyancing to
land buying.

Responsibilities
Fergus oversees the
10 regional
businesses within
our North Division.
He is also the project
sponsor for our new
IT system.

Responsibilities
Peter heads our
South Division,
which contains 14
regional businesses,
and also has
responsibility for our
business in Spain.

Responsibilities
Peter oversees our
Strategic Land team
and is leading our
response to the
evolving UK
planning system.

Responsibilities
Maria has
responsibility
for all areas of
Human Resources,
including recruitment,
beneﬁts, talent and
performance
management.
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Source: Average of CLG, Halifax,
Land Registry and Nationwide
House Price indices
There has been signiﬁcant variation in the
average annual house price change since
1997, with very strong growth from 2001 to
2003 and price declines in 2008 and 2009.

2011

1997

As you will see, this strategy represents an evolution of the strategy for
recovery that I set out in the 2009 Annual Report. We remain focused
on maximising the value achieved from each home completion rather
than looking to grow volumes ahead of underlying improvements in
market conditions. This is reﬂected in the ‘optimising value’ component
of our value cycle, which we see as an all-encompassing approach to
continuous improvement.

2011

Implementing our strategy
Over the course of 2011, we have reﬁned and ﬁnalised the strategy
to optimise our UK residential development business and have
communicated this extensively, both internally and externally. Our
business in Spain is also following this strategy, with some adaptations
to reﬂect differences in the market and regulatory environment.

1997

Group Management Team

$VGHWDLOHGRSSRVLWHZHKDYHUHYLVHGRXUPDQDJHPHQWVWUXFWXUHVIROORZLQJWKHVDOHRIWKH1RUWK$PHULFDQ
EXVLQHVV7KH*URXS0DQDJHPHQW7HDP *07 ZKLFKLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHGD\WRGD\UXQQLQJRIWKH
&RPSDQ\FRPSULVHV

Shareholder Information
p106-116

14 UK Housing

Source: Communities and Local Government
Total housing starts do not exhibit the same strong
growth as house prices in the period from 1997 to
2006, but fell sharply from 2007 to 2009.

Given the ongoing changes in the UK planning system, we have also
emphasised the importance of ‘managing the planning and community
engagement process’. In addition, we have highlighted the signiﬁcant
input required from skilled and committed people to deliver aspirational,
high-quality homes and communities for our customers.
The key points of our strategy, along with details of how it relates
to our value cycle and our key performance indicators, are set out
on pages 8 and 9.
Ryan Mangold provides more information regarding the linkage
between our strategy and our dividend policy in his Group ﬁnancial
review on page 26 of this Annual Report.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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UK Housing
Our UK Housing strategic priorities

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

Our UK Housing Key Performance Indicators

As set out in my Chief Executive’s Review, on page 7 of this Annual
Report, the UK housing market is cyclical and we have identiﬁed a set
of indicators that we monitor on a regular basis to establish the current
stage of the cycle and adapt our tactics accordingly.
After the relatively robust market conditions of 2010, market conditions
in 2011 also exceeded our expectations. We achieved small price rises
in the early part of 2011 on newly opened outlets, with broadly stable
conditions throughout the ﬁrst half of the year. In the second half of
2011, we saw a more normal autumn selling pattern and also a
stronger end to the year than had been the case in 2010.

Objective

Deﬁnition

Why is it key to our strategy?

Contribution per
legal completion

We strive to maximise the level
of contribution per home sold.

Revenue, net of incentives,
less build costs, land costs
and direct selling costs,
divided by the number of
homes completed (excluding
joint ventures).

We continue to prioritise both
short and long term margin
performance ahead of volume
growth. Increasing the
contribution per plot is a key
driver to achieving this priority.

Forward order book
as a percentage
of completions

In a ﬂat or falling pricing
environment we look to
maximise the level of our
order book.

The number of homes
in our year end order
book, expressed as a
percentage of the number
of homes completed during
the year (excluding joint
venture completions).

A strong order book
provides greater stability
in business planning and
enhances our ability to
increase the contribution
per legal completion.

2009

53.6

The total number of plots
that we either own or
control, with some form
of planning consent.

Having a portfolio of land in
place is key to planning the
required scale of our building
2011
operations for future home
2010
completions and enables us to
be selective in land purchases. 2009

65,264 plots

92.1%

Owned and controlled
plots with planning

We aim to maintain sufﬁcient
land in our portfolio to enable
us to remain selective in
future purchases.

Compared to our own experiences of mix-adjusted house prices, the
national house price indices tend to exaggerate movements. However,
as publicly available data sources, they are a widely quoted point of
reference. As was the case in 2010, the national indices do not show
a consistent trend for 2011. The Nationwide House Price Index shows
an annual increase of 1.0% to an average UK house price of
£163,822. Meanwhile, the Halifax House Price Index reports
a fall of 1.3% to £160,063.

This resulted in a sharp increase in operating margin to 9.7% for
the full year (2010: 6.4%(a)), with our target of reaching double digit
operating margins by 2012 achieved during the second half of 2011.

Key market drivers

Market risk factors

Net operating assets** in the UK were £1,721.5 million
(2010: £1,628.6 million), with a return on net operating assets**
for the year of 10.4% (2010: 6.7%(a)).

– &RQWLQXLQJXQGHUVXSSO\RIQHZKRPHVDJDLQVWJRYHUQPHQW
SURMHFWLRQVRIKRXVHKROGIRUPDWLRQ
– 6WURQJFXOWXUDOSUHIHUHQFHWRZDUGVKRPHRZQHUVKLSUDWKHU
WKDQUHQWDO

– &RQWLQXLQJUHVWULFWLRQVRQFUHGLWDYDLODELOLW\
– &KDQJLQJHFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWOHDGLQJWRLQFUHDVLQJ
LQWHUHVWUDWHVRUXQHPSOR\PHQW
– )LUVWWLPHEX\HUVLQFUHDVLQJO\SULFHGRXWRIWKHPDUNHW

* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs and
exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.

*** Tangible net assets per share is deﬁned as net assets, excluding goodwill and
intangible assets, divided by the number of shares in issue at the period end.

** Operating proﬁt divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating
assets, which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances.

(a)

2010 comparative excludes a one-off pension curtailment credit of £12.0 million
in the UK.
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28.6

2010

22.9

2009

12.6

53.1%
53.1

2011

47.2

2010

65,264
63,556
66,089

Customer satisfaction

We strive to maintain and
improve our customer
satisfaction scores.

Percentage of customers
satisﬁed or very satisﬁed with
their new home as measured
by the National New Homes
survey undertaken by the
NHBC on behalf of the
HBF eight weeks after
legal completions.

Delivering high levels of
customer satisfaction
enhances the reputation of
our business and reduces
the costs associated with
rectifying poor quality work.

Health and safety

We want our employees
and sub-contractors to go
home safe and uninjured,
day after day.

Reportable injury frequency
rate per 100,000 employees
and contractors (Annual Injury
Incidence Rate).

As well as having a moral duty
to maintain safety on site,
accidents and injuries can have 2011
a detrimental impact on the
2010
business through additional
2009
costs, delays and/or
reputational damage.

378

Waste generated
per home

We aim to reduce the level
of waste generated per
home each year.

Total tonnage of construction
waste per 1,000 square
feet built.

As well as having a beneﬁcial
impact on the environment,
reducing waste is a key part
of driving down build cost and
may also assist in winning
future planning consents.

3.44

Financial review
We have made further signiﬁcant progress in 2011 and this is reﬂected
in our strong ﬁnancial performance. Revenue has increased slightly to
£1,779.4 million (2010: £1,736.6 million), primarily driven by an increase
in home completions. It is therefore very pleasing to report growth of
56% in operating proﬁt* to £173.2 million (2010: £111.0 million(a)) as we
continue to prioritise margin performance ahead of volume growth.

£28.6k
2011

92.1

2011

87.1

2010

87.1

2009

378
557
520

2011

3.44

2010

4.18

2009

4.37

Our UK Housing Risks
7KH*URXS¶VSULQFLSDOULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVDUHGHWDLOHGRQSDJHVDQGRIWKLVUHSRUW7KHULVNVWKDW
KDYHVHHQWKHJUHDWHVWFKDQJHLQWKH8.EXVLQHVVGXULQJDUH
– *RYHUQPHQWSODQQLQJSROLF\ZLWKWKH/RFDOLVP$FWUHFHLYLQJ5R\DO$VVHQWDQGWKHRQJRLQJGHEDWHDURXQGWKHSURSRVHG1DWLRQDO
3ODQQLQJ3ROLF\)UDPHZRUN
– ,PSDFWRIPDUNHWHQYLURQPHQWRQGHPDQGWKHRQJRLQJXQFHUWDLQW\LQWKHZLGHUHFRQRP\FRQWLQXHVWRKDYHDGHWULPHQWDOLPSDFW
RQFRQVXPHUFRQ¿GHQFH
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Key to other items in this report
Throughout this report you will ﬁnd the following
icons for particular points of interest

Cross reference to information on-line
Cross reference to information in this report

Governance
Pages 5, 30-38
Approach & policies
Pages 5, 10, 23
Employees
Pages 5, 10, 13, 21, 23, 53
Health & safety
Pages 13, 15, 18, 22, 23
Environment
Pages 15, 19, 23
Community
Pages 8-9, 12, 17-18, 23
KPIs
Pages 8-9, 15, 22, 24

Shareholder Information
p106-116

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee kept base interest
rates at an historic low of 0.5% for another full year, but mortgage
lenders continue to charge a signiﬁcant premium to this especially for
higher loan to value mortgages. However, it is the relative scarcity of
mortgages available to buyers with a 5% or 10% deposit that remains
the biggest hurdle for ﬁrst time buyers to overcome. Indeed, the
Council of Mortgage Lenders reports a fall of 4% in the number of
mortgages advanced to ﬁrst time buyers and a 2% fall in the value of
such mortgages compared to 2010.

Increasing the current level of housebuilding in the UK remains a focus
of the government and its policies fall into two categories. Firstly, the
proposed reforms of the planning system continue to progress, with
the Localism Act receiving Royal Assent in November 2011 and the
draft National Planning Policy Framework being published in July 2011.
Secondly, the government is looking to address the difﬁculties that
many people are facing in obtaining a mortgage. The Stamp Duty Land
Tax exemption for ﬁrst time buyers buying a home valued at less than
£250,000 remained in force throughout 2011. The FirstBuy scheme,
which follows on from the previous HomeBuy Direct scheme, was
launched in March 2011 with the intention of helping around 10,000
families to get onto the housing ladder for the ﬁrst time. The
government also announced the NewBuy mortgage guarantee
scheme in November 2011, which is intended to provide greater
access to 95% mortgages at more competitive interest rates through
the use of housebuilder funding and a government-backed guarantee.

Financial Statements
p55-105

Mortgage availability remains the key constraint on the UK housing
market, although we have seen further incremental improvement over
the course of 2011. The total value of mortgage approvals for home
purchases increased slightly to £82,434 million (2010: £80,058 million)
according to Bank of England data. The number of mortgage
approvals for home purchases has also increased during 2011, with
more than 50,000 approvals per month from August through to
December compared to an average of 47,551 approvals per month for
the previous six month period.

Housebuilding starts for the UK industry as a whole, including housing
associations, were broadly ﬂat year on year at around 115,000,
maintaining the improvement on the less than 90,000 starts in 2009
according to the National House-Building Council. These volumes
remain well below the level of household formations, with the most
recent government forecasts showing an average of 232,000 new
households per annum from 2008 to 2033 for England alone.

– %HFRPHWKHLQGXVWU\OHDGHULQPDQDJLQJWKHSODQQLQJ
SURFHVVDFURVVRXULQGXVWU\
– 'HOLYHUDQH[FHOOHQW&XVWRPHU-RXUQH\FRQVLVWHQWO\
IRUDOORIRXUFXVWRPHUV
– 'HOLYHURQRXUDVSLUDWLRQWRDGGYDOXHWRHYHU\VLWH
DIWHUDFTXLVLWLRQ

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

UK housing market

– 5HWDLQRXUFRQVLVWHQWGLVFLSOLQHGDSSURDFKWRDFTXLULQJVKRUW
WHUPODQGPDLQWDLQLQJDORQJHUODQGSRUWIROLRDWWKLVVWDJH
LQWKHPDUNHWF\FOH
– )RFXVRQDGGLQJQHZVLWHVWRRXUVWUDWHJLFODQGSRUWIROLRDQG
GHOLYHULQJSODQQLQJDQGYDOXHIURPH[LVWLQJVLWHV

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

,QZHVDZVLJQL¿FDQWSURJUHVVLQRXURSHUDWLRQDO
SHUIRUPDQFHDQG,DPSOHDVHGWKDWZHUHDFKHGRXUGRXEOH
GLJLWRSHUDWLQJPDUJLQ WDUJHWDKHDGRIVFKHGXOH
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Corporate responsibility
A full Corporate Responsibility Report is
published separately on-line and is available
from plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk.
Key information about our approach to sustainable
development is available in the following areas
of this report.

For more information
see pages 14-21

We build high quality homes in
SRSXODUORFDWLRQV
– We have operations on the Costa Blanca,
Costa del Sol and the island of Mallorca.

Average
Selling
Price
South

6

'HWDLOVRIKRZZHDUHSXWWLQJRXU
strategy into effect to create value and
deliver quality in our UK residential
GHYHORSPHQWEXVLQHVV

– Adding new sites to our land portfolio.

£179k

South East and
London 40.0%

£191k

Spain Housing

So
Wa uth
les We
26 st an
.8% d

,QFOXGLQJDQH[SODQDWLRQRIWKH
LQWHUDFWLRQEHWZHHQRXUYLVLRQ
value cycle, strategy and key
performance indicators.

– Mortgage availability remains constrained,
although we saw further incremental
improvement over the course of 2011.

– We aim to deliver aspirational homes for
our customers that are efﬁcient to build.

Average selling price
£158k

The Wickets, Rotherham, Yorkshire
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Shareholder Facilities
Principal Operating Addresses

£159k
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106
114
116

£154k
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1RWLFHRI$QQXDO*HQHUDO0HHWLQJLQIRUPDWLRQ
UHJDUGLQJ\RXUVKDUHVDQGKRZWRFRQWDFWXV

– Delivering planning and adding value
to our existing land assets.

£156k

Shareholder Information
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Shareholder Information

– Ongoing focus on both short and long
term margin performance ahead of
volume growth.

– Market sales prices remain broadly ﬂat.

98.4%

Financial Statements
p55-105

105

Priorities

– Despite the ongoing uncertainty in the wider
economy, the numbers of both visitors and
reservations were above those in 2010.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

104

Market conditions

– We build a wide range of homes in the
UK, from one bedroom apartments to ﬁve
bedroom houses, with prices ranging from
below £100,000 to above £500,000.

£168k

2
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96
97
98

Parklands, Woburn Sands, Buckinghamshire

Overview

Proportion of continuing
Group revenue

plots

Average selling price

Total Completions 2011: 6,175 (2010: 6,073)
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60
61

Cooks Shipyard, Wivenhoe, Essex

Completions

33.
2%
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58
59

Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
Independent Auditor’s Report
Company Balance Sheet
Notes to the Company
Financial Statements
Particulars of Principal
Subsidiary Undertakings
Five Year Review

65,264

Eas
tern
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55
56
57

Short term landbank

£171k

£180k
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'HWDLOHGDQDO\VLVRIRXU¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH

305

Average selling price

Completions

Board of Directors & Group
Company Secretary
Corporate Governance Report
Remuneration Report
Statutory, regulatory and
other formal information

Financial Statements

Average sales outlets (sites)

10,180

Our North Division covers Scotland, the North East,
WKH1RUWK:HVWDQGWKH:HVW0LGODQGV

Our South Division incorporates our businesses in the
(DVW6RXWK(DVW6RXWK:HVWDQG6RXWK:DOHV

Financial Statements
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30
39
51

Completions

North
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UK Housing

We operate as a network of local businesses, supported
E\D+HDG2I¿FHLQ+LJK:\FRPEH

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

,QIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJWKH%RDUGDQGKRZWKH\UXQ
WKHEXVLQHVVIRUWKHEHQH¿WRIVKDUHKROGHUV

Our regional operations

and
shire 38.5%
York West
h
Nort
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Taylor Wimpey is one of the largest residential developers in
WKH8.ZLWKQDWLRQDOFRYHUDJHIURPUHJLRQDORI¿FHV
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$QRYHUYLHZRIRXURSHUDWLRQVLQWKH
UK and Spain, including regional
performance data, commentary on UK
PDUNHWFRQGLWLRQVDQGRI¿FHORFDWLRQV
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02 Business overview

2SHUDWLRQDODQG¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHLQDQG
SURVSHFWVIRU
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Key performance indicator
Corporate responsibility
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Taylor Wimpey plc is a UK-focused residential developer
which also has operations in Spain. Our vision is to become
the UK’s leading residential developer for creating value
and delivering quality.
Our 2011 ﬁnancial performance
Continuing operations
Operating
proﬁt*(a) (£m)

£1,808.0m £159.5m

Adjusted earnings/
(loss) per share (p)

£89.9m

£(11.3)m

2.1p

159.5

(27.9)

89.9

(138.9)

(11.3)

(1.5)

2.1

2010

2011

2010

2011

2010

2011

2010

2011

Financial Statements
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2011

Exceptional items
before tax (£m)

88.3

1,767.7 1,808.0

2010

Proﬁt/(loss) before tax
and exceptional
items(a) (£m)

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Revenue
(£m)

Total Group
Basic earnings
per share (p)

Tangible net assets
per share*** (p)

Return on net
operating assets** (%)

Year end
net debt (£m)

£99.0m

3.1p

57.3p

9.8%

£(116.9)m

(640.6)

259.3

99.0

(25.1)

8.1

3.1

46.9

56.9

57.3

1.6

5.3

9.8

(750.9)

(654.5)

(116.9)

2009

2010

2011

2009

2010

2011

2009

2010

2011

2009

2010

2011

2009

2010

2011
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Proﬁt/(loss) for the
year (£m)

* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs and exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.
** Operating proﬁt divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating assets, which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances.
*** Tangible net assets per share is deﬁned as net assets, excluding goodwill and intangible assets, divided by the number of shares in issue at the period end.
(a)
2010 comparative excludes a one-off pension curtailment credit of £12.0 million in the UK.

Operational highlights
 11,756 new plots approved for purchase (2010: 8,713 plots)
 Ongoing success in acquiring and obtaining planning for strategic land
 Strong growth in both private and affordable order book to £983m at
26 February 2012
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 Customer satisfaction increased to 92.1% (2010: 87.1%)
 32% reduction in reportable injury frequency rate
 18% reduction in waste generated per 1,000ft2 built

1

Business overview

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Our regional operations
We operate as a network of local businesses, supported
E\D+HDG2I¿FHLQ+LJK:\FRPEH

North
Our North Division covers Scotland, the North East,
WKH1RUWK:HVWDQGWKH:HVW0LGODQGV

Financial Statements
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Completions
West Midlands
29.5%
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Taylor Wimpey is one of the largest residential developers in
WKH8.ZLWKQDWLRQDOFRYHUDJHIURPUHJLRQDORI¿FHV

Average selling price
£168k

£156k

£154k

£159k

Scotland
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a
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Eas nd
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South
Our South Division incorporates our businesses in the
(DVW6RXWK(DVW6RXWK:HVWDQG6RXWK:DOHV
Average selling price
£180k

£158k

£191k

£179k

Eastern

South
West and
Wales

South
East and
London

Average
Selling
Price
South

South East and
London 40.0%

Completions

Ea
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3
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Total Completions 2011: 4,005 (2010: 3,889)

Total Completions 2011: 6,175 (2010: 6,073)
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Completions

Average sales outlets (sites)

10,180

305

Average selling price

Short term landbank

£171k

65,264

Cooks Shipyard, Wivenhoe, Essex

Parklands, Woburn Sands, Buckinghamshire

The Wickets, Rotherham, Yorkshire

Overview

Market conditions

Priorities

– We build a wide range of homes in the
UK, from one bedroom apartments to ﬁve
bedroom houses, with prices ranging from
below £100,000 to above £500,000.

– Despite the ongoing uncertainty in the wider
economy, the numbers of both visitors and
reservations were above those in 2010.

– Ongoing focus on both short and long
term margin performance ahead of
volume growth.

– Market sales prices remain broadly ﬂat.

– Delivering planning and adding value
to our existing land assets.

Proportion of continuing
Group revenue

98.4%
plots

– We aim to deliver aspirational homes for
our customers that are efﬁcient to build.

Shareholder Information
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– Mortgage availability remains constrained,
although we saw further incremental
improvement over the course of 2011.

Financial Statements
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– In addition, we build affordable housing
across the UK, which represented 20%
of our 2011 completions.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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UK Housing

– Adding new sites to our land portfolio.
For more information
see pages 14-21

Spain Housing
We build high quality homes in
popular locations.

Proportion of continuing
Group revenue

Overview

1.6%

– We have operations on the Costa Blanca,
Costa del Sol and the island of Mallorca.
– We build high-quality homes that appeal
to both foreign and Spanish buyers.

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

For more information
see page 22
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Chairman’s statement
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2011 performance
Despite the ongoing challenges in the wider economy, Taylor Wimpey
has made strong progress across a number of areas and it is pleasing
to see this reﬂected in our ﬁnancial performance.
We have increased proﬁt from continuing operations before tax and
exceptional items to £89.9 million (2010 loss: £15.9 million). After
pre-tax exceptional charges for the year of £11.3 million (2010: £138.9
million), the majority of which related to reﬁnancing costs in both years,
proﬁt before tax from continuing operations for 2011 is £78.6 million
(2010 loss: £154.8 million).

Sale of our North American business
Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

We were in the process of evaluating proposals for the sale of our
North American business at the time of last year’s Annual Report and
announced an agreement to sell this business on 31 March 2011.
Following receipt of your approval as shareholders and the satisfaction
of a number of customary conditions, we completed the sale of the
business on 13 July 2011.

Financial Statements
p55-105

2011 has been a
transformational year
for Taylor Wimpey.
Kevin Beeston
Chairman

Shareholder Information
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In 2011 the Company has:
 achieved the double-digit UK operating margin target
in the second half of 2011, ahead of schedule;
 communicated a strategy to optimise the UK residential
development business both internally and externally;
 completed the sale of the North American business;
 successfully restructured the Board;
 SURSRVHGD¿QDOGLYLGHQGRISHQFHSHUVKDUHDQG
 continued to improve the strength of the balance sheet,
including selective investment in new land and buying back
£85.4 million of our 10.375% Senior Notes due 2015.

This represents a very signiﬁcant step towards our goal of becoming
a UK-focused homebuilder as Pete Redfern explains in his Chief
Executive’s Review on page 6. We now have a strengthened balance
sheet and increased ﬁnancial capacity to invest in the UK market
and we are well positioned to deliver further margin improvement
going forward.

Strategy and dividend
Following the sale of the North American business we have
communicated our future strategy to stakeholders both internally
and externally. Pete Redfern outlines this strategy in detail in his Chief
Executive’s Review on pages 6 to 13 and a key element is taking a
more active assessment of, and approach to managing, the market
cycle. In the medium term, when opportunities in the land market are
less attractive, we anticipate reducing the level of investment in our
land portfolio and, therefore, generating signiﬁcant cash ﬂow from
operations. At such points in the cycle, we intend to retain a proportion
of these funds in order to maintain balance sheet strength and return
the remainder to shareholders.
In the meantime, given the current outlook in the UK housing market,
and the strength of the Group’s asset base, we are proposing a ﬁnal
dividend of 0.38 pence per share (2010: nil). This represents the ﬁnal
portion of a total dividend representing 1% of Net Asset Yield. Subject
to shareholder approval at the AGM, the dividend will be paid on
22 May 2012 to shareholders on the register at the close of business
on 20 April 2012.
This dividend will be paid as a conventional cash dividend, but
shareholders are once again being offered the opportunity to
reinvest some or all of their dividend under a re-launched Dividend
Re-Investment Plan, details of which can be found on page 110 of
this Annual Report.

Corporate responsibility
As a major residential developer, we have social, ethical, environmental
and economic responsibilities that we take extremely seriously. We
continue to believe that corporate responsibility is an essential part of
good governance and makes sound business sense, as well as being
crucial for risk and opportunity management.
Ultimate responsibility for the delivery of our corporate responsibility
strategy continues to rest with CEO Pete Redfern, with a Sustainability
Steering Group coordinating sustainability activities at the operational
level in line with the strategy. This group comprises seven senior
personnel from relevant disciplines across our UK business and
is chaired by a representative of the Group Management Team.
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Corporate governance

People and shareholders

In line with the requirements of the UK
*RYHUQDQFH&RGHZHFDUULHGRXWRXU¿UVW
externally facilitated and comprehensive
independent assessment of the Board in 2011.

Our new strategy sets us some challenging targets and, in order to
ensure effective communication, Pete Redfern gave a series of 14
presentations across the country to outline our approach to and seek
feedback from employees in each of our 24 regional businesses and
our head ofﬁce. The Board looks forward to working with all of our
employees to deliver our strategic goals over the coming years.
I would also like to take this opportunity to reiterate the Board’s thanks
to our former employees in North America for their hard work, loyalty
and commitment over many years and, in particular, in relation to the
sale process. We wish them every success in the future.

Board changes
The sale of our North American business meant that the President,
Sheryl Palmer, stood down from the Board in July 2011 and I would
like to formally record the Board’s thanks for her signiﬁcant contribution
to the Group during our period of ownership of that business.

James Jordan was appointed as an Executive Director in July 2011
after nearly ten years of service for Taylor Wimpey plc and previously
George Wimpey Plc. James played a signiﬁcant role in the recent
reﬁnancings and the sale of the North American business and I am
delighted to welcome him to the Board as Group Legal Director and
Company Secretary.
I was also very pleased to welcome two new Non Executive Directors
to the Board during 2011. Kate Barker, who joined with effect from
21 April 2011, brings a wealth of economic and political experience as
well as a detailed knowledge of the housing industry. Mike Hussey, who
joined with effect from 1 July 2011, has an extensive knowledge of the
property industry and both the London and national market, along with
a proven strategic focus. Proﬁles of Kate and Mike are on page 29.

More information on our approach is contained
within my statement on page 30 and the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to
ZKLFKFRQ¿UPVWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\ZDVIXOO\
compliant with the Combined Code.
For more information
see pages 30-38

Shareholder information
Full details of the facilities available to
shareholders can be found on page 114 of
this Annual Report and Accounts and at
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations/
ShareholderInformation

Electronic communications
We make our Annual Report available
electronically to those shareholders who have
not requested a paper version. This has three
NH\EHQH¿WV

Shareholder Information
p106-116

As I highlighted in my statement last year, Katherine Innes Ker and
Andrew Dougal stood down at the AGM in April 2011, after more than
nine years and eight years respectively, and the Board would like to
record our thanks for their distinguished service as well.

We welcome Lord Davies’ review of women on
boards. As recommended by the review, I was
pleased to make a statement in the Half Year
5HVXOWVDQQRXQFHPHQWFRQ¿UPLQJRXUDSSURDFK
to diversity both generally and with regard
to gender.
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I enjoyed meeting with a number of shareholders on my appointment
in July 2010, at the General Meeting in connection with the sale of the
North American business and also at the Annual General Meeting last
April. The Board values its dialogue with shareholders and their
representative bodies, and remains vigilant and appropriately advised
to your views.

Strong corporate governance and risk
management are essential in challenging
market conditions.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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I said last year that I had been very impressed by my initial
experiences of our business and people, and my opinions have
only been strengthened by what I have seen over the last 12 months.
Against a backdrop of signiﬁcant economic uncertainty, our team has
delivered an excellent operational and ﬁnancial performance across
the business which is a testament to their professionalism, customer
focus, hard work and commitment.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Executive remuneration remains in strong focus and we have taken
what we believe to be a considered approach, including consulting with
our major shareholders ahead of the publication of this Annual Report,
in respect of the policies set out in the Remuneration Report on pages
39 to 50.

– DVLJQL¿FDQWUHGXFWLRQLQSULQWLQJDQGSRVWDJH
costs, without reducing the level of
information available;
– faster access to information; and
– reducing the amount of resources consumed,
such as paper, and lessening the impact
of printing and mailing activities on
the environment.
We also encourage shareholders to elect to receive
QRWL¿FDWLRQRIWKHDYDLODELOLW\RI&RPSDQ\
documentation by means of an e-mail.
Shareholders can sign up for this facility by
logging onto our Web site.
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations/
ShareholderInformation/
ElectronicCommunications.htm

Kevin Beeston
Chairman

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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Chief Executive’s Review
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:HKDYHQRZ¿QDOLVHG
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2011 has been another year of signiﬁcant progress for the Group,
building on the improved ﬁnancial performance that we delivered
in 2010 and the strengthening of our ﬁnancial position during
2009. Following the sale of our North American business and the
successful implementation of the strategy for recovery that I set
out in the 2009 Annual Report, we have now ﬁnalised our strategy
to optimise our UK business with the aim of becoming the UK’s
leading residential developer for creating value and delivering quality.

Sale of North American business

Financial Statements
p55-105

As I reported in my Chief Executive’s Review last year, we received
interest in our North American operations towards the end of 2010.
Following a comprehensive evaluation of these approaches, we
completed the sale in July 2011. The total proceeds of £731.9 million
represented an attractive valuation for the business and provide us with
a strengthened balance sheet and increased ﬁnancial capacity to
invest in the UK.

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

As a result of the sale, we are reporting a proﬁt from discontinued
operations of £43.1 million in the 2011 results and Ryan Mangold
provides more detail on this ﬁgure in his Group Financial Review.

Shareholder Information
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Group Management Team

$VGHWDLOHGRSSRVLWHZHKDYHUHYLVHGRXUPDQDJHPHQWVWUXFWXUHVIROORZLQJWKHVDOHRIWKH1RUWK$PHULFDQ
EXVLQHVV7KH*URXS0DQDJHPHQW7HDP *07 ZKLFKLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHGD\WRGD\UXQQLQJRIWKH
&RPSDQ\FRPSULVHV

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

Ryan Mangold
Group Finance
Director

James Jordan
Group Legal Director
and Company
Secretary

Fergus McConnell
Divisional Chairman,
North

Peter Truscott
Divisional Chairman,
South

Peter Andrew
Director of Land
and Planning

Maria Pilfold
Group Human
Resources Director

Responsibilities
As head of the GMT,
my responsibilities
include key strategic
and operational
decisions, corporate
responsibility and
health and safety.

Responsibilities
Ryan’s role covers
all areas of Finance,
including tax and
treasury, as well
as Information
Technology. Ryan
also plays an active
part in our Investor
Relations programme.

Responsibilities
James is responsible
for our Company
Secretariat
department, as well
as overseeing all
legal matters from
plot conveyancing to
land buying.

Responsibilities
Fergus oversees the
10 regional
businesses within
our North Division.
He is also the project
sponsor for our new
IT system.

Responsibilities
Peter heads our
South Division,
which contains 14
regional businesses,
and also has
responsibility for our
business in Spain.

Responsibilities
Peter oversees our
Strategic Land team
and is leading our
response to the
evolving UK
planning system.

Responsibilities
Maria has
responsibility
for all areas of
Human Resources,
including recruitment,
beneﬁts, talent and
performance
management.
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We have already taken a number of steps to deliver the beneﬁts of our
enhanced focus on the UK, the most apparent of which has been the
completion of the merger of our former Corporate ofﬁce with our former
UK Housing head ofﬁce into a single team based in our existing High
Wycombe ofﬁce. Regrettably this has resulted in a small number of
redundancies, although in most cases we were able to redeploy people
whose roles were at risk into other parts of the business.

Market data

7KHFKDUWVEHORZLOOXVWUDWHWKHF\FOLFDOQDWXUHRI
WKH8.KRXVLQJPDUNHWDQGVRPHRIWKHH[WHUQDO
LQGLFDWRUVWKDWZHPRQLWRULQDVVHVVLQJWKHVWDWXV
RIWKHPDUNHW
Mortgage/Earnings ratio

Gross secured lending

Directors’ Report: Governance
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We have also revised our management structures combining the
previous Executive Committee and UK Management Team into a single
Group Management Team, which is responsible for the day to day
running of the Company. As a team we are now able to focus more of
our attention on the UK business and have made good progress on a
number of operational initiatives, which are discussed in more detail in
the UK Housing section of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Enhanced focus on the UK

Source: Bank of England
The correlation between the gross secured
lending chart above and the housing starts
chart below reﬂects the impact of restricted
credit availability on the housing market.

Average annual
house price change

Housing starts,
Great Britain

2011

1997

Source: Halifax
The mortgage/earnings ratio provides an
indication of the affordability of housing, taking
into account the underlying mortgage interest
rates. Affordability is signiﬁcantly improved as
a result of recent declines in both house prices
and Bank of England base rates.

Financial Statements
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Monitoring the status of the UK housing market is a key requirement of
taking a more active approach to managing the cycle. While we do not
expect to be able to forecast the timing of this entirely accurately, we
are monitoring a wide range of indicators in order to inform our
judgement. As a management team we have in excess of 115 years
of experience of the UK housebuilding industry and recognise that
there are signiﬁcant advantages to adjusting the operational tactics
of the business according to the stage of the market cycle.

2011

In last year’s Annual Report, we set out our value cycle and the
associated strategy in some detail. The fundamental principle on
which this is based is that the UK housing market is cyclical, albeit
this is all too easy to forget when house prices are rising and there is an
opportunity to deliver higher proﬁts through increasing the number of
home completions each year.

1997

The UK housing market cycle

Shareholder Information
p106-116

On the right hand side of this page you will see four of these indicators,
along with a brief commentary on their relevance to the housing
market cycle.

Source: Average of CLG, Halifax,
Land Registry and Nationwide
House Price indices
There has been signiﬁcant variation in the
average annual house price change since
1997, with very strong growth from 2001 to
2003 and price declines in 2008 and 2009.

2011

1997

As you will see, this strategy represents an evolution of the strategy for
recovery that I set out in the 2009 Annual Report. We remain focused
on maximising the value achieved from each home completion rather
than looking to grow volumes ahead of underlying improvements in
market conditions. This is reﬂected in the ‘optimising value’ component
of our value cycle, which we see as an all-encompassing approach to
continuous improvement.

2011

Over the course of 2011, we have reﬁned and ﬁnalised the strategy
to optimise our UK residential development business and have
communicated this extensively, both internally and externally. Our
business in Spain is also following this strategy, with some adaptations
to reﬂect differences in the market and regulatory environment.

1997

Implementing our strategy

Source: Communities and Local Government
Total housing starts do not exhibit the same strong
growth as house prices in the period from 1997 to
2006, but fell sharply from 2007 to 2009.

Given the ongoing changes in the UK planning system, we have also
emphasised the importance of ‘managing the planning and community
engagement process’. In addition, we have highlighted the signiﬁcant
input required from skilled and committed people to deliver aspirational,
high-quality homes and communities for our customers.
The key points of our strategy, along with details of how it relates
to our value cycle and our key performance indicators, are set out
on pages 8 and 9.
Ryan Mangold provides more information regarding the linkage
between our strategy and our dividend policy in his Group ﬁnancial
review on page 26 of this Annual Report.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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Our vision

We aim to become the UK’s leading residential developer for creating
value and delivering quality.

Our strategic objectives

In line with the evolution of our strategy, we will measure our success against
an amended set of strategic KPIs:

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

– Driving further UK operating margin* progression beyond 2011
– Delivering at least a 15% return on net operating assets** through the cycle
– Growing net assets by 10% per annum on average through the cycle
UK operating
margin*(a) (%)
6.4
9.7

Group return on net
operating assets** (%)
5.3
9.8

Tangible net asset
value per share*** (p)
56.9
57.3

Components of the value cycle
Selecting land
Land is the critical ‘raw material’ for our business
and the ability to purchase the right sites in the
right locations at the right price is a key driver of
shareholder value.

Managing the planning and community
engagement process
Designing a sustainable community that meets the
needs of local residents, is attractive to potential
customers and provides attractive returns for
shareholders requires a consultative and iterative
process of community engagement.

Financial Statements
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2010

2011

2010

2011

2010

2011

Our approach

Getting the homebuilding basics right

In order to achieve these strategic objectives, we need to deliver enhanced value
from each component of our value cycle. The table opposite provides a description
of each component of the value cycle, the strategy that we employ to deliver
enhanced value and the operational KPIs that we monitor to measure our success.

We work with selected sub-contractors and build
using carefully sourced materials to ensure that the
homes that we sell are of a high quality and are built
safely, efﬁciently, cost effectively and with minimal
impact on the environment.

Optimising value
Shareholder Information
p106-116

Caring about our customers
Caring about
our customers

Selecting
land

Buying a home is a signiﬁcant ﬁnancial and emotional
investment. We aim to make buying, moving into and
living in a Taylor Wimpey home as easy as possible for
our customers.

Simply
the best people

Optimising value
Getting the
homebuilding
basics right

Managing the
planning and
community
engagement
process

Developing sustainable homes and communities
is a time-consuming process, but this provides
us with the opportunity to undertake regular
reviews over the life of each development to
identify potential improvements.

Simply the best people
* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs
and exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.
** Operating proﬁt divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating
assets, which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances.
*** Tangible net assets per share is deﬁned as net assets, excluding goodwill and
intangible assets, divided by the number of shares in issue at the period end.
(a)
2010 comparative excludes a one-off pension curtailment credit of £12.0 million
in the UK.
8

This value cycle requires signiﬁcant input from
skilled and committed people to deliver aspirational,
high-quality homes and communities for
our customers.
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We are highly selective with regard to the types of sites that we buy, focusing on the
quality of the land rather than the number of plots acquired. We employ dedicated land
teams in each of our 24 regional businesses, who use their expertise and local knowledge
to identify potential high quality, sustainable sites. Our regional businesses are also
supported by our strategic land teams who operate throughout the UK and are tasked
with identifying areas where population growth, or other local demand, could create
opportunities to promote land through the planning system. The importance we place on
effective partnerships, along with our expertise and track record for delivering planning
consents, makes us an attractive partner for landowners.

Owned and controlled
plots with planning

2010: 63,556

2010: 22.9

We believe that a positive and structured approach to working with others is at the heart of a
successful scheme. Residential development is a local business and we work in partnership
with the communities in which we build to deliver homes that meet their requirements and
aspirations. We are rolling out a continuous process of community engagement over the lifetime
of each development, which will enable us to identify the best use of each site to meet the
needs of local residents, to deliver appropriate ﬁnancial returns for our shareholders, to ensure
that we have a mix of homes that meet local market demand and that the site is optimised for
safe, efﬁcient and considerate development.

Contribution per
legal completion (£k)

Health and safety
incident rate

28.6

378

We are committed to providing a safe place in which our employees and sub-contractors can
work. We are also committed to high standards of environmental management. The building
process is carefully managed by our site-based and regional production teams to ensure quality,
minimise disruption to residents in the surrounding areas and to protect and enhance the value
of each site.

Health and safety
incident rate

Waste generated per
1,000 square feet built (tonnes)

378

3.44

Customer
satisfaction score (%)

Forward order book as a
percentage of completions (%)

92.1

53.1

Directors’ Report: Governance
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2010: 557
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2010: 22.9

2010: 4.18
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2010: 87.1

We look to optimise the value of each site not only during the initial acquisition process, but
throughout the planning and development stages so that the original value is not only protected
but enhanced. We achieve this by undertaking a series of thorough reviews of each site at all
stages of its lifecycle, using our value improvement and tracking processes to ensure that we
are continually optimising and delivering the value within our land portfolio.

Contribution per
legal completion (£k)

65,264 28.6

2010: 557

No matter what the size or price of a property, for each customer the home that they are
buying is aspirational to them. We will maintain our focus on delivering high-quality homes
and a consistently excellent ‘Customer Journey’ to all of our customers. We continue to make
improvements to our on-line capabilities, including our Web site and use of social media such
as Facebook and Twitter.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
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Our strategy to deliver enhanced value

Our UK operational
Key Performance Indicators

2010: 47.2

Contribution per legal
completion (£k)

28.6
2010: 22.9

We want to be the residential developer of choice for employees. We want to attract and retain the
best people by having a culture that people identify with, where they can realise their full potential
and achieve success and satisfaction. We will continue to seek a balance of internal and external
appointments, in order to combine career development with the introduction of new perspectives
and innovative approaches.

Employee turnover (%)

10
2010: 9

For more information see page 15

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

9

Chief Executive’s Review continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

People and culture

Outlook

The people in all functions at both regional and head ofﬁce level are
critical to our success. In order to achieve our ambition of becoming
the UK’s leading residential developer for creating value and delivering
quality we need signiﬁcant input from skilled and committed people to
deliver quality homes and communities for our customers.

In the UK, while it remains too early to judge the market for the year
as a whole, the early weeks of trading in 2012 have followed the
encouraging patterns of the second half of 2011, with good visitor
levels, healthy reservations and low cancellations. We believe that our
ever improving portfolio of sales outlets is well positioned in our local
markets, with aspirational products and achievable prices for our
target customers.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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But more than this, our people need to understand our strategy and
be committed to it. Accordingly, during September and October, I went
round the business along with a number of other members of the
senior management team to present our strategy to employees from
every regional business and our head ofﬁce. There were opportunities
for questions at each of these meetings and, in addition, a forum on
our intranet allows for ongoing discussion of our strategy.
As well as reﬁning our strategy, we have also formalised a set of cultural
principles that underpin everything that we do:
t If something is worth doing, it’s worth doing properly;
t If we make a mistake, we put it right;
t We will not compromise in ensuring that everyone leaves our
sites safe and well;

Our priorities remain value creation and margin improvement ahead of
volume growth, and we are achieving further improvement in the
margin on sales in our order book. Having delivered double digit
operating margins in the UK in the second half of 2011, ahead of
target, we continue to expect to deliver further steady improvement
providing that current stable market conditions continue.
Given the balance between a stable UK housing market and
widespread economic uncertainty, we continue to maintain a positive
but cautious view of the short term trading environment. In addition to
creating value in an improving market, our value-focused strategy,
high-quality land portfolio, increased order book, and strong balance
sheet give us a strong defensive position should conditions weaken
during 2012.

Financial Statements
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t We are competitive and don’t accept second best; we drive
for results;
t We behave with integrity, and are honest and forthright, but we
support each other; and
t We strive to enhance the environment and local community, not
damage it.

Pete Redfern
Chief Executive

Shareholder Information
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We currently have a solid and stable team across the business, both
regionally and centrally, who take pride in working for Taylor Wimpey.
We aim to build on this by becoming the employer of choice in our
industry, attracting and retaining people because of our culture, and
providing opportunities for development, so that Taylor Wimpey is seen
as the place where employees can achieve success.

Corporate responsibility
We remain committed to being a responsible company and to playing
our part in building increasingly sustainable homes and communities.
As Chief Executive, I take ownership of the corporate responsibility
agenda at the Board level and oversee the work of our Sustainability
Steering Group. I also continue to sit on the Confederation of British
Industry’s Climate Change Board, enabling us to beneﬁt from best
practice across a wide range of industries.
As a residential developer, we are well aware of the undersupply of new
homes in the UK and the issue of homelessness. We are proud to be
supporting Centrepoint, a charity that provides emergency
accommodation, support, information and training for homeless young
people as our national charity for 2011 and 2012. In addition we remain
a patron of CRASH, the construction and property industries’
homelessness charity.
Further information about our approach to corporate responsibility is
provided on page 23 of this Annual Report and in our annual Corporate
Responsibility Report which is available on our Web site at
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/CorporateResponsibility/CRreports/
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Our approach to risk management

$VZLWKDQ\EXVLQHVV7D\ORU:LPSH\IDFHVDQXPEHURIULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVLQWKHFRXUVHRILWVGD\WRGD\
RSHUDWLRQV,WLVRQO\E\HIIHFWLYHO\LGHQWLI\LQJDQGPDQDJLQJWKHVHULVNVWKDWZHZLOOEHDEOHWRGHOLYHURQRXU
VWUDWHJLFSULRULWLHVRILPSURYLQJRSHUDWLQJPDUJLQVUHWXUQRQQHWRSHUDWLQJDVVHWVDQGQHWDVVHWYDOXH
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Principal
Risks &
Uncertainties

BU & Central forecast
and planning process

The successful management of risk is essential to enable the Group
to deliver on its strategic priorities. The risk management and internal
control framework deﬁne procedures that manage rather than eliminate
the risk facing the business and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The risk management framework consists of risk registers at all
organisational levels which detail the risk faced by the Group, its
operating companies and the central service teams. The registers
identify key operational and ﬁnancial risks while strategic risks are
identiﬁed as part of the business planning process although it is
expected that strategic risks will be included on risk registers. The
risk registers take into account the signiﬁcance of environmental,
social and governance matters of the Company and use a
standardised methodology for the assessment of risk.
The standard methodology used in risk management requires each risk
identiﬁed to be assessed and ranked according to a risk matrix which
accounts for the likelihood and impact of each risk. The risks identiﬁed
are assessed for potential effect on the Company’s short and long term
value. The completion of risk registers is iterative and refreshed on an
ongoing basis. The risk registers feed into a formal half yearly risk
assessment that identiﬁes the principal risks (see pages 12 and 13)
and allows the Board to re-evaluate the identiﬁed strategic risks facing
the Group.
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Our risk assessment and management process

The Board oversees the risk and control framework of the Group
and the Chief Executive is responsible for implementing any
necessary improvements with the support of the GMT. In line with our
report last year and consistent with the Code, the Board increased
the frequency of its formal risk reviews to half yearly and the GMT
conducts a detailed review as part of the business planning process.
At its half year and year end meetings the Board reviewed the risk
proﬁle of the Group and the mitigating factors identiﬁed with the
signiﬁcant risks. At the year end meeting in February 2012 following
the annual review by the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
internal controls and a formal half year assessment of risk, which
included a detailed risk assessment by the GMT, the Board
completed its annual assessment of risks for the year end
31 December 2011. The key risks affecting the Group were
identiﬁed and agreed with the Board together with processes
for their elimination or mitigation and actions required to reduce
the likelihood of each risk to the Company and the Group.
More information on risk management and internal control
is contained within the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 36 and 37.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The table below summarises the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties. We also maintain a
6XVWDLQDELOLW\DQG&OLPDWH&KDQJH5LVNDQG2SSRUWXQLW\5HJLVWHUWRPRQLWRURWKHUQRQ¿QDQFLDOLVVXHV
that could affect the Group. More information is available in our Corporate Responsibility Report at
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/CorporateResponsibility/CRreports/

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Impact of economic
environment on
mortgage availability
Mortgage providers have
been impacted by the
ﬁnancial crisis and the
resulting requirement to
increase capital (such
as Basel III), reducing
their ability to provide
mortgages.
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p55-105

Government
regulations and
planning policy
The Localism Act and the
National Planning Policy
Framework have
introduced signiﬁcant
change in the planning
system, which potentially
increases the time to
obtain planning consents.
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Impact of market
environment
on demand
Signiﬁcant economic
uncertainty in Europe,
government austerity
measures, ﬂat economic
growth and the potential
for increased
unemployment could
suppress demand
for housing.

Relevance to strategy

Potential impact on KPIs

Mitigation

The majority of the homes that
we build are sold to individual
purchasers who take on
signiﬁcant mortgages to ﬁnance
their purchases. In particular the
ability of ﬁrst time buyers and
investors to purchase homes
has decreased due to reduced
mortgage availability at the
higher loan to value levels and
hence signiﬁcant deposits
are required.

Credit availability remains below
normal historic levels. As a result
the level of effective demand for
new homes is below historic
trends, which could negatively
impact on both proﬁtability and
cash generation. This would
have an adverse effect on return
on net operating assets and
net debt.

We use a range of sales incentives t Group Finance Director
like ‘Easymover’ and ‘Deposit
t UK Sales Director
Match’. We also offer, on certain
sites, the government backed
t Group Treasurer
shared equity product ‘FirstBuy’ to
reduce customer up-front costs
and the level of ﬁnance required.

Inability to obtain suitable
consents, or unforeseen delays,
could impact on the number or
type of homes that we are able
to build. We could also be
required to fund higher than
The new planning system could anticipated levels of planning
result in extended timescales for obligations, or incur additional
costs to meet increased
gaining planning consents or
regulatory requirements. All of
increased legal challenges as
these would have a detrimental
the powers within the new
impact on the contribution
processes are clariﬁed and
per plot.
tested. These factors increase
uncertainty and increase the
commercial risk of projects.
Our ability to obtain the
planning permission required
to develop communities is
dependent on our ability to
meet the relevant regulatory
and planning requirements.

Due to economic conditions
and, in particular, increasing
unemployment, consumer
conﬁdence remains low. This
has an impact on demand for
new homes as individuals are
more uncertain about their
ﬁnancial future.

Effective demand for new
homes below normal levels
could negatively impact on
both proﬁtability and cash
generation. This would have
an adverse effect on return
on net operating assets and
net debt.

Responsibility

We are working with the main
mortgage providers and the
government on the ‘NewBuy’
mortgage indemnity guarantee
scheme for new build homes.
We have responded to the
changes in planning policy by
developing a comprehensive
Community Led Planning strategy.
Our aim is to improve
communication between our
regional businesses, communities
and local authorities in order to
deliver local requirements in the
most appropriate way.

t Chief Executive
t UK Land and
Planning Director
t Other members of our
senior management team
t Managing Directors of
our regional businesses

We consult with the UK
government on upcoming
legislation, both directly and
indirectly as a member of industry
groups, to highlight potential
issues and to understand any
proposed changes to regulations.
t Group Management Team
Our local teams select the
locations and home designs that
t UK Sales Director
best meet the needs of the local
community and customer demand t Regional Sales and
in the present and future.
Marketing Directors
We evaluate new outlet openings
on the basis of local market
conditions and regularly review
the pricing and incentives that
we offer.
We minimise the level of
speculative build that we
undertake and strive to reduce
build costs, while maintaining
quality, through operational
efﬁciencies and price reductions.
We continuously optimise our
marketing Web site to increase
the conversion rate of visitors
to customers.
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The purchase of land of
poor quality or at too high
a price could impact
future proﬁtability.

Potential impact on KPIs

Mitigation

Responsibility

Land is the major ‘raw material’
for the Group and the limited
availability of good quality land
at an attractive price leads to
signiﬁcant competition.

Purchasing poor quality or
mis-priced land would have a
detrimental impact on our
proﬁtability and returns.
Purchasing insufﬁcient land
would reduce the Group’s
ability to manage its portfolio
actively and create value
for shareholders.

Our local land teams select and
appraise each site. Our appraisal
process ensures each project is
ﬁnancially viable, consistent with
our strategy and appropriately
authorised, dependent on the
proposed scale of expenditure.

t Group Management Team

The success of our operations
requires a large number of
people, ranging from employees
and sub-contractors to
customers and their families, to
visit our sites each day. We want
all of these people to go home
at the end of the day safe
and uninjured.

In addition to the potentially
tragic personal impact of an
accident on site, there is
potential for legal proceedings,
ﬁnancial penalties, reputational
damage and delay to the
site’s progress.

t Chief Executive
We have a comprehensive
health, safety and environmental
t Head of Health and Safety
management system, which is
integral to our business. This is
t Every employee and
supported by our policies and
sub-contractor
procedures to ensure that we
live up to our intention of providing
a safe and healthy working
environment and build houses
that comply with the
required regulations.

In order to optimise our build
cost efﬁciency, whilst retaining
the ﬂexibility to commence
work on new sites as market
conditions allow, the vast
majority of work carried out
on site is performed by
sub-contractors.

If the availability of subcontractors or materials is
insufﬁcient to meet demand this
could lead to increased build
times, increased costs and,
therefore, reduced proﬁtability.
Lack of skilled sub-contractors
could also result in higher levels
of waste being produced from
our sites and lower build quality.

We maintain regular contact
with suppliers regarding volume
requirements and negotiate
contract pricing and duration
as appropriate.

Purchasing land of the
appropriate quality on
attractive terms will enhance
the Group’s ability to deliver
strong proﬁt growth as housing
markets recover.

Building sites are
inherently dangerous
places. Unsafe practices
by our employees or
sub-contractors have the
potential to cause serious
injury or death.

Supply of labour and
materials has reduced as
industry volumes declined
over recent years.
However, as market
conditions recover, there
will be greater demand
and competition for key
skills and materials
which could lead to
increased prices.

Ability to attract and
retain high calibre
employees
Recruiting employees
with inadequate skills or in
insufﬁcient numbers, or
not being able to retain
key staff could have a
detrimental impact on
our business.

Some sub-contractors and
suppliers have gone out of
business as a result of the
downturn, with others reducing
prices to secure orders. As
demand increases labour and
material prices could increase.

Our value cycle requires
signiﬁcant input from skilled
people to deliver quality
homes and communities for
our customers.
The challenging market
conditions in recent years have
meant that we have had to
reduce the number of
employees across the Group.
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t Regional Land and
Planning Directors
t Strategic Land
Managing Directors

t Head of Procurement
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Material costs
and availability of
sub-contractors

t Regional Managing Directors
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Site and
product safety

Our strategic land teams work
alongside regional businesses to
identify and secure land with the
potential for future development
and promote it through the
planning system.

t Divisional Managing
Directors

t Regional Commercial
Directors

As part of our sub-contractor
selection process key
competencies are considered
particularly in relation to health and
safety, quality, previous site
performance and
ﬁnancial stability.
We also work to address the skills
shortage in the industry through
apprenticeship schemes and
the Construction Industry
Training Board.

Not having the right teams in
place could lead to delays,
quality issues, reduced sales
levels, poor customer care and
reduced proﬁtability.
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Land purchasing

Relevance to strategy

t Chief Executive
We monitor employee turnover
levels on a monthly basis and
t Group HR Director
conduct exit interviews, as
appropriate, to identify any areas t Every employee
for improvement. We benchmark
managing people
our remuneration against the
industry, have succession plans in
place for key roles within the
Group and hold regular
development reviews to identify
training requirements.
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,QZHVDZVLJQL¿FDQWSURJUHVVLQRXURSHUDWLRQDO
SHUIRUPDQFHDQG,DPSOHDVHGWKDWZHUHDFKHGRXUGRXEOH
GLJLWRSHUDWLQJPDUJLQ WDUJHWDKHDGRIVFKHGXOH
Pete Redfern
Chief Executive
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UK housing market
As set out in my Chief Executive’s Review, on page 7 of this Annual
Report, the UK housing market is cyclical and we have identiﬁed a set
of indicators that we monitor on a regular basis to establish the current
stage of the cycle and adapt our tactics accordingly.
After the relatively robust market conditions of 2010, market conditions
in 2011 also exceeded our expectations. We achieved small price rises
in the early part of 2011 on newly opened outlets, with broadly stable
conditions throughout the ﬁrst half of the year. In the second half of
2011, we saw a more normal autumn selling pattern and also a
stronger end to the year than had been the case in 2010.

Financial Statements
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Mortgage availability remains the key constraint on the UK housing
market, although we have seen further incremental improvement over
the course of 2011. The total value of mortgage approvals for home
purchases increased slightly to £82,434 million (2010: £80,058 million)
according to Bank of England data. The number of mortgage
approvals for home purchases has also increased during 2011, with
more than 50,000 approvals per month from August through to
December compared to an average of 47,551 approvals per month for
the previous six month period.

Shareholder Information
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The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee kept base interest
rates at an historic low of 0.5% for another full year, but mortgage
lenders continue to charge a signiﬁcant premium to this especially for
higher loan to value mortgages. However, it is the relative scarcity of
mortgages available to buyers with a 5% or 10% deposit that remains
the biggest hurdle for ﬁrst time buyers to overcome. Indeed, the
Council of Mortgage Lenders reports a fall of 4% in the number of
mortgages advanced to ﬁrst time buyers and a 2% fall in the value of
such mortgages compared to 2010.

Housebuilding starts for the UK industry as a whole, including housing
associations, were broadly ﬂat year on year at around 115,000,
maintaining the improvement on the less than 90,000 starts in 2009
according to the National House-Building Council. These volumes
remain well below the level of household formations, with the most
recent government forecasts showing an average of 232,000 new
households per annum from 2008 to 2033 for England alone.
Increasing the current level of housebuilding in the UK remains a focus
of the government and its policies fall into two categories. Firstly, the
proposed reforms of the planning system continue to progress, with
the Localism Act receiving Royal Assent in November 2011 and the
draft National Planning Policy Framework being published in July 2011.
Secondly, the government is looking to address the difﬁculties that
many people are facing in obtaining a mortgage. The Stamp Duty Land
Tax exemption for ﬁrst time buyers buying a home valued at less than
£250,000 remained in force throughout 2011. The FirstBuy scheme,
which follows on from the previous HomeBuy Direct scheme, was
launched in March 2011 with the intention of helping around 10,000
families to get onto the housing ladder for the ﬁrst time. The
government also announced the NewBuy mortgage guarantee
scheme in November 2011, which is intended to provide greater
access to 95% mortgages at more competitive interest rates through
the use of housebuilder funding and a government-backed guarantee.

Financial review
We have made further signiﬁcant progress in 2011 and this is reﬂected
in our strong ﬁnancial performance. Revenue has increased slightly to
£1,779.4 million (2010: £1,736.6 million), primarily driven by an increase
in home completions. It is therefore very pleasing to report growth of
56% in operating proﬁt* to £173.2 million (2010: £111.0 million(a)) as we
continue to prioritise margin performance ahead of volume growth.

Compared to our own experiences of mix-adjusted house prices, the
national house price indices tend to exaggerate movements. However,
as publicly available data sources, they are a widely quoted point of
reference. As was the case in 2010, the national indices do not show
a consistent trend for 2011. The Nationwide House Price Index shows
an annual increase of 1.0% to an average UK house price of
£163,822. Meanwhile, the Halifax House Price Index reports
a fall of 1.3% to £160,063.

This resulted in a sharp increase in operating margin to 9.7% for
the full year (2010: 6.4%(a)), with our target of reaching double digit
operating margins by 2012 achieved during the second half of 2011.

Key market drivers

Market risk factors

– &RQWLQXLQJXQGHUVXSSO\RIQHZKRPHVDJDLQVWJRYHUQPHQW
SURMHFWLRQVRIKRXVHKROGIRUPDWLRQ
– 6WURQJFXOWXUDOSUHIHUHQFHWRZDUGVKRPHRZQHUVKLSUDWKHU
WKDQUHQWDO

– &RQWLQXLQJUHVWULFWLRQVRQFUHGLWDYDLODELOLW\
– &KDQJLQJHFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWOHDGLQJWRLQFUHDVLQJ
LQWHUHVWUDWHVRUXQHPSOR\PHQW
– )LUVWWLPHEX\HUVLQFUHDVLQJO\SULFHGRXWRIWKHPDUNHW

* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs and
exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.

(a)

Net operating assets** in the UK were £1,721.5 million
(2010: £1,628.6 million), with a return on net operating assets**
for the year of 10.4% (2010: 6.7%(a)).

2010 comparative excludes a one-off pension curtailment credit of £12.0 million
in the UK.

** Operating proﬁt divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating
assets, which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances.
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– 5HWDLQRXUFRQVLVWHQWGLVFLSOLQHGDSSURDFKWRDFTXLULQJVKRUW
WHUPODQGPDLQWDLQLQJDORQJHUODQGSRUWIROLRDWWKLVVWDJH
LQWKHPDUNHWF\FOH
– )RFXVRQDGGLQJQHZVLWHVWRRXUVWUDWHJLFODQGSRUWIROLRDQG
GHOLYHULQJSODQQLQJDQGYDOXHIURPH[LVWLQJVLWHV
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Our UK Housing strategic priorities
– %HFRPHWKHLQGXVWU\OHDGHULQPDQDJLQJWKHSODQQLQJ
SURFHVVDFURVVRXULQGXVWU\
– 'HOLYHUDQH[FHOOHQW&XVWRPHU-RXUQH\FRQVLVWHQWO\
IRUDOORIRXUFXVWRPHUV
– 'HOLYHURQRXUDVSLUDWLRQWRDGGYDOXHWRHYHU\VLWH
DIWHUDFTXLVLWLRQ

Our UK Housing Key Performance Indicators

Forward order book
as a percentage
of completions

Customer satisfaction

Waste generated
per home

We strive to maximise the level
of contribution per home sold.

Revenue, net of incentives,
less build costs, land costs
and direct selling costs,
divided by the number of
homes completed (excluding
joint ventures).

We continue to prioritise both
short and long term margin
performance ahead of volume
growth. Increasing the
contribution per plot is a key
driver to achieving this priority.

The number of homes
in our year end order
book, expressed as a
percentage of the number
of homes completed during
the year (excluding joint
venture completions).

A strong order book
provides greater stability
in business planning and
enhances our ability to
increase the contribution
per legal completion.

The total number of plots
that we either own or
control, with some form
of planning consent.

In a ﬂat or falling pricing
environment we look to
maximise the level of our
order book.

We aim to maintain sufﬁcient
land in our portfolio to enable
us to remain selective in
future purchases.

We strive to maintain and
improve our customer
satisfaction scores.

We want our employees
and sub-contractors to go
home safe and uninjured,
day after day.

We aim to reduce the level
of waste generated per
home each year.

£28.6k
2011

28.6

2010

22.9

2009

12.6

53.1%
2011

53.1

2010

47.2

2009

53.6

Having a portfolio of land in
place is key to planning the
required scale of our building
2011
operations for future home
2010
completions and enables us to
be selective in land purchases. 2009

65,264 plots

Percentage of customers
satisﬁed or very satisﬁed with
their new home as measured
by the National New Homes
survey undertaken by the
NHBC on behalf of the
HBF eight weeks after
legal completions.

Delivering high levels of
customer satisfaction
enhances the reputation of
our business and reduces
the costs associated with
rectifying poor quality work.

92.1%

Reportable injury frequency
rate per 100,000 employees
and contractors (Annual Injury
Incidence Rate).

As well as having a moral duty
to maintain safety on site,
accidents and injuries can have 2011
a detrimental impact on the
2010
business through additional
2009
costs, delays and/or
reputational damage.

378

As well as having a beneﬁcial
impact on the environment,
reducing waste is a key part
of driving down build cost and
may also assist in winning
future planning consents.

3.44

Total tonnage of construction
waste per 1,000 square
feet built.

65,264
63,556
66,089

2011

92.1

2010

87.1

2009

87.1
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Health and safety

Why is it key to our strategy?
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Owned and controlled
plots with planning

Deﬁnition
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Contribution per
legal completion

Objective

378
557
520

2011

3.44

2010

4.18

2009

4.37

Our UK Housing Risks
7KH*URXS¶VSULQFLSDOULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVDUHGHWDLOHGRQSDJHVDQGRIWKLVUHSRUW7KHULVNVWKDW
KDYHVHHQWKHJUHDWHVWFKDQJHLQWKH8.EXVLQHVVGXULQJDUH
– *RYHUQPHQWSODQQLQJSROLF\ZLWKWKH/RFDOLVP$FWUHFHLYLQJ5R\DO$VVHQWDQGWKHRQJRLQJGHEDWHDURXQGWKHSURSRVHG1DWLRQDO
3ODQQLQJ3ROLF\)UDPHZRUN
– ,PSDFWRIPDUNHWHQYLURQPHQWRQGHPDQGWKHRQJRLQJXQFHUWDLQW\LQWKHZLGHUHFRQRP\FRQWLQXHVWRKDYHDGHWULPHQWDOLPSDFW
RQFRQVXPHUFRQ¿GHQFH
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6HOHFWLQJODQG
/H\ERXUQH*UDQJH.HQW
/H\ERXUQH*UDQJHLVDVXVWDLQDEOHFRPPXQLW\ZLWKLQDQH[FHSWLRQDOODQGVFDSH
DQGZRRGODQGVHWWLQJ:HDUHZRUNLQJLQSDUWQHUVKLSZLWKWKH+RPHVDQG
&RPPXQLWLHV$JHQF\ +&$ ZKRRZQWKHVLWHWRGHOLYHUWKHVFKHPH
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7KHEXLOWGHYHORSPHQWLVVHWZLWKLQKHFWDUHVRISDUNODQGWKLVLQFOXGHV
RUFKDUGVDNPH[HUFLVHWUDLOODNHDQGKLVWRULFZRRGODQGDOORIZKLFKDUHEHLQJ
UHJHQHUDWHGRUQHZO\SURYLGHGE\XV$IRUPHU*UDGH,,OLVWHG0DQRUKRXVH
7KH*UDQJHZLOOEHFRQYHUWHGLQWRDSDUWPHQWVDORQJVLGHWKHUHLQVWDWHPHQW
RIWKHZDOOHGJDUGHQDQGDUERUHWXPWKLVHQVXUHVWKHSUHVHUYDWLRQRIWKH
KHULWDJHRIWKHVLWH

Sales, completions and pricing
Market conditions in 2011 exceeded our expectations, with pricing
stable and levels of both visitors and reservations above the prior year.
We experienced a more normal autumn selling pattern and a stronger
end to the year, particularly contrasted with the weaker ﬁnish to 2010.
Our net private reservation rate for the year as a whole was 0.54
homes per outlet per week (2010: 0.51) with cancellation rates below
the long term average at 15.8% (2010: 18.2%).
We opened 128 new active selling outlets in 2011 and entered 2012
with 314 outlets (December 2010: 301). Our primary goals with new
outlets continue to be to optimise planning consents and to value
engineer sites prior to opening.
Home completions increased by 2% to 10,180 (2010: 9,962) of which
8,075 were private completions (2010: 8,103), 2,048 were affordable
homes (2010: 1,824) and 57 were our share of joint venture
completions (2010: 35). The overall average selling price for these
completions was unchanged at £171k, with a small increase in the
average selling price of private completions to £185k (2010: £184k)
and the average selling price of affordable homes unchanged at £116k.
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Our sales focus in the ﬁnal quarter of the year was on maximising both
the quality and scale of our order book. We ended 2011 with a total
order book value of £835 million (2010: £715 million), an increase of
17%. Within this total, the value of the order book for private housing is
up by 22% and the value of the affordable housing order book has
been increased by 9%. The total number of homes within the year end
order book is up by 15% to 5,379 homes (2010: 4,684 homes), and
the margin in the order book is also ahead of both the equivalent point
in 2010 and the margin achieved on completions in 2011.

Strategy
As set out on pages 8 and 9 we aim to become the UK’s leading
residential developer for creating value and delivering quality.

Selecting land
Shareholder Information
p106-116

8.&RDOODQGVDOHDQGSDUWQHUVKLSDJUHHPHQW
,QZHSXUFKDVHGVHSDUDWHVWUDWHJLFODQGVLWHVIURP+DUZRUWK(VWDWHV
WKHSURSHUW\GLYLVLRQRI8.&RDOSOF7KHSRUWIROLRFRPSULVHVJURVVDFUHV
HVWLPDWHGDFUHVQHW ZLWKWKHSRWHQWLDOWRGHOLYHUDURXQGKRPHV
RYHUD\HDUSHULRG7KHGHDOZDVDJUHHGZLWKLQVLJQL¿FDQWWLPHFRQVWUDLQWV
DQGRXURIIHUZDVFRPSHWLWLYHO\WHVWHGWKURXJKD8.PDUNHWLQJFDPSDLJQ
:HQRZRZQWKHSRUWIROLRDQGRXUVWUDWHJLFODQGWHDPVZLOOEHPDQDJLQJWKH
SURPRWLRQRIWKHVLWHVWKURXJKWKHSODQQLQJSURFHVVDQGWKHVXEVHTXHQW
GHYHORSPHQWRIWKHVLWHV

We view our landbank as an investment portfolio that we manage
actively to create value for shareholders. In line with this approach, we
consider it appropriate to hold a longer land portfolio at this stage of the
cycle and the strength of our land portfolio enables us to target our
activity in the land market to only the best opportunities.
We continue to be highly selective with regard to the type of sites that
we buy in terms of location, product mix, anticipated returns and level
of risk. We undertake a series of thorough reviews of each opportunity
at all stages of the acquisition process. Only those opportunities that
meet our requirements, including return on capital, operating proﬁt and
risk proﬁle, are submitted for approval.

UK Housing land portfolio
2011
Plots

Detailed planning
Outline planning
Resolution to grant
Subtotal
Allocated strategic
Non-allocated
strategic
Total

16

Total

2010
Total

Owned

Controlled

Pipeline

34,192
15,161
3,389
52,742
3,697

2,443
5,426
4,653
12,522
5,652

218 36,853 34,803
1,259 21,846 23,142
258 8,300 6,325
1,735 66,999 64,270
– 9,349 10,182

23,638
80,077

51,249
69,423

2,000 76,887 66,878
3,735 153,235 141,330
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Rowner Renewal Project, Gosport
The Rowner Renewal Project at Alver Village is a £145m scheme which will
deliver approximately 700 new homes. Over 18 months of detailed public
consultation took place with residents, community groups and others,
such as local shops, businesses, schools and the police, to develop a
comprehensive masterplan for the area. The well attended public consultation
events included meetings, workshops, exhibitions and a design weekend.
The plans gained overall support during the initial engagement process, with
VRPHUHVLGHQWVHDJHUWRUHVHUYHVSHFL¿FSURSHUWLHVLQSKDVHRQH
We have also engaged with the local community in more informal ways. Safety
talks have been given to local schools and we have run health and safety poster
competitions.
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Our current land strategy remains weighted towards both the south
(63% of owned and controlled short term land portfolio plots) and
houses (81% of owned and controlled short term land portfolio plots).
However, we continue to believe that a long term strategy with a
sensible mix of sites for all consumer groups, including ﬁrst time buyers,
and in all areas where there is signiﬁcant housing need will deliver the
best long term returns.

Managing the planning
and community
engagement process

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

We held 65,264 plots in our UK short term land portfolio, representing
owned or controlled land with planning, or a resolution to grant
planning at 31 December 2011 (2010: 63,556). This is equivalent to 6.4
years of supply at current completion levels (2010: 6.4 years). The
average cost per owned plot in the short term land portfolio was £33k
at 31 December 2011 on the basis of allocating previous land write
downs against land value (2010: £31k). 39% of our short term owned
and controlled land portfolio is previously impaired, 15% acquired prior
to the downturn and unimpaired, 19% acquired since we re-entered
the land market in September 2009 and 27% originally sourced
through our strategic land portfolio.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

We increased our ﬁnancial return criteria for land purchased during
2011, maintaining our consistent, disciplined approach to land
acquisition in order to maximise the quality of our portfolio in a land
market offering an increased number of attractive opportunities.
Consistent with our guidance at the start of 2011, we approved the
purchase of 11,756 new plots on 106 sites during 2011. We continue
to limit the use of deferred payment terms, given our very low marginal
cost of borrowing, enabling us to drive the best land value.

We have also made signiﬁcant progress with our strategic land portfolio
during 2011. We have added 12,868 new potential plots to the
strategic land portfolio in 2011, including a land sale and partnership
agreement with Harworth Estates, the property development division
of UK Coal plc, and an option covering approximately 224 acres at
Syston in Leicestershire. In addition, we have achieved planning
consents on circa 4,000 plots from our strategic land portfolio including
sites in Crewe and Church Crookham.

We aim to become the industry leader in managing the planning
process across our business, and see the current changes in the
planning system as an opportunity to develop a competitive advantage,
through adapting more quickly and more effectively.
We believe that the underlying principle of the Localism Act, of ensuring
that planning decisions involve the local people whom they affect,
is the right one and welcome the strong presumption in favour of
sustainable development contained within the draft National Planning
Policy Framework.
We have completed the initial phase of a signiﬁcant programme
of internal training to enhance the required communication and
engagement skills across our regional teams. We have also completed
the development and roll-out of a comprehensive framework of
processes to position our business to take advantage of the
opportunities that the proposed new system will provide. In addition,
we have produced an ‘About Taylor Wimpey’ brochure and associated
Web site, about.taylorwimpey.co.uk, to provide greater transparency on
our approach to the planning and community engagement process.

Shareholder Information
p106-116

Managing the planning and community
engagement process

Great Western Park, Didcot
At Great Western Park we have undertaken consultation with local businesses,
groups, individuals, and the parish and local councils to identify concerns and
gain feedback. This process is ongoing: we conduct consultation in parallel
with new planning applications and keep the community informed when we
UHDFKVLJQL¿FDQWGHYHORSPHQWPLOHVWRQHV
During the initial planning process there was a full programme of consultation
events including exhibitions and workshops, to enable local people to see plans
and voice support and concerns, and to actively involve residents in the design
of the scheme. During the consultation for phase one, a Web site was set up to
make sure those unable to attend events could view proposals and provide
feedback on-line. We have spoken to local school children, asking what play
apparatus they would like to see in the park, as well as consulting sports clubs
on what pitches, facilities and equipment they require within the development.

Product range
We continue to offer a wide range of homes from apartments to ﬁve
bedroom houses, with prices ranging from under £100k to above
£500k. As in recent years, the majority of our home completions during
2011 were priced within a range from £100k to £200k.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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*HWWLQJWKHKRPHEXLOGLQJ
EDVLFVULJKW
7KH+DWKDZD\V6WUDWIRUGXSRQ$YRQ

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

:HKDYHXQGHUWDNHQH[WHQVLYHUHPHGLDWLRQDQGGHPROLWLRQZRUNRQWKLV
IRUPHUHJJSDFNLQJVWDWLRQDQGZHKDYHUHF\FOHGDOOPDWHULDOVJHQHUDWHGE\WKH
GHPROLWLRQSURFHVV8UEDQGHVLJQDWWKH+DWKDZD\VKDVIRFXVHGRQPDQ\RI
WKH%XLOGLQJIRU/LIHSULQFLSOHV6XVWDLQDEOHXUEDQGUDLQDJHSULQFLSOHVKDYH
EHHQDSSOLHGDFURVVWKHVLWHDQGZHDUHSURYLGLQJWZRVZDOHVIRUVXUIDFHZDWHU
GUDLQDJHDQGDWWHQXDWLRQ
3KRWRYROWDLFFHOOVDUHEHLQJLQVWDOOHGRQDQXPEHURIKRPHV VRODUSDQHOVIRU
WKHJHQHUDWLRQRIHOHFWULFLW\ 7KHDIIRUGDEOHKRPHVZLOODFKLHYH&RGHIRU
6XVWDLQDEOH+RPHVOHYHOWKUHHDQGPDQ\RIWKHKRPHVFRPSO\ZLWK/LIHWLPH
+RPHVVWDQGDUGV

The proportion of apartments in our private completions was
unchanged at 26%. The average square footage of our private
completions also remained broadly the same at 1,012 square feet
(2010: 1,015 square feet).
We have now completed the roll-out of our new housetype range.
These homes are designed to be high quality, extremely energy efﬁcient
and straightforward, cost effective and safe to build. They are also
extremely ﬂexible with different internal layouts and exteriors that can be
varied easily to complement local landscapes and streetscapes.
The housetypes are designed to meet speciﬁc space standards and
comply with Secured by Design principles (the nationwide initiative
intended to reduce crime through home and scheme design). They are
also capable of achieving Lifetime Homes standards of accessibility
and adaptability for changing lifestyles, where appropriate.

Getting the homebuilding basics right
Although our business model is fundamentally about land
development, all areas of our business have a role to play in delivering
the value that we create through the active management of our land
portfolio. We cannot achieve our ﬁnancial objectives without efﬁcient
homebuilding operations.

Health and safety
Financial Statements
p55-105

Health and safety remains our non-negotiable top priority. We have a
formal, comprehensive and fully integrated health, safety and
environmental (HSE) management system in place in the UK. We
update this system and associated procedures frequently to reﬂect
changes in legislation and best practice. Our aim is to continually
improve our HSE management year on year.
We have changed the basis of our Health and Safety key metric during
the year to the incident rate per 100,000 employees and contractors to
enable easier comparatives with industry benchmark data. The
previous basis was incident frequency rate per 100,000 hours worked.

Shareholder Information
p106-116

)DUULHU¶V*UHHQ6DQGEDFK
)DUULHU¶V*UHHQLVORFDWHGRQWKHHGJHRIWKHJUHHQEHOWDQGDGMDFHQWWRWKH
6DQGEDFK:LOGOLIH&RUULGRU±DQDUHDRIKDELWDWGHVLJQHGWRDOORZWKHIUHH
PRYHPHQWRIZLOGOLIHSRSXODWLRQV
:HDUHSURYLGLQJDGHGLFDWHGHFRORJ\DUHDERUGHUHGE\DQDWWUDFWLYHRSHQ
ERDUGHGIHQFHDQGQDWLYHKHGJHURZWRHQVXUHQRORVVRIKDELWDWRQVLWHDQGWR
VWLPXODWHORFDOELRGLYHUVLW\
:HDUHVHHGLQJWKHHFRORJ\DUHDZLWKDZLOGÀRZHUJUDVVWKDWLVQDWLYHWRWKH
ORFDODUHDDQGZKLFKZLOOJURZLQWRDQDWXUDOPHDGRZRYHUWLPH$SRQGZLWKD
QDWXUDOFOD\EHGZKLFKZLOOEHGHVLJQHGDVDKDELWDWIRUEUHHGLQJDPSKLELDQV
DQGLQYHUWHEUDWHVLVEHLQJSURYLGHG:DWHUORJJLQJWKHORZO\LQJJURXQGDURXQG
WKHSRQGZLOODOVRSURYLGHDQLGHDOKDELWDWIRUORFDOQDWLYHZHWODQGSODQWV

During 2011 we recorded an Annual Injury Incidence Rate (AIIR) of 378
in the UK (2010: 557), which is signiﬁcantly below the 2010/11 ‘All
Home Builder Rate’ of 552 declared by the Home Builders Federation
and the ‘Construction Sector Rate’ 2010/11 of 536 declared by the
Health and Safety Executive (HSE). We also recorded a reduction of
our number of reportable RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) injuries by 23% when compared
to 2010.
There were no HSE Enforcement Notices issued to any of our sites
within the UK for non-compliance with health and safety legislation.

Build costs and efficiency
Having achieved our target of a 10% reduction in private build costs
per square foot between the ﬁrst half of 2009 and the ﬁrst half of 2010,
we have retained our focus on build cost efﬁciency. We have achieved
further savings in 2011, with the full year average private build cost per
square foot reduced to £102 (2010: £106).
The majority of these savings relate to greater efﬁciency on site and
increased standardisation, with the underlying build cost environment
remaining broadly ﬂat.
In line with our focus on increasing our return on net operating assets,
we continue to control work in progress tightly. We aim to match our
build rate on each outlet to the sales rate being achieved and control
this through a management sign off process for the release of each plot
to construction. This focus continues to deliver beneﬁts and the
average value of work in progress per outlet at 31 December 2011
reduced to £2.2 million (2010: £2.4 million).

18

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

We are also committed to improving the water efﬁciency of the homes
that we build, for example using water-efﬁcient ﬁttings and appliances
as standard. From 2012 we will measure the water use of our sites,
ofﬁces and home plots before sale in order to monitor and identify ways
to further increase water efﬁciency.

7KH7D\ORU:LPSH\
&XVWRPHU-RXUQH\
7KH7D\ORU:LPSH\&XVWRPHU
-RXUQH\LVDVWDQGDUGVHWRI
SURFHGXUHVGHVLJQHGWRPDNHVXUH
RXUFXVWRPHUVKDYHWKHEHVW
SRVVLEOHH[SHULHQFHIURPUHVHUYLQJ
WKHLUKRPHDOOWKHZD\WKURXJKWR
DIWHUFDUHRQFHWKHVDOHLVFRPSOHWHG
7KLVLQFOXGHVUHJXODUPHHWLQJVZLWK
RXUVLWHPDQDJHUDQGVDOHVVWDII
ERWKEHIRUHDQGDIWHUFXVWRPHUV
PRYHLQWRWKHLUQHZKRPH
7KH&XVWRPHU-RXUQH\LV
FRQVLVWHQWO\DSSOLHGRQDOO8.
GHYHORSPHQWVDQGIRUPVWKHEDVLV
RIDFRPSUHKHQVLYHTXDOLW\
PDQDJHPHQWV\VWHPWKDWDOVR
HQVXUHVZHFRPSO\ZLWKWKH
&RQVXPHU&RGHIRUKRPHEXLOGHUV
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In 2011, we built 1,158 homes to Code for Sustainable Homes (CfSH)
level three (2010: 570) and 75 homes to Code level four (2010: nil). In
addition we built 1,037 homes to EcoHomes standards (the standard
that has now been replaced by CfSH) (2010: 923) including 114 to
EcoHomes Good (2010: 191), 463 to Very Good (2010: 524) and 460
to Excellent (2010: 208). We are working in partnership to build around
780 homes at Code level four at our Waterside Park regeneration
scheme in East London.

&DULQJDERXW
RXUFXVWRPHUV
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Reducing waste is not only a responsible course of action in terms of
protecting the environment, it also contributes towards reducing our
build costs. Our approach is to focus on keeping waste to a minimum
through the design of the products used when building homes,
separating and recovering as much material from the site as possible
(reuse and recycling or treatment), carefully considering options when
there are excess materials on a site, and keeping the amount of
materials that are sent to landﬁll to a minimum. We are committed to
continual improvement in waste reduction and have further reduced the
level of waste generated per 1,000 square feet built to 3.44 tonnes
(2010: 4.18 tonnes). We have reduced the amount of waste going to
landﬁll by 18% from 2010 and 53% since 2007.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Environment

Quality
We remain committed to delivering high-quality homes for all of
our customers.

Caring about our customers
Buying a home is a signiﬁcant ﬁnancial and emotional investment. We
aim to make buying, moving into and living in a Taylor Wimpey home
as easy as possible for our customers.

6DOHVPDQDJHPHQWWUDLQLQJ
.QRZQDVWKH7D\ORU:LPSH\6DOHV$FDGHP\ZHKDYHGHYHORSHGDQHZ
WUDLQLQJLQLWLDWLYHWKDWZLOOSURYLGHDPRGXODUDFFUHGLWDWLRQSURJUDPPH
FRYHULQJDQH[WHQVLYHUDQJHRIVDOHVDQGPDUNHWLQJUHODWHGDUHDVLQFOXGLQJ
HQYLURQPHQWDOVXVWDLQDELOLW\DQG&RPPXQLW\/HG3ODQQLQJLVVXHV2XUDLPLV
WRGHYHORSWKHPRVWNQRZOHGJHDEOHDQGFRPSHWHQWVDOHVDQGPDUNHWLQJWHDPV
LQWKHLQGXVWU\DQGWRGHYHORSDKLJKTXDOLW\DQGFRQVLVWHQWDSSURDFKWRWKH
UHFUXLWPHQWDQGRQJRLQJGHYHORSPHQWRIVDOHVVWDII

Sales and marketing
Sales strategy continues to be a key element of delivering value. We set
prices locally and make use of a range of targeted customer incentives
to deliver competitive offers in each local market.
Financing remains a key consideration for many of our customers, as
mortgage availability remains restricted. We support the government’s
FirstBuy initiative and have completed 173 homes under this scheme in
2011. Our remaining funding allocation will allow us to deliver
approximately 1,100 further completions under the scheme. We remain
sparing in our use of other shared equity incentives and welcome the
development of the government and housebuilder-backed NewBuy
mortgage indemnity guarantee scheme and MI New Home scheme in
Scotland. Although details have yet to be ﬁnalised, these schemes
have the potential to have a signiﬁcant positive impact on the level of
new home sales if sufﬁcient funds are made available at competitive
interest rates.
We continue to offer a wide range of other products to assist ﬁrst time
buyers, such as our ‘Friends & Family Advantage’ product and ‘Deposit
Match’ scheme. The ongoing success of our approach is reﬂected in
the consistently high proportion of our sales that are made to ﬁrst time
buyers, with a further increase to 30% in 2011 (2010: 29%).
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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We have made further progress on this commitment as measured
through our performance in the 2011 National House-Building Council
(NHBC) Pride in the Job Awards, which are based on build quality. Our
UK site managers won 65 Quality Awards (2010: 55), 18 Seals of
Excellence (2010: 17) and two Regional Awards.

UK Housing continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Optimising value
Augusta Park, Andover
Augusta Park is a 135 hectare site delivering 2,500 homes, of which 40% will
be affordable housing, along with land designated for a school. The site is made
up of a number of parcels with options held at a discount to open market value.
Payments are phased over three years.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

The site has been replanned to optimise value, phase one has been granted an
additional 19 homes outside the original outline planning. In addition, phase
WZRKDVEHHQLQFUHDVHGE\KRPHVZKLFKKDVDFKLHYHGDPRUHHI¿FLHQW
OD\RXWRIKRPHVJHQHUDWLQJDGGLWLRQDOUHYHQXHDQGSUR¿W9DOXHHQJLQHHULQJ
KDVLGHQWL¿HGVDYLQJVLQJURXQGZRUNVFRVWVZHKDYHUHYLHZHGDQGUHGXFHG
consultant fees and we have re-negotiated some of our trade price agreements.
7KLVYDOXHHQJLQHHULQJKDVUHVXOWHGLQVLJQL¿FDQWEXLOGFRVWVDYLQJVDQG
margin improvement.

Our potential customers are increasingly using the internet to research
their home purchasing decisions before visiting an outlet and our
marketing strategy reﬂects this ongoing trend. We continue to refocus
our marketing spend towards on-line rather than traditional media and
have doubled the organic trafﬁc to our Web site through enhanced
search engine optimisation.
The use of our on-line appointment system, which we launched in
August 2010, has grown over the course of 2011 and a total of
13,000 appointments were booked on-line during the year. We
continue to develop our use of social media such as Facebook
and Twitter and plan to launch our new Web site during 2012.

Customer satisfaction
Our aim is to offer homes that are aspirational for our target customers,
appropriately priced for each local market and to ensure that our
processes deliver the high standards of service that our customers
rightly expect. It is therefore extremely pleasing to report that our
externally measured customer satisfaction scores have increased
to 92.1% (2010: 87.1%).

Optimising value

Financial Statements
p55-105

We have delivered signiﬁcant value recovery and improvement over the
last four years through initiatives such as targeted build cost savings
and value engineering of sites. We have learned a lot through these
initiatives and have embedded this knowledge into our everyday
operations. Our focus going forward is to continue the momentum
in identifying and capturing enhanced value at all stages of the
development cycle, from planning to construction.

Kingshill Grange, High Wycombe
Shareholder Information
p106-116

Kingshill Grange has planning consent for 238 homes in a desirable location
with good transport links, excellent education provision and established
parkland. Contracts were exchanged in February 2006, with planning granted
in April 2008 and work starting on site in October 2009.
We have undertaken a number of initiatives over the life of the site to enhance
its value. These include: replanning 65 of the homes to increase the proportion
RIKRXVHVLQVWHDGRIDSDUWPHQWVDQGWRDGGFRQVHUYDWRULHVWRVRPHKRXVHV
FRQYHUWLQJWKUHHRQHEHGURRPDSDUWPHQWVLQWRWZREHGURRPDSDUWPHQWV
XSJUDGLQJWKHVWUHHWVFHQHUHWHQGHULQJGZHOOLQJVWUXFWXUHFRVWVLGHQWLI\LQJ
JURXQGZRUNVSHFL¿FDWLRQVDYLQJVDQGUHGHVLJQLQJWKHGUDLQDJHDQGURDGV
layout. As a result, we are achieving a higher margin on the site than the
original 2006 assessment despite the impact of the downturn.
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Our standard methodology is documented within our Operating
Framework, which enables us to deliver enhanced operating
efﬁciencies within a strong control environment. It also provides a
consistent base for the ongoing implementation of our new IT system.
This system is expected to deliver signiﬁcant savings through the
retirement of a number of legacy systems, as well as supporting
our focus on value improvement through improved management
information, reporting and analysis.
We review every site, both old and new, on a quarterly basis to ensure
that expected margins are being delivered and identify opportunities for
further improvement. These opportunities are then quantiﬁed, actions
identiﬁed and implemented, and the resulting margin improvement

UK Housing private development price mix
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Simply the best people
Our people are critical to our success and we ran 14 presentations
around the country in the second half of 2011 to communicate our
strategy to and receive feedback from our employees.

We continue to support the UK construction industry’s Construction
Skills Certiﬁcation Scheme (CSCS), which was set up to improve
quality, reduce accidents and provide evidence of workers’
occupational competence. A total of 98.2% of our workforce,
including sub-contractors, were CSCS carded at the end of
December 2011 (2010: 98.6%).

7KHDQQXDO3ULGHLQWKH-REDZDUGVUXQ
E\WKH1+%& WKH1DWLRQDO+RXVH
%XLOGLQJ&RXQFLO MXGJHH[FHOOHQFHLQ
VLWHPDQDJHPHQWDQGWKHFRPPLWPHQW
WREXLOGLQJKRPHVRIRXWVWDQGLQJ
TXDOLW\:HDUHGHOLJKWHGWKDWRIRXU
VLWHPDQDJHUVZRQ4XDOLW\$ZDUGV
ZHQWRQWRZLQ6HDOVRI([FHOOHQFHDQG
WZRRIWKHVLWHPDQJHUVUHFHLYHG
5HJLRQDO$ZDUGVLQ)RUWKH
VHFRQG\HDUUXQQLQJ0LNH&UDZIRUG
VLWHPDQDJHURI:DUOHLJK9LOODJHLQ
Mike Crawford, Site Manager of
3O\PRXWKZDVWKHUXQQHUXSLQODUJH
our Warleigh Village development
EXLOGHUFDWHJRU\RIWKH6XSUHPH
$ZDUGVIRUWKH8.¶VEHVWVLWHPDQDJHU in Plymouth.
$FFRUGLQJWRWKH1+%&&KLHI
([HFXWLYHDWWKHWLPH,PWLD])DURRNKL
³$3ULGHLQWKH-REDZDUGDWDQ\OHYHO
PDUNVWKHUHFLSLHQWRXWDVDWRS
SHUIRUPHU«0LNHLVDQH[HPSODU
LQKLV¿HOG´

*UDGXDWH0DQDJHPHQWDQG$SSUHQWLFHVKLSVFKHPHV
'XULQJZHUHFUXLWHGHLJKWQHZJUDGXDWHVIRURXULQWHQVLYHJUDGXDWH
SURJUDPPH2XUDLPLVWRHTXLSDPELWLRXVDQGGHWHUPLQHGQHZWDOHQWWREH
DEOHWRDFKLHYHGLUHFWRUVWDWXVZLWKLQD\HDUWLPHVFDOH7KHVFKHPHLVD\HDU
URWDWLRQDOSURJUDPPHZLWKJUDGXDWHVVSHQGLQJWLPHLQDOODUHDVRIWKHEXVLQHVV
EHIRUHWKH\FKRRVHWRVSHFLDOLVHLQRQHGHSDUWPHQW,QZHKDG
PDQDJHPHQWWUDLQHHVDQGQHZDSSUHQWLFHV7KLVPHDQVWKDWZHKDGD
WRWDORIDSSUHQWLFHVPDQDJHPHQWWUDLQHHVDQGJUDGXDWHVFKHPH
SDUWLFLSDQWVZLWKLQ7D\ORU:LPSH\DWWKHHQGRI

We saw a slight increase in employee turnover to 10% during 2011
(2010: 9%).

Current trading
The underlying housing market remains stable with robust homebuyer
conﬁdence and an ongoing undersupply of new housing. The
introduction of the ‘NewBuy’ mortgage guarantee scheme in the
coming weeks has the potential to improve the availability of mortgages
for ﬁrst time buyers, although the Stamp Duty exemption for ﬁrst time
buyers on properties valued at up to £250k is scheduled to end on
24 March.
The early weeks of trading in 2012 have followed the encouraging
patterns of the second half of 2011 and, as at 26 February 2012,
our order book had increased by 18% to £983 million
(31 December 2011: £835 million).

Our 2011 graduates at the Centrepoint Sleep Out in Central London along
with James Jordan, Group Legal Director and Company Secretary, and
Peter Andrew, Director of Land and Planning.
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We operate in diverse communities and believe that embracing this
diversity will enable us to succeed through a workforce that is inclusive,
creative and innovative. We introduced a new Diversity Policy in 2011
and have also been reviewing our recruitment practices with a view
to developing an increasingly diverse workforce.

1+%&3ULGHLQWKH-RE$ZDUGV

Financial Statements
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We continue to focus strongly on learning and development, updating
our Taylor Wimpey induction programme and extending our sales
induction programme during 2011. In addition, we continued our
Circle Management Training programme, which aims to improve the
leadership skills of our middle and senior managers. Over the course of
the year we recruited eight new graduates for our graduate programme
(2010: 6), 16 management trainees (2010: 8) and 40 new apprentices
(2010: 19).

6LPSO\WKHEHVWSHRSOH
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We continue to manage our land portfolio actively. Although we have
completed our initial replanning programme, we are continuing to
review the planning consents that we have across our land portfolio to
ensure that they deliver an optimal mix of homes to meet local market
demand and that the site is optimised for safe, efﬁcient, cost effective
and considerate development. We undertake land sales where we
feel that the price achieved delivers value and the land does not ﬁt
our strategy or is excess to our requirements in a particular
local market. Revenue from land sales totalled £23.4 million in
2011 (2010: £11.4 million) with an operating proﬁt* of £6.3 million
(2010: £6.7 million).

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

monitored. These opportunities range from replanning of sites, reducing
build costs from foundation design to landscaping, and adding value
to our homes through selective enhancements to our speciﬁcation.

Spain Housing
Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

'HVSLWHWKHRQJRLQJHFRQRPLFZHDNQHVVLQ6SDLQZH
KDYHGHOLYHUHGDUHWXUQWRRSHUDWLQJSUR¿WIRUWKH\HDUDQG
DFKLHYHGDQH[FHOOHQWFXVWRPHUVDWLVIDFWLRQUDWLQJ
Javier Ballester
Managing Director, Spain
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Order book volume as a percentage of completions
Owned and controlled plots with planning
Customer satisfaction
Health and safety (Spain)*

2011

2010

46.8%
1,668
100%
749

36.8%
1,783
92%
1,807

* Please note that the injury frequency rate for Spain equates to just two incidents in 2011 and three incidents in 2010.

Performance
Financial Statements
p55-105

As previously reported, we completed our exit from our Gibraltar
business in 2010, with no home completions from this market in 2011.
Market conditions remained tough throughout 2011, with mortgage
availability remaining restricted. This was of greater signiﬁcance for local
purchasers, as overseas purchasers looking to buy a second home
typically require lower levels of mortgage ﬁnance.
We completed 109 homes in Spain in 2011 (2010: 136) at an average
selling price of £238k (2010: £214k). The increase in our average selling
price reﬂects the exit from the Gibraltar market, where our ﬁnal
completions had been lower priced apartments.

Key market drivers
– &RQWLQXLQJRYHUVXSSO\RISURSHUWLHVRQ
PDLQODQG6SDLQ
– 2QJRLQJUHVWULFWLRQVRQPRUWJDJHDYDLODELOLW\
– (FRQRPLFXQFHUWDLQW\UHVXOWLQJLQUHGXFHG
FRQVXPHUFRQ¿GHQFH
– ,QFUHDVHGQXPEHURIWRXULVWVYLVLWLQJ6SDLQLQ

Shareholder Information
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Revenue in 2011 was £28.6 million (2010: £31.1 million), primarily
driven by the reduced number of completions. However, despite the
tough market conditions, we delivered an operating proﬁt* of £0.2
million, in comparison to an operating loss* of £3.6 million in 2010.
We remain very cautious in our approach to new land purchases and
have reduced the number of plots in our land portfolio further in 2011
to 1,668 (2010: 1,783). The Spanish business made a positive
contribution to the cash ﬂows of the Group in 2011.
Our year end order book was £10.4 million (2010: £10.8 million).
In addition to the improved ﬁnancial performance during the year, we
delivered improvements in both customer satisfaction and our health
and safety performance.

Los Altos del Golf, Camp de Mar, Mallorca

Current trading
Given the ongoing economic uncertainty in Spain and the wider Euro
zone, we expect 2012 to be another year of challenging market
conditions. However, 2011 saw an increase in the number of tourists
visiting Spain and this has the potential to beneﬁt second home sales.

* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs and
exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.
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:HVHHNWREHDUHVSRQVLEOHRUJDQLVDWLRQDQGWRPDNH
SRVLWLYHVRFLDOHQYLURQPHQWDODQGHFRQRPLFFRQWULEXWLRQV
WRWKHUHJLRQVLQZKLFKZHRSHUDWH

In addition to the achievements listed in the
UK Housing section on pages 14 to 21, we have:
– 'HYHORSHGDFRPSUHKHQVLYH&RPPXQLW\/HG3ODQQLQJ
VWUDWHJ\DQGWUDLQHGHPSOR\HHVLQDFWLYHOLVWHQLQJ
FRPPXQLFDWLRQDQGHQJDJHPHQWVNLOOV
– &RPPLWWHG PLOOLRQWRLQIUDVWUXFWXUHFRPPXQLW\
IDFLOLWLHVHGXFDWLRQDQGVFKRROVMREVEXVLQHVVHVDQG
VRFLDOKRXVLQJ
– 'RQDWHG NWRFKDULW\DQGFRQWLQXHGRXUH[WHQVLYH
LQYROYHPHQWZLWKDZLGHUDQJHRIFKDULWDEOHDQG
FRPPXQLW\RUJDQLVDWLRQV

During 2011 we developed an Energy and Carbon Strategy that has
identiﬁed signiﬁcant areas for annual energy and carbon cost saving
opportunities within Taylor Wimpey and our supply chain. We also
instigated a major review of the environmental practices of our ofﬁces,
site compounds and sales areas. In addition, we set up a working
group to identify further non-ﬁnancial metrics. The ﬁrst new metrics
that we have committed to measure are ofﬁce, site and plot water
use as well as soil to landﬁll.
Our executive incentive scheme continues to include an environmental
criterion, which applies to all UK, divisional and regional senior
management teams. A signiﬁcant element of incentive payment relates
to construction waste in order to encourage waste reduction and
improved resource use.
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Increasing environmental sustainability
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2011 highlights

Evaluating our progress
Priorities

Progress

Status

Targets for 2012



– Continue to focus on improving our approach to community
engagement.
– Further develop the ‘About Taylor Wimpey’ Web site.
– Introduce a Building For Life process to ensure that we build
increasingly sustainable homes and communities.

Our customers – Redesigned our customer Web site to provide signiﬁcantly



– Continue to focus on effectively delivering our Customer Journey
and improving customer service.
– Introduce the new signage into our sales centres.
– Continue to develop our new sales and marketing training before
launching it throughout the UK.

– Developed a community engagement framework for use on
all new developments.
– Reduced waste by 18% since 2010 and 53% since 2007.
more information for existing and potential customers.
– Developed new signage for sales centres including energy
efﬁciency and sustainability performance.
– Started to develop a major training programme for our
sales teams.

Our people

– Introduced new Diversity and Anti-Corruption policies, updated
our Protected Disclosure Policy.
– Ran our Circle Management Training and developed a coaching
and mentoring programme.
– Reduced our UK reportable RIDDOR injuries by 24% when
compared with 2010.



– Conduct a UK employee survey and undertake an audit of the
diversity of our employees.
– Introduce a major new health and safety training and awareness
initiative encouraging collective responsibility.
– Further reduce the number of RIDDOR reportable injuries by
5% in 2012.

Our partners

– Updated our Supply Chain policy.
– Engaged with suppliers to ensure safe delivery and vehicle
ofﬂoading at our sites.
– Worked in partnership with our 12 largest suppliers to reduce
packaging waste.



– Vet all suppliers in terms of health and safety to ensure they
still comply with our requirements.
– Introduce a zero tolerance policy on safe delivery and
vehicle ofﬂoading.
– Continue to work with our 12 largest suppliers on reducing
packaging waste.
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Our homes and – Launched ‘About Taylor Wimpey’, a Web site providing
extensive information for local government and communities.
communities

Visit our Corporate Responsibility Web site
for more details and to download a copy of
our Corporate Responsibility Report:
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/CorporateResponsibility
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Group ﬁnancial review
Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Group summary
The Group has made signiﬁcant progress with the disposal of the
North American business and strong operational performance
during 2011.
We have achieved:
t an increase of 80.6% in the continuing Group operating proﬁt*
compared to 2010(a);
t the disposal of the North American business for £731.9 million;
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t a reduction in the level of net debt to £116.9 million at the year
end; and
t a return on net operating assets** of 9.8% up from 5.3% in 2010.
The solid operational results and the proceeds from the sale of North
America have been used to reduce our net debt and re-invest in new
land opportunities, as well as refocus the capital structure with the
purchase of £85.4 million of the 10.375% Senior Notes in 2011.

Group results
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The Group has made
VLJQL¿FDQWSURJUHVV
ZLWKWKHGLVSRVDORIWKH
1RUWK$PHULFDQEXVLQHVV
DQGVWURQJRSHUDWLRQDO
SHUIRUPDQFHGXULQJ
Ryan Mangold
Group Finance Director

Group revenue from continuing operations in 2011 increased by
2.3% to £1,808.0 million in 2011 (2010: £1,767.7 million) from Group
completions of 10,289 (2010: 10,098). The small increases in revenue
and completions are reﬂective of the continuing stability in market
conditions in the UK during 2011 and our strategic focus on quality
of earnings ahead of volume.
Gross proﬁt from continuing operations of £287.7 million
(2010: £229.8 million) is up by 25.2% and reﬂects our continual focus
on prioritising margin ahead of volume growth. The gross proﬁt from
continuing operations includes a positive contribution of £99.6 million
(2010: £103.5 million), relating to realisation of written-down inventory
above its originally estimated net realisable value, where the
combination of slightly higher selling prices and cost improvements
through replans and cost reduction initiatives have exceeded our
original market assumptions. These amounts are stated before
the allocation of overhead excluded from the Group’s net realisable
value exercise.

Financial highlights
Adjusted earnings per share
– continuing Group

Tangible net
assets per share***

2.1p

57.3p

for 2011
(1.5p loss for 2011)

at 31 December 2011
(56.9p at 31 December 2010)

Net debt

Return on net
operating assets**

£116.9m

9.8%

at 31 December 2011
(£654.5m at 31 December 2010)

at 31 December 2011
(5.3% at 31 December 2010)

– 5HWXUQRQQHWRSHUDWLQJDVVHWVRI 
– *URXSRSHUDWLQJSUR¿W IURPFRQWLQXLQJ
RSHUDWLRQVLQFUHDVHGE\WR PLOOLRQ
– 8.IXOO\HDURSHUDWLQJPDUJLQ RI
 D
– 1HWGHEWUHGXFHGWR PLOOLRQDQGJHDULQJ
LQFOXGLQJODQGFUHGLWRUV KDVUHGXFHGWR
– 6DOHRI1RUWK$PHULFDQEXVLQHVVIRU PLOOLRQ
– 3HQVLRQGH¿FLWUHGXFHGWR PLOOLRQ
 PLOOLRQ

* Proﬁt on ordinary activities from continuing operations before ﬁnance costs and
exceptional items, after share of results of joint ventures.

*** Tangible net assets per share is deﬁned as net assets, excluding goodwill and
intangible assets, divided by the number of shares in issue at the period end.

** Operating proﬁt divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating assets,
which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances.

(a)
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2010 comparative excludes a one-off pension curtailment credit of £12.0 million
in the UK.
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UK Housing

We completed 109 homes in Spain (2010: 136) with no completions in
Gibraltar during 2011 following our exit in 2010. The average selling
price of these completions was £238k (2010: £214k). Revenue was
£28.6 million (2010: £31.1 million) and we recorded an operating proﬁt*
of £0.2 million (2010 loss: £3.6 million). The return to proﬁt for Spain
Housing, and continuing cash generation by the business, is a good
performance against a challenging market backdrop.

Disposal of North American business

Pre-exceptional ﬁnance costs from continuing operations totalled
£69.6 million (2010: £116.2 million), net of £3.7 million of interest
receivable (2010: £3.4 million).
Interest on borrowings was £52.3 million (2010: £85.2 million) with
the reduction reﬂecting the lower average net debt level of the Group
during 2011 of £540.9 million (2010: £667.5 million) due to disposal
of our North American business in July and lower cost of borrowing
following the reﬁnancing completed in December 2010.
Other items included in ﬁnance costs from continuing operations are
a net pension interest charge of £14.1 million (2010: £23.0 million),
a mark-to-market and foreign exchange gain on derivatives of
£1.0 million (2010 loss: £2.4 million), and a total imputed interest
charge for land creditors and other payables of £7.9 million
(2010: £9.0 million).

Exceptional items
The 2011 pre-tax exceptional items of £11.3 million include £5.5 million
relating to the premium to par value for the repurchase of £85.4 million
of the £250 million 10.375% Senior Notes due 2015 in 2011. We
repurchased £82.4 million of the Senior Notes as part of the tender
offer in September 2011 at a premium to par of 6.0% and a further
£3.0 million over the remainder of the year at an average premium
of 6.8%.
An exceptional charge of £5.8 million has been provided for the
Enhanced Transfer Value (ETV) exercise for the George Wimpey Staff
Pension Scheme (GWSPS), representing the enhancement and costs
related to the exercise that has completed in February 2012.
Further details of these exceptional items are set out in Note 5 to
consolidated
the consolidat
a ed ﬁnancial statements.
stat
a ements.

Group results
Completions
Revenue
Operating proﬁt/(loss)* (£m)
Operating margin*
Proﬁt before tax and before exceptional items (£m)
Exceptional items (£m)
Proﬁt before tax (£m)
Tax, including exceptional credit (£m)
Proﬁt for the year (£m)
Adjusted earnings per share (p)
Dividends per share (p)
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UK
Housing

Spain
Housing

10,180
1,779.4
173.2
9.7%

109
28.6
0.2
0.7%

Corporate

–
–
(13.9)
–

Consolidated

10,289
1,808.0
159.5
8.8%
89.9
(11.3)
78.6
(22.7)
55.9
2.1
0.38
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In July 2011, the Group completed the sale of its North American
business for £731.9 million. The North American business generated a
proﬁt after tax of £24.5 million, with a corresponding increase in net
assets, and contributed £8.9 million to the Group’s net operating cash
ﬂows in 2011 up to the disposal date. The disposal realised a total

Net ﬁnance costs

Financial Statements
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Spain Housing

Further details of discontinued operations are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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We completed a total of 10,180 homes in the UK in 2011 (2010: 9,962)
with revenues of £1,779.4 million (2010: £1,736.6 million) for an
average selling price of £171k (2010: £171k). The UK ﬁnancial
performance showed strong progression with a full year operating proﬁt
of £173.2 million (2010: £111.0 million(a)) representing a full year
operating margin* of 9.7% (2010: 6.4%(a)). For the second half of the
year operating proﬁt* was £97.6 million, an increase of £22 million over
the ﬁrst half of 2011, and the UK operating margin* increased to 10.1%
for the second half compared to 9.3% for the ﬁrst half of 2011. The UK
market was stable during 2011 and the performance of UK Housing
reﬂects the continued success of our strategy of prioritising margin
ahead of volume.

proﬁt from discontinued operations of £43.1 million after taking into
account an impairment of net assets of £24.0 million, transaction
costs of £16.5 million and recycling of foreign exchange reserves
for North America recorded in the cumulative translation reserves of
£59.1 million.
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Group operating proﬁt* from continuing operations increased by
£71.2 million, or 80.6%, to £159.5 million (2010: £88.3 million(a)) and
Group operating margin* rose to 8.8% (2010: 5.0%(a)) as a result of the
improved trading performance and a decrease in overheads following
the sale of North America and the Group becoming a UK focused
business. Group asset turn increased to 1.11 times in 2011
(2010: 1.06 times), although we continue to hold a longer than normal
land portfolio at this stage of the market cycle, in line with our strategy.
This results in an increase in the Group’s return on net operating
assets** of 4.5 percentage points to 9.8% (2010: 5.3%(a)).

Group ﬁnancial review continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
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Tax

Balance sheet and cash ﬂow

The Group incurred a pre-exceptional tax charge on continuing
operations of £24.2 million (2010: £31.3 million) which equates to an
underlying tax rate of 26.9% and recorded an exceptional tax credit of
£1.5 million due to the impact of the ETV costs incurred. During 2011
the UK government reduced the corporation tax rate by 2% which
resulted in a deferred tax asset write-off of £22.2 million which was
offset by recognition of additional deferred tax assets of £22.1 million
relating to previously unrecognised tax losses following another year of
proﬁtability (2010: £300.0 million).

Net assets at 31 December 2011 were £1.8 billion (2010: £1.8 billion)
which equates to a tangible net asset value per share*** of 57.3 pence
(2010: 56.9 pence). Gearing (including land creditors) at the year end
is 23% (2010: 56%) which is below our long term expectations of
30% to 40% through the cycle.

Earnings per share

Land creditors were £306.4 million at 31 December 2011
(2010: £369.2 million), with the decrease being due to the disposal
of the North American business. The use of land creditors remains a
useful tool for ﬁnancing land purchases, however we continue to use
them selectively due to our very low marginal cost of borrowings.
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The pre-exceptional basic earnings per share for continuing operations
are 2.1 pence (2010: 1.5 pence loss per share). The basic earnings per
share after exceptional items are 3.1 pence (2010: 8.1 pence).
Following the sale of our North American business in 2011, the
Group’s ﬁnancial position is now signiﬁcantly improved and, with net
debt of £116.9 million as at 31 December 2011, the Group’s balance
sheet is strong. This strength enables the Group to selectively acquire
the high-quality land necessary to deliver our stated strategy and
to drive value.

The Group has unrecognised potential deferred tax assets as at
31 December 2011 in the UK of £67.6 million (2010: £78.6 million)
and £24.7 million in other jurisdictions (2010: £29.8 million).

Financial Statements
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A key element of this strategy is the ongoing management of the
Group’s capital structure, operating structure and level of land
investment to maximise performance across the housing market cycle.
The Directors are committed to a more active approach to managing
the housing market cycle, in particular with respect to the Group’s
capital structure and balance sheet capacity. This strategy intends to
balance the capital requirements of the business and returning excess
capital to shareholders, whilst at all times maintaining balance sheet
strength and ﬂexibility.

The Group generated a cash outﬂow from operating activities of
£34.8 million in 2011 (2010: cash inﬂow £87.9 million) with the outﬂow
partly due to the £32.5 million one-off pensions contributions as part
of the disposal of the North American business. In the UK, net land
investment was £12.7 million (2010: net land sales of £160.8 million).
Work in progress remains tightly controlled with an average of
£2.2 million gross work in progress per outlet (2010: £2.4 million).

Dividend

Shareholder Information
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We intend shareholder returns to be in the form of both regular
maintenance dividend payments through the cycle and additional
returns where appropriate. The regular maintenance dividend payments
will be calculated with reference to the net asset value of the Group.
These dividends would be declared at the half year results and the full
year results in an approximate one-third/two-thirds split respectively.
It would be the intention of the Group to make additional returns to
shareholders based on the prevailing market conditions and the returns
available on alternative uses of the capital.
Given the current outlook in the UK housing market, and the strength
of the Group’s asset base, the Directors believe that it is appropriate
to commence dividend payments to shareholders at this time. This will
consist of a maintenance, ﬁnal dividend of 0.38 pence per share. This
represents the ﬁnal portion of a total dividend representing 1% of Net
Asset Yield.

Our priorities for 2012
– Ongoing focus on margin improvement and
return on net operating assets
– Drive additional overhead savings to further
improve operating margins
– Continue our review of options to reduce the
YRODWLOLW\RIWKHSHQVLRQVFKHPHGH¿FLW
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In total the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of £342.8 million
(2010: £371.6 million) of which £289.8 million (2010: £300.0 million)
relate to losses and £52.7 million (2010: £68.3 million) relate to
retirement obligations.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had mortgage debtors of
£66.5 million (2010: £54.9 million), the majority of which relates to
shared equity. We continue to use this as a selective selling tool.

The Group acquired £10.0 million of its own shares for future vesting
of share awards (2010: nil), representing 28.9 million shares.
Year end net debt levels reduced from £654.5 million in 2010 to
£116.9 million in 2011, a decrease of £537.6 million. This improvement
was mainly achieved by net proceeds from the sale of the North
American business of £562.3 million.

Treasury management and funding
All our debt facilities were reﬁnanced in December 2010 and we
entered 2011 with £1.3 billion of committed funding. Following the
disposal of our North American business we reduced our revolving
credit facility by £350 million, to £600 million and in September 2011
we successfully launched an open tender offer and purchased £82.4
million of our £250 million 10.375% Senior Notes at a premium of 6.0%
to nominal value. A further £3.0 million was purchased in December
2011 at an average premium to par of 6.8%.
The Group operates within policies and procedures approved by
the Board. These are set out in detail in Note 20 to the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements.
The Group has three sources of borrowings: £600 million of bank
ﬁnancing currently at a margin of 2.25%; a £100 million term facility
at a margin of 4.5%; and £164.6 million of 10.375% Senior Notes
due 2015. The average maturity across these sources of borrowings
is 3.2 years.
Taking into account term borrowings and committed revolving credit
facilities, the Group has access to committed funding of £864.6 million
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: £1.3 billion), with the ﬁrst £600 million
of revolving credit facilities maturing in November 2014.
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Derivatives and foreign currency borrowings are used to hedge our
foreign investments selectively in order to protect their Sterling value.
Interest rate derivatives, while not satisfying the strict requirements for
hedge accounting, continue to provide an economic hedge to the
volatility of interest costs.

Pensions
The IAS19 deﬁcit, which appears on the Group’s balance sheet,
is £208.2 million at 31 December 2011 (2010: £248.5 million). The
Company contributed a total of £84.9 million via deﬁcit recovery
contributions including a one off payment of £32.5 million following
the sale of the North American business.

Formal actuarial valuations of both of the Company’s main pension
schemes, the Taylor Woodrow Group Pension & Life Assurance Fund
(TWGP&LAF) and the George Wimpey Staff Pension Scheme
(GWSPS), as at 31 March 2010, were completed during February
2011. The results of these valuations are a deﬁcit of £264 million
relating to the TWGP&LAF (previous deﬁcit £163 million) and a deﬁcit
of £259 million relating to the GWSPS (previous deﬁcit £215 million).
Following the completion of the triennial valuation, the Group’s deﬁcit
reduction payments in respect of the TWGP&LAF are £22 million
per annum and the deﬁcit reduction payments to the GWSPS are
£24 million per annum. Both schemes are now closed to future accrual.
We continue to review and implement options to manage the volatility
of the pension deﬁcit actively. Each proposal is reviewed with the
respective pension trustees on behalf of the members prior to
consultation with the members.

The Group is planning for auto-enrolment in the UK and is comfortable
with its progress to date, with the Staging Date forecast to be August
2013. The Group has begun the communication process with senior
management and with regional employees, and is in the process of
engaging a prospective supplier.

Going concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position, are set out
in the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 6 to 13. The ﬁnancial position
of the Group, its cash ﬂows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in this Group Financial Review. In addition, Note
20 to the ﬁnancial statements includes details of the Group’s ﬁnancial
instruments, hedging activities and its exposure to and management
of credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Directors remain of the view that, whilst the economic and market
conditions continue to be challenging and not without risk, the Group’s
ﬁnancing provides both the necessary facility and covenant headroom
to enable the Group to operate within its terms for at least the next
12 months. Accordingly, the consolidated ﬁnancial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.
Further information on going concern and risks facing the Group is
contained in the Corporate Governance Report and Note 1 to the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

Accounting standards
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been produced in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
endorsed and adopted for use in the EU. The ﬁnancial statements are
also in compliance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. There have been no changes to International
Accounting Standards during 2011 that have a material impact
on the Group results.

Further details relating to the pension schemes of the Group are
presented in Note 21 to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
Implementation of the investment strategy, as agreed between the
Trustees and the Company, through the established joint investment
sub-committee is continuing. There has been an increase in the
allocation of Alternatives (opportunistic credit, active commodities and
emerging market debt), a restructuring of the equity portfolio and the
appointment of an LDI manager for the implementation of liability
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

Ryan Mangold
Group Finance Director
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The changes in actuarial assumptions resulted in a loss of £47.0 million
in the year, due to the decrease in discount rate of 0.50% per annum
leading to an increase in the liabilities, offset partially by the decrease in
the inﬂation assumption of 0.40% per annum for RPI and by 0.50%
per annum for CPI.

Existing employees of the Company are offered a Deﬁned Contribution
(DC) pension called the Taylor Wimpey Personal Choice Plan (PCP).
During 2011 this DC scheme was awarded the Pensions Quality Mark
Plus by the NAPF, acknowledging that the PCP contribution levels,
governance and communication meet the industry’s highest standard.

Financial Statements
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The Group is operating well within its ﬁnancial covenants and limits of
available funding. The Group does not require any additional funding in
the near future.

During the second half of 2011 the Group announced an Enhanced
Transfer Value (ETV) exercise for the GWSPS. The purpose of this
exercise is to allow deferred members of the GWSPS to transfer their
accrued pension liabilities and assets to another pension scheme.
To facilitate the transfer the Group offered a 15% incentive to the
participants of the GWSPS, of which a maximum of 5% could be
taken in cash. Approximately 14% of deferred members of the GWSPS
accepted the ETV offer, at a cost of £5.8 million to the Group, with
a net reduction in the funding deﬁcit of £8.0 million. We are currently
reviewing the launch of an ETV exercise for the TWGP&LAF scheme
in 2012 subject to regulatory guidance.
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The Group’s preference is to manage market risks without the use
of derivatives, but derivatives will be used where necessary and
appropriate to reduce the levels of volatility to both income and equity.
The use of such derivatives is strictly controlled and they are not
permitted to be used for speculative or trading purposes.

hedging and to release capital from bond assets to fund new
Alternative mandates. The basis of the hedging framework decreases
the interest and inﬂation sensitivity relative to each scheme’s liabilities.
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Year end net debt levels
reduced from £654.5 million
in 2010 to £116.9 million
in 2011.

Board of Directors & Group Company Secretary
Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

The strength and depth of our Board and senior
management adds value to the effective control
and leadership of the Company.
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Kevin Beeston

Pete Redfern

Ryan Mangold

James Jordan

Robert Rowley

Chairman

Chief Executive

Group Finance Director

Group Legal Director
and Company Secretary

Independent Non Executive
Director and Senior
Independent Director

Appointed to the post of
Chairman in July 2010,
Kevin chairs the Nomination
Committee and is a member
of the Remuneration
Committee. He was
appointed Chairman of
Equiniti Group Limited in
September 2011. Kevin is
also a Non Executive Director
of IMI plc and chairs two
private businesses:
Partnerships in Care Group
Limited and Domestic &
General Limited. He was
formerly Chairman of Serco
Group plc.

Appointed as a Director and
to the post of Chief Executive
in July 2007 upon the merger
of George Wimpey Plc with
Taylor Woodrow plc. Pete is a
member of the Nomination
Committee. In addition he
has full day-to-day
operational responsibility for
the UK Housing division. Prior
to the merger he was Group
Chief Executive of George
Wimpey Plc and before that
successively held the posts
of Finance Director and
Chief Executive of George
Wimpey’s UK Housing
business. He is a Trustee
of the homelessness
charity Crisis.

Ryan was appointed as a
Director and to the post of
Group Finance Director in
November 2010 having
previously held the post of
Group Financial Controller
since April 2009. Before
joining Taylor Wimpey,
Ryan was Group Financial
Controller of Mondi Group
for ﬁve years, prior to which
he held a number of senior
ﬁnance roles with the Anglo
American plc group
of companies.

Appointed Group Legal
Director and Company
Secretary on 21 July 2011,
James, a solicitor, was
previously Group Company
Secretary and General
Counsel of George Wimpey
Plc from February 2002 and,
since the merger, of Taylor
Wimpey plc. Before joining
the Group, James held senior
legal and company secretary
roles in industry which
included positions with
The Rugby Group Plc and
English China Clays Plc.

Appointed as a Non Executive
Director in January 2010
and as Senior Independent
Director in April 2010, Rob
is Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member
of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He
was previously a Director of
Reuters Plc, Deputy Chairman
of Cable and Wireless plc and
a Non Executive Director of
Prudential plc and Taylor
Nelson Sofres plc. He is a
Non Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit
Committee of both Capital
Shopping Centres Group
plc (formerly Liberty
International plc) and
Moneysupermarket.com
Group PLC.
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Board tenure
Chairman
Independent Non Executive Directors
Q Executives
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Board composition

< 1 year
1-4 years
Q > 4 years

Q

Q

Q

Q
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Anthony Reading
MBE

Mike Hussey

Kate Barker CBE

Independent Non
Executive Director

Independent Non
Executive Director

Independent Non
Executive Director

Independent Non
Executive Director

Appointed as a Non
Executive Director in
July 2007, Brenda is a
member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees.
She is a member of the
House of Lords and is active
in a number of public areas,
including the House of Lords
Appointments Commission.
Brenda is Chairman of the
New Covent Garden Market
Authority and a Partnership
Director of National Air Trafﬁc
Services. Previously Brenda
was a Non Executive Director
of George Wimpey Plc prior
to its merger with Taylor
Woodrow plc in July 2007
and a Non Executive Director
of Dawson Holdings PLC.

Appointed as a Non
Executive Director in
July 2007, Tony is Chairman
of the Remuneration
Committee and a member
of the Audit and Nomination
Committees. He was
previously a Director of
Tomkins Plc and Chairman
and Chief Executive of
Tomkins Corp. USA, a Non
Executive Director of Spectris
Plc and was a Non Executive
Director of George Wimpey
Plc prior to its merger with
Taylor Woodrow. He is a Non
Executive Director of Laird Plc
and e2v Technologies plc.

Appointed as a Non
Executive Director on
1 July 2011, Mike is a
member of the Nomination
Committee. He is Chief
Executive of Almacantar,
a private property investment
and development company
which he founded in
February 2010, and a Trustee
of Photographers Gallery
Limited. He has held
a number of senior roles
in the property sector, most
recently as an Executive
Board Director of Land
Securities plc, prior to which
he was head of Leasing and
Marketing for Canary Wharf
Group plc, a partner at
Knight Frank, Chairman
of the Regeneration and
Development Committee
of the British Property
Federation and a Trustee
of LandAid, the property
industry charity.

Appointed as a Non
Executive Director on
21 April 2011, Kate is a
member of the Audit and
Nomination Committees. She
is a business economist and
is presently a Senior Adviser
to Credit Suisse and a Non
Executive Director of Electra
Private Equity plc and the
Yorkshire Building Society.
Previously, Kate was a
member of the Bank of
England’s Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) from 2001
until May 2010. During this
period, she also led two
major policy reviews for
Government, on housing
supply and on land use
planning. Before joining the
MPC she was Chief
Economic Adviser at the CBI.
Kate was awarded a CBE
in 2005 for services to
social housing.
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Audit Committee
Current members:
Rob Rowley
(Committee Chairman),
Kate Barker and
Tony Reading.
For more information
see pages 35 and 36
Nomination Committee
Current members:
Kevin Beeston
(Committee Chairman),
Kate Barker, Brenda Dean,
Mike Hussey, Tony Reading,
Pete Redfern and
Rob Rowley.
For more information
see pages 34 and 35
Remuneration Committee
Current members:
Tony Reading
(Committee Chairman),
Kevin Beeston,
Brenda Dean and
Rob Rowley.
For more information
see pages 35 and 39
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Baroness Dean
of Thornton-le-Fylde

Corporate Governance
Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

The Board takes corporate governance
very seriously. This Report explains
the processes in place for the delivery
of long-term success, compliance and
shareholder value.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Dear shareholder
In line with recent best practice, I am pleased, for the ﬁrst time, to
open the Corporate Governance Report with a personal statement
from me on the Company’s approach to corporate governance. The
Board takes corporate governance very seriously and this has been
demonstrated over many years, with full compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) and its predecessor versions.

Financial Statements
p55-105

This Report therefore sets out and explains in clear terms the processes
in place which are essential for the delivery of long-term success whilst
ensuring that we comply with all applicable laws and regulations as well
as, of course, meeting the requirements of our shareholders and their
representative bodies.
In addition, this Report explains what your Board of Directors actually
does and describes how it is responsible for setting the values of the
Company, ensuring that the Company is run in the best interests of
our shareholders and other stakeholders, and how it interacts with its
shareholders in explaining the Company’s strategic goals and
performance against them.

Shareholder Information
p106-116

During 2011 we have carried out our ﬁrst comprehensive externally
facilitated independent evaluation of the Board. More detail including
the process is set out on pages 33 and 34. This process complied
with the new requirements of the Code to have the exercise carried
out externally once every three years. The exercise was carried out
in good spirit and with the full support of the Board.
The Board welcomed Lord Davies’ review of women on boards and
endorsed his recommendations. As recommended by the review, I was
pleased to make a statement in the Half Year Results announcement
conﬁrming our approach to diversity both generally and with regard to
gender. Although the Board will continue to appoint on merit we
recognise that boards will generally perform better when they include
top quality people from a range of backgrounds and perspectives.
Following the sale of our North American business, the Board consists
of nine Directors two of whom are women (22%) and we will aspire
to maintain at least this level of diversity going forward consistent
with our past practice. During the year the Board approved a
Diversity Policy which can be found on the Company’s Web site:
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/CorporateResponsibility/Policies.
During 2011 the Board was refreshed, with Andrew Dougal and
Katherine Innes Ker standing down as Non Executive Directors
at the 2011 Annual General Meeting, and the appointments of
Kate Barker and Mike Hussey as Non Executive Directors. The
Executive composition of the Board also changed with Sheryl Palmer
standing down following the sale of our North American business
which was completed in July 2011, and James Jordan’s appointment
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to the Board as Group Legal Director and Company Secretary in
July 2011. Going forward, diversity will be a key consideration when
contemplating the refreshment of the Board as it was in the changes
made to the Board over the past year.
The Board now enters a new phase in its development as we have
become a focused primarily UK developer and housebuilder with a
very clear strategy. Consistent with the 2011 AGM all Directors will be
subject to election or re-election at the 2012 AGM – this is now a
requirement of the Code and we complied with it ahead of schedule
last year. Biographical details of each Director can be found on pages
28 to 29.
A key part of my role as Chairman of the Board is to ensure that the
Board retains an appropriate level of independence in order to allow
the Non Executive Directors to challenge the Executive constructively
whilst also supporting them to implement the strategy and run the
business effectively. Another key part of my role is to ensure that the
Board has the right blend of skill, independence and knowledge.
Turning to our Committees, the Nomination Committee has been
involved in not only refreshing the Board but also ensuring that
succession plans are in place or being developed for all key positions
throughout the Company and this is something which also came out
of the 2011 evaluation of the Board. Our Remuneration Committee
has carried out a detailed root and branch review of our remuneration
policy at all levels within the organisation and further details are set
out in the Remuneration Report on page 39. The review was not
speciﬁcally aimed at Executive Directors and changed little at this
level but where it has resulted in changes we have consulted with our
major shareholders. The Audit Committee has continued to focus on
risk management and it is very important that we continue to monitor
closely our exposure on risks which could impact upon the future
prospects of the Company. In addition to its regular compliance
and review role the Audit Committee has speciﬁcally focused on
emerging risk or regulation, including the Bribery Act and our own
internal systems upgrades.
I look forward to meeting with many of you at the Annual General
Meeting on 26 April 2012 and as always, along with all of your
Directors, remain available to answer your questions at any time.
Yours sincerely

Kevin Beeston
Chairman
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company complied
with all the provisions of the Code as updated by the Davies Report
and with the provisions of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
on Audit Committees and Corporate Governance Statements
(DTR 7). The Company also met the Association of British Insurers
(‘ABI’) guidance that companies should comply with the Supporting
Principle to Code Provision B.6 (Board Diversity) in the current
reporting year. The Code is publicly available at www.FRC.org.uk.

The Board and its Committees

Operational management of the Company’s business is undertaken
by the Chief Executive who receives advice from the Group
Management Team (‘GMT’). The GMT is the most senior executive
committee and in addition to the Chief Executive, consists of the
Group Finance Director, the Group Legal Director and Company
Secretary, the Group HR Director, the Land and Planning Director
and the two UK Housing (‘UKH’) Divisional Chairmen.
The Board also receives regular reports and minutes from the
Treasury Committee, which was established during the year under
the chairmanship of the Group Financial Director, and comprises
the Group Legal Director and Company Secretary, the Group
Treasurer and a UKH Divisional Chairman. The key activities of the
Treasury Committee are, broadly, to monitor and keep under review
the Group’s ﬁnancial risks, ﬁnancial policies, ﬁnancial facilities and
covenant compliance.

Our Board and Committee Structure

Audit
Committee
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Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee
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The Board met on nine occasions during 2011. Directors make
every effort to attend all Board and applicable Committee
meetings, as evidenced by the attendance records over several
years. Where, exceptionally, a Director is unable to attend a
meeting, it is Board policy that the Chairman and/or the Group
Legal Director and Company Secretary (the ‘Secretary’) will, as
soon as possible, brief the Director fully on the business transacted
at the meeting and on any decisions that have been taken. In
addition, the views of the Director are sought ahead of the meeting
and conveyed to those attending the meeting by the Chairman
and/or the Secretary as appropriate. Details of the attendance of
each Director at Board and Committee meetings are set out in the
tables on pages 32, 34 and 35.

As also set out in our 2011 Corporate Responsibility Report, the
Board is fully committed to providing a safe place in which our
employees and sub-contractors can work and to high standards
of environmental management. The Board receives detailed reports
on health, safety and environmental matters at each Board meeting
in respect of the Company’s operations in the UK and Spain.

Financial Statements
p55-105

The role of the Independent Non Executive Directors is to offer
advice and guidance to the Executive Directors, using their wide
experience in business and from their diverse backgrounds. They
also provide a constructive challenge, scrutinising the performance
of the Executive Directors and satisfying themselves as to the
integrity of the ﬁnancial information made available both to the
Board and to the shareholders. The Non Executive Directors also
play an important part in the appointment or removal of Executive
Directors and in general succession planning for the Board and
other top executive positions immediately below Board level.

The Board also deﬁnes the Company’s values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and other
stakeholders are clearly understood and met. The Board is led
in these respects by the Chairman, who ensures that the Board
operates correctly, sets its culture and, by extension, the culture
of the Company in its operations and its dealings with
all stakeholders.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

As at the date of this Report, the Board consists of nine
Directors, namely: the Chairman, three Executive Directors and ﬁve
Independent Non Executive Directors. Their names, responsibilities
and other details appear on pages 28 to 29. Changes to the
composition of the Board since 1 January 2011 are set out on
page 51.

The Board discharges its responsibilities by providing strategic
and entrepreneurial leadership of the Company, within a framework
of controls and a culture of openness and transparency, which
enables opportunities and risks to be assessed and managed.
It sets the Company’s strategic aims, ensures that the necessary
ﬁnancial and human resources are in place for the Company to
meet its objectives and reviews management performance.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Statement of compliance

Corporate Governance Report continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

The following documents are available for review on the Company’s Web
site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations/CorporateGovernance:

Taylor Wimpey plc Board
Kevin Beeston
Chairman

t schedule of matters speciﬁcally reserved for the decision of
the Board;
t terms of reference of the Board Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration, which outline their objectives and responsibilities and
which deﬁne a programme of activities to support the discharge of
those responsibilities; and

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

t Board policies covering operational, compliance and stakeholder
matters, which have been reviewed in detail during the year and
updated to reﬂect developments in corporate governance (such
as the adoption of our Diversity Policy in response to the Davies
Report), changes in legislation (such as the Bribery Act 2010, which
came into force during 2011) and revised processes (to respond
to changes in the Group during 2011).

Number of meetings in 2011

9

Directors

Attendance

Financial Statements
p55-105
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Kevin Beeston
Chairman
Pete Redfern
Chief Executive
Ryan Mangold
Group Finance Director
James Jordan (a)
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
Rob Rowley
Senior Independent Director
Kate Barker (b)
Independent Non Executive Director
Brenda Dean
Independent Non Executive Director
Mike Hussey (c)
Independent Non Executive Director
Tony Reading
Independent Non Executive Director
Andrew Dougal (d)
Former Director
Katherine Innes Ker (e)
Former Director
Sheryl Palmer (f)
Former Director
(a) Appointed 21/07/2011. Attended ﬁve
meetings as Group Company
Secretary and, following his
appointment to the Board, four
meetings as Group Legal Director
and Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Secretary. The Board has an established procedure whereby
Directors may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense where they judge it necessary to do so in
order to discharge their responsibilities as Directors.

(b) Appointed 21/04/2011
(c) Appointed 01/07/2011
(d) Resigned 21/04/2011
(e) Resigned 21/04/2011
(f) Resigned 20/07/2011

9
9
9
9
9
6
9
4
9
3
3
5

The Board took detailed advice during the ﬁrst half of 2011 from
J.P. Morgan Cazenove (our joint broker) (‘JPMC’), J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. (a US investment bank) and HSBC Bank (Canada)
with regard to the sale of the Group’s North American businesses,
which was legally completed on 13 July 2011.
Advice was also provided to the Board by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘PwC’) on the details of an
Enhanced Transfer Value offer made to certain members of one
of the Company’s pension schemes.
The Board also receives at each meeting a report from JPMC on
the sector and the relative performance of the Company’s share
price. JPMC also attended the Board during the year in order to
provide a detailed presentation on the UK market.
All businesses and employees are expected to operate at all times
to the highest standards of integrity and conduct in all matters
concerning the Group. Accordingly, there is a Code of Business
Conduct, which sets out the standard for individual dealings both
internally and externally. Formal policies have been adopted, which
set out the ethical framework within which all Taylor Wimpey
companies are required to undertake their business. During the year,
a policy approved by the Board on anti-corruption was implemented
in order to ensure compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 by all
employees, relevant third parties and the Company itself. These
policies are available for review on the Company’s Web site
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations/CorporateGovernance.

Board and Committee balance, diversity,
independence and effectiveness
It is the Company’s policy, in line with the Code, that the
composition of the Board, proposed appointments to the Board,
and succession planning, are each founded primarily on merit,
judged against objective criteria, whilst also having due regard
to the beneﬁts of diversity, including gender, age, experience and
thinking. The Board also recognises its responsibility to comply
with the recommendations of the Davies Report and included,
in its 2011 Half Year Results, a statement from the Chairman that
it will aspire at least to maintain the current level of representation
of women on the Board (two out of nine, representing 22%
of Directors).
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Once the Company has more detailed information on the types
and extent of various forms of diversity around the Group, it will
then consider where recruitment, training and career development
work is necessary with a view to ensuring that there is a suitable
recruitment pool at all levels from which to increase diversity,
where appropriate.

At the AGM, Mike Hussey and James Jordan, who were appointed
as Directors since the last AGM, will stand for election to the Board
in accordance with the Articles. All of the other Directors (including
Kate Barker who was appointed to the Board immediately prior to
the last AGM and subsequently elected at the AGM itself) will stand
for re-election to the Board in accordance with the Code.
Details of the resolutions to be proposed in this respect and
supporting biographical details of the Directors appear in the
Notice of Meeting on pages 106 and 110-111.
The Board has reviewed and re-afﬁrmed that it considers each
of the Non Executive Directors to be independent in character and
judgement and that there are no relationships which could affect
the Director’s judgement.
The Chairman, at the time of his appointment on 1 July 2010,
met the independence criteria as set out in the Code.
In addition, and in line with the Code, the Chairman and the
Senior Independent Director, independent of each other, hold
meetings with the Non Executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present.

Board and Committee roles and responsibilities

Performance evaluation of the Board,
its Committees and other functions

Shareholder Information
p106-116

The Company’s plans and progress in implementing its diversity
policy will be benchmarked against its peers and appropriate
targets will be set against which progress will be measured and
monitored by the Nomination Committee and the Board.
The work of each of the Board Committees (Nomination,
Remuneration and Audit) is described later in this Report.
The Board has an established framework of delegated ﬁnancial,
commercial and operational authorities, which deﬁne the scope and
powers of the Chief Executive and of operational management.

The 2010 Board evaluation was reported on in detail in last year’s
Report and one of the action points which came out of that was
the need to maintain an ongoing review of Board composition
including refreshment. This has been achieved as follows:

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive have been clearly deﬁned, set out in writing and signed
by Kevin Beeston and Pete Redfern in line with the Code.

t Andrew Dougal resigned as a Director on 21 April 2011 after
a long and distinguished period of service on the Board as an
Independent Non Executive Director;

In order to assist Directors in complying with their duty to avoid
conﬂicts (or possible conﬂicts) of interest, the Board must ﬁrst give
its clearance to such potential conﬂicts of interest (which would
include directorships or other interests in outside companies and
organisations) and an entry is then made in the statutory register
which the Company maintains for this purpose.

t Katherine Innes Ker resigned as a Director on 21 April 2011 after
a long and distinguished period of service on the Board as an
Independent Non Executive Director;

Whenever any Director considers that he or she is, or may be,
interested in any contract or arrangement to which the Company
is or may be a party, the Director gives due notice to the Board in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s
Articles of Association. In such cases, unless allowed by the
Articles, any Director with such an interest is not permitted to
participate in any discussions or decisions relating to the contract
or arrangement.
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The Board has adopted a policy on diversity which is available on
our Web site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk. Going forward, the Company
plans to adapt its payroll systems in order to measure and monitor
diversity around the Group more effectively. Currently (in addition
to Board diversity referred to above) there is one woman out of
seven on the GMT below the Board (14%) and one woman out
of 24 Regional Managing Directors (4%). Across the Group the
Company employs approximately 1,150 women representing
32% of the workforce.

One of the new Main Principles introduced by the Code is that
every Director should seek election or re-election, as appropriate,
at each year’s Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’). Accordingly, at the
AGM to be held on 26 April 2012 (and at each subsequent AGM),
every Director, irrespective of the date of his or her appointment
and the length of his or her service on the Board, will be submitted
for election or re-election, as appropriate. This follows the process
that was implemented for the 2011 AGM.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

The Nomination Committee also guides the Board in regularly
assessing whether the Board has the correct balance of expertise
and in arranging orderly succession planning for appointments to
the Board and in respect of senior management across the Group.
As part of this process, management below Board level is regularly
provided with access to the Board, including the opportunity to
attend Board Meetings in order to give presentations on specialist
topics and project work.

The Board undertakes a regular review of each Director’s interests,
if any, outside of the Company and currently remains satisﬁed that
in line with the Code, all Directors are able to allocate sufﬁcient time
to the Company to enable them to discharge their responsibilities
as Directors effectively. Where there are outside commitments, the
Board is satisﬁed that they do not detract from the extent or quality
of time which the Director is able to devote to the Company.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

The Nomination Committee, which is composed of a majority of
Independent Non Executive Directors, oversees on behalf of the
Board the identiﬁcation, assessment and selection of candidates
for appointment to the Board. The Committee has a formal,
rigorous and transparent process against objective criteria. Typically
the process of appointment, prior to the decision of the Board, will
include the engagement of recruitment consultants, interviews with
all members of the Board and the taking up of detailed references.

t Kate Barker CBE was appointed as an Independent Non
Executive Director on 21 April 2011;
t Mike Hussey was appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on 1 July 2011;
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Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

t Sheryl Palmer, the President and CEO of the Group’s North
American businesses, resigned as a Director on 20 July 2011
following the sale of those businesses; and

Nomination Committee
Reports directly to the Taylor Wimpey plc Board

t James Jordan was appointed as Group Legal Director and
Company Secretary on 21 July 2011 having been Group Company
Secretary and General Counsel of the Company since 2007, and
previously held the same position with George Wimpey Plc.

Kevin Beeston, Chairman
Number of meetings in 2011
Members

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54
Financial Statements
p55-105

The 2011 evaluation process took the form of a detailed
questionnaire prepared by Egon Zehnder covering all aspects
of the Board and its Committees, which each Director completed
on a conﬁdential non-attributable basis. This was then followed
by a meeting between each Director and representatives from
Egon Zehnder to go through the responses to the questionnaire
and to discuss each Director’s views on the Board, the Board
Committees and individual Directors.

Shareholder Information
p106-116

As part of the process, the Chairman received comments on each
Director from Egon Zehnder, following which he liaised directly with
each individual Director to discuss the feedback on them from
the exercise. Similarly, the Senior Independent Director received
comments from each Director via Egon Zehnder on the Chairman,
which he then reviewed with the Chairman.
Following completion of the exercise, Egon Zehnder formally
presented their main ﬁndings and conclusions to the Board.
The review also conﬁrmed the ongoing independence of
character and judgement of each Non Executive Director.
The report from Egon Zehnder was further reviewed by the
Board and unanimously approved.
The 2011 Board evaluation and feedback from Egon Zehnder
focused on a number of appraisal areas including: the balance
of skills, experience and knowledge on the Board; information
ﬂows; the level of entrepreneurial leadership; strategy and the
effectiveness and leadership of the Board Committees (i.e. the
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees).
The overall feedback from Egon Zehnder on the Board as a team
was very positive including, the balance of the Board due to its
diversity of skills and the Board’s resilience, energy and openness.
Following receipt of the report and presentation of it from Egon
Zehnder the Board then separately reviewed each speciﬁc
appraisal area in detail and agreed actions where necessary –
these include continuing the general refreshment of the succession
planning process including with regard to the senior management
teams, the improvement of reporting to the Board in certain deﬁned
areas and arranging for additional time to be devoted by the Board
on strategy and risk related matters. The agreed actions will
be kept under regular review by the Board.
34

Attendance

Kevin Beeston
Kate Barker (appointed 21/04/2011)
Brenda Dean
Mike Hussey (appointed 07/07/2011)
Tony Reading
Pete Redfern
Rob Rowley
Andrew Dougal (resigned 21/04/2011)
Katherine Innes Ker (resigned 21/04/2011)

The 2010 Board evaluation also highlighted a small number of
other action points – all of which have been addressed – namely
to improve further the overall Board process (including the need
to enhance the overall Group succession planning processes),
to provide additional information to the Board with regard to certain
operational matters and to increase the number of specialist topics
and presentations to be considered by the Board.
It is a requirement of the Code that, from 2011, the evaluation
process be externally facilitated at least every three years. The
2011 evaluation was overseen by an external facilitator, Egon
Zehnder International Limited, a specialist in the assessment
of top-level management resources. Egon Zehnder provides
no other services to the Company.

2

2
2
2
0
1
2
2
0
0

Main Objective
To ensure there shall be a formal, rigorous and transparent
process for the appointment of new Directors to the Board, its
Committees and to other senior roles and to ensure effective
succession planning processes across the Group.

Information and professional development
The Company has procedures whereby newly appointed Directors
(including Non Executive Directors) receive a formal induction. This
includes training and continuing familiarisation with the Company’s
business, operations and systems, the principles underlying the
discharge of their duties as Directors and wider issues relating to
the housing sector.
All Directors visit Group operations on a regular basis, engaging
with employees at all levels in order to foster and maintain an
understanding of the business. Board visits are arranged each
year to operations in both the UK and elsewhere within the Group.
In 2011, in addition to individual visits, the Board visited operations
in the Taylor Wimpey West London region over a three day period
during which regional presentations and formal Board and
Committee meetings took place, as well as site visits.
During 2011, a total of 14 presentations took place across the
country, which were attended by staff from all the Company’s
Business Units, at which the Chief Executive and other senior
management presented the Company’s strategy ﬁrst hand. This
was a very successful exercise and was very well received by the
Company’s workforce.
The Group Legal Director and Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Board and its Committees and he attends all
meetings. It is Board policy that wherever possible a formal agenda
and written reports are issued to Directors in respect of all Board
and Committee meetings one week prior to the meeting, in order
to allow sufﬁcient time for detailed review and consideration
beforehand. Formal minutes are prepared in respect of all Board
and Committee meetings and are then circulated and submitted for
approval at the next meeting. The Secretary provides regular
brieﬁngs to the Board on regulatory and governance matters which
are included as part of his formal regular reporting to the Board.
The Chairman, Chief Executive and the Secretary meet sufﬁciently
in advance of each Board meeting in order to ensure action points
from previous meetings have been implemented and to prepare the
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Audit Committee

Reports directly to the Taylor Wimpey plc Board

Reports directly to the Taylor Wimpey plc Board

Tony Reading, Chairman
Number of meetings in 2011
Members

Rob Rowley, Chairman
Number of meetings in 2011

4
Attendance

4
4
4
4
2

3
Attendance

Rob Rowley
Kate Barker (appointed 21/04/2011)
Tony Reading
Andrew Dougal (resigned 21/04/2011)

Main Objective

To establish and maintain formal and transparent procedures
for developing policy on executive remuneration and for agreeing
the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
executives and to monitor and report on them.

To assist the Board in fulﬁlling its corporate governance
responsibilities relating to the Group’s internal control
framework, internal audit process, risk management,
ﬁnancial reporting practices and external audit process.

agenda and matters to be covered at the next
and at future Board and Committee meetings as appropriate.

developing policy on executive remuneration and agreeing the
remuneration packages of individual Directors, none of whom
is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Board Committees and their work
Nomination Committee

The Committee met on two occasions during the year to consider,
amongst other things, the appointments of the Directors appointed
to the Board during 2011. Details of the attendance of each
Director are set out in the table on page 34.

Remuneration Committee and remuneration
The Board’s policy and approach to the setting of remuneration
for Directors and senior executives and the activities of the
Remuneration Committee are described in detail in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 50. The Committee is
constituted in accordance with the Code and its members are
set out above.
The levels of remuneration are considered by the Committee to
be sufﬁcient to attract, retain and motivate Directors and other
senior management of the quality required to run the Company
successfully, without being excessive. A signiﬁcant proportion of
Executive Directors’ remuneration is linked to rewarding corporate
and individual performance and there is linkage to effective risk
management. There is a formal and transparent procedure for
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Audit Committee and auditors
The Committee is chaired by Rob Rowley. All members of the
Committee are Independent Non Executive Directors as required
by the Code. The Board has determined that Rob Rowley, who
currently chairs the Audit Committee at both Capital Shopping
Centres Group plc and Moneysupermarket.com Group PLC, has
recent and relevant ﬁnancial experience as required by the Code.
The Chairman of the Company and other Non Executive Directors,
the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Head of Internal Audit
and other senior executives attend Committee meetings by
invitation. Deloitte LLP is also invited to attend Committee
meetings. The Committee also meets privately with representatives
from Deloitte LLP during at least two Committee meetings per
annum, which normally take place around the time of the Full
and Half Year ﬁnancial statements, in order to discuss any matters
which the auditors may wish to raise without any Executive
Directors (other than the Secretary) being present.
During the year the Audit Committee met on three occasions.
Details of the attendance of each Director are set out in the table
above. The meetings around the Full and Half Year results
are typically also attended by the other Non Executive Directors.
The Committee’s remit includes reviewing the internal control
framework, the internal audit process, risk management, the
ﬁnancial reporting practices, the external audit process and
recommending to the Board whether to re-appoint the external
auditors. It ensures that the Board regularly assesses business
risks including their management and mitigation. In doing so, the
Committee places reliance on regular reports from executive
management, Internal Audit and the external auditors. In monitoring
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The Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and is
composed of a majority of Non Executive Directors as required by
the Code. Its members are set out in the table on page 34. As set
out earlier in this Report, the Committee has procedures in place
with regard to maintaining a formal, rigorous and transparent
process for Board appointments, ensuring that appointments
to the Board are made on merit and assessed against objective
criteria. It guides the Board in regularly assessing whether there
is a correct balance of expertise, reviewing progress towards
compliance with the Davies Report and wider diversity
considerations, and in arranging the orderly succession for
appointments to the Board and in respect of senior management
across the Group. A description of how appointments are typically
made to the Board is set out on page 32.

The Committee is chaired by Tony Reading and consists of three
Independent Non Executive Directors and also the Chairman of the
Board. During the year the Remuneration Committee met on four
occasions and details of the attendance of each Director are set
out in the table above.

Financial Statements
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Main Objective

3
2
3
1
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Tony Reading
Kevin Beeston
Brenda Dean
Rob Rowley
Katherine Innes Ker (resigned 21/04/2011)

Members

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Report: Business Review
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the ﬁnancial reporting practices the Audit Committee reviewed
accounting policies, areas of judgement, the going concern
assumptions and compliance with accounting standards and
the requirements of the Code. During the year the Committee
reviewed, prior to publication, the Full and Half Year ﬁnancial
statements and other statements affecting the Group concerning
price sensitive information as necessary.

External auditor
Deloitte LLP are the Company’s external auditor and will be
proposed for re-appointment at the 2012 AGM. Their performance
is kept under regular review by the Board and the Audit Committee.
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The Deloitte partner responsible for the Company’s external audit
has acted in this capacity for three years, which is within the ﬁve
year maximum period set out in the Smith Guidance, and there
are no contractual restrictions on the Company’s selection of its
external auditor.

Appointment of the auditor for non-audit services
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The Audit Committee has approved a policy on whether to employ
the external auditor to provide services other than audit services.
This policy requires that there should be a competitive tender
process – except in narrowly deﬁned circumstances where it is
considered that, based on conﬁdentiality, past knowledge and
other commercial reasons, there is an advantage in using a single
tender procurement procedure.

the Audit Committee. The Chief Executive, the GMT
and senior management consider the reviews on a regular basis
and are responsible for ensuring that improvements are made,
where required.
The Internal Audit function also reviews proposed related party
transactions, such as purchases by executives from Group
companies, to ensure proper procedures are followed and that
such procedures are undertaken in accordance with the formal
policy in place.
An independent formal evaluation of the Internal Audit function was
carried out on behalf of the Audit Committee during 2011 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. It appraised Internal Audit against seven
key areas, based on leading practice in the internal audit area and
relating to the housebuilding industry. The ﬁnding of their report
was that Internal Audit is operating effectively.
A number of initiatives were introduced during 2011 to ensure
the Company’s Internal Audit function meets current best practice.
An Internal Audit Charter codiﬁes the aims, modus operandi and
outputs of internal auditing; a rolling schedule of business
improvements identiﬁed during internal audits is monitored against
action taken by the businesses, with progress reviewed by the
Audit Committee; and the performance of the Internal Audit team
has been externally and independently appraised.
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t bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records
or ﬁnancial statements;

The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive and the other Executive Directors. A database of audit
recommendations and improvement initiatives is maintained.
Follow-up processes ensure that such improvements are
implemented in a timely manner.

t internal audit outsourcing services;

Risk Management and Internal Control

t the provision of advice on large Information Technology
systems; and

The Group has established an ongoing process of risk
management and internal control applying principle C2 of the
Code. The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the system
of internal control, which has been designed and implemented to
meet the requirements of the Group and the risks it encounters.

The Committee has determined that the following assignments
should not be undertaken by the auditors:

t services connected with valuation, litigation support, legal,
recruitment or remuneration.
The Board is satisﬁed that this policy is conducive to the
maintenance of auditor independence and objectivity. During the
year the external auditor undertook non-audit work primarily related
to key project work particularly in relation to the sale of the North
American businesses.
The Audit Committee is satisﬁed that the carrying out of this
work would not impair the independence of the external auditors
and recognises that from time to time, there is a clear commercial
advantage based on cost and timetable requirements in using
the Company’s auditors. As a result of a reduction in the overall
level of major strategic corporate level project work, the level of
non-audit services work signiﬁcantly reduced from £2.8m in 2010
to £1.2m in 2011.

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function reviews the effectiveness and efﬁciency
of the systems of internal control in place to safeguard the assets,
to quantify, price, transfer, avoid or mitigate risks and to monitor the
activities of the Group in accomplishing established objectives.
Internal Audit reports are provided to the Executive Directors,
indicating improvements proposed or made where appropriate,
and summaries of these reports are provided to the Board and
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Internal Control is managed according to a framework which
consists of clearly deﬁned processes and objectives which are
assigned to individuals. This framework deﬁnes the way the
Company operates and how it is managed on a day-to-day basis.
In the Group (UK) this is achieved through an established Operating
Framework supported by functional manuals covering the main
disciplines. Compliance with policies, processes and procedures
is required to ensure business effectiveness and efﬁciency (see
Management on page 37). Every employee is required to comply
with Group policies and speciﬁc responsibilities and accountabilities
are identiﬁed at each process level, yet the governance framework
supports and encourages, individual and team initiatives. The
control framework in place establishes procedures to identify,
evaluate and manage signiﬁcant risks faced by the Group. These
procedures manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The successful management of risk is essential to enable the
Group to deliver on its strategic priorities. The risk management
framework consists of risk registers at all organisational levels
which detail the risk faced by the Group, its operating companies
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At its half year and year end meetings the Board reviewed the risk
proﬁle of the Group and the mitigating factors identiﬁed with the
signiﬁcant risks. At the year end meeting in February 2012 following
the annual review by the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
internal controls and a formal half year assessment of risk, which
included a detailed risk assessment by the GMT, the Board
completed its annual assessment of risks for the year end
31 December 2011. The key risks affecting the Group were
identiﬁed and agreed with the Board together with processes for
their elimination or mitigation and actions required to reduce the
likelihood of each risk to the Company and the Group.

Budgets are re-examined in comparison with business forecasts
throughout the year to ensure they are sufﬁciently robust to
reﬂect the possible impact of changing economic conditions
and circumstances. The Chief Executive and the Board
conduct regular reviews of actual results and future projections
with comparison against budget and prior year, together with
various treasury reports. Disputes that may give rise to signiﬁcant
litigation or contractual claims are monitored at each meeting
of the Board with speciﬁc updates on any material developments
or new matters.
The Group has clearly deﬁned policies, processes and procedures
governing all areas of the business, which will continue to be
reviewed and reﬁned in order to meet the requirements of the
business and changing market circumstances. Deﬁned authority
limits continue to be closely monitored in response to prevailing
market conditions. Any investment, acquisition or signiﬁcant
disposal of land requires detailed appraisal and is subject to
approval by the Board or the Chief Executive, depending
on the value and nature of the investment or contract.
There is a clearly identiﬁable organisational structure and a
framework of delegated authority approved by the Board within
which individual responsibilities of senior executives of Group
companies are identiﬁed and can be monitored. These activities
are reinforced through process compliance and other audits
conducted by Internal Audit.
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In compliance with the Code, the Board regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control in providing
a responsible assessment and mitigation of risks. The Board’s
monitoring covers all controls, including ﬁnancial, operational,
compliance and assurance controls which include risk
management. This process is based principally on reviewing
reports from management to consider whether signiﬁcant risks are
correctly managed and controlled as part of managing the Group’s
operations. The Board is assisted in the assessment of risks by the
Audit Committee’s review of risk management procedures for
appropriateness and effectiveness (see Audit Committee remit
page 35). Throughout 2011 and into 2012 the Audit Committee
continued to assess the Group’s risk management and internal
control framework by reviewing the business change issues and
Internal Audit activities across the Group.

As mentioned on page 34, following approval by the Board of
the new Group Strategy which was announced on 19 September
2011 the Strategy was communicated to all employees through
a programme of presentations carried out at business units
around the Group.

The annual employee performance appraisal process is
objective-based, with individual objectives cascaded down from
the appropriate business objectives. Reviews identify training
needs to support achievement of objectives.

A detailed review of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group is set out in the Business Review: Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on pages 12 to 13.
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The Board oversees the risk and control framework of the Group
and the Chief Executive is responsible for implementing any
necessary improvements with the support of the GMT. In line with
our report last year and consistent with the Code, the Board
increased the frequency of its formal risk reviews to half yearly
and the GMT conducts a more detailed review as part of the
business planning process.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing and reviewing
strategic plans for the Group and the annual budgetary process.
These are subject to formal approval by the Board.
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This methodology requires each risk identiﬁed to be assessed and
ranked according to a risk matrix which accounts for the likelihood
and impact of each risk. The risks identiﬁed are assessed for
potential effect on the Company’s short and long term value.
The completion of risk registers is iterative and refreshed on an
ongoing basis. The risk registers feed into a formal half yearly risk
assessment that identiﬁes the principal risks (see pages 12 to 13)
and allows the Board to re-evaluate the identiﬁed strategic risks
facing the Group.

Management
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and the central service teams. The registers identify key operational
and ﬁnancial risks while strategic risks are identiﬁed as part of the
business planning process although it is expected that strategic
risks will be included on risk registers. The risk registers take into
account the signiﬁcance of environmental, social and governance
matters of the Company and use a standardised methodology for
the assessment of risk.
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Whistleblowing

Going concern

The Group’s whistleblowing policy is supported by a clear process
that includes an externally facilitated hotline through which any
person, including employees of the Company, may, in conﬁdence,
raise concerns about possible improprieties in ﬁnancial reporting,
other operational matters or inappropriate personal behaviours in
the work place. All whistleblowing cases are investigated by the
Head of Internal Audit, Group Health and Safety Director (where
appropriate), Group Human Resources Director and/or the
Secretary depending on the nature and seriousness of the issue.
Whistleblowing incidents and their outcome are reported to the
Audit Committee. Whistleblowing is a standing item on each Audit
Committee agenda which allows the Committee to regularly review
the adequacy of the policy in line with its requirement to do so
under the Code. During the year a number of initiatives took place
to raise the proﬁle of the whistleblowing service.

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis and on a historical cost basis except as
otherwise stated in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 61 to 95.

Relations with shareholders
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The Board actively seeks and encourages engagement with major
institutional shareholders and other stakeholders and supports the
new initiatives set out in the Code and the Stewardship Code
which aim to foster a more pro-active governance role by major
shareholders. The Board has put in place arrangements designed
to facilitate contact about business, governance, remuneration and
other issues. This provides the opportunity for meetings with the
Chairman, the Senior Independent Director as well as the Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Legal Director and
Company Secretary and other executives, in order to establish a
mutual understanding of objectives. The Company also operates
a structured programme of investor relations, based on formal
announcements and publications covering the full year and half
year results. During the year, the Company arranged an Investor
Day which was attended by both potential investors and existing
shareholders and provided an opportunity for the Company to give
a number of presentations including an update on its strategy.

The Taylor Wimpey plc Group’s (the ‘Group’) business performance
and position, along with the signiﬁcant factors that are likely to
inﬂuence its future activities are set out in the Chief Executive’s
Review on pages 6 to 13.
The Group has recorded proﬁts in the current year and has
signiﬁcantly reduced its drawn debt facilities, partly due to the
disposal of the North America business. The Group is still reliant
on external debt ﬁnancing and has to meet all the covenant
measures included in its debt facilities. The Group has also
prepared forecasts, with certain sensitivities, for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of signing these ﬁnancial
statements, and as such the Directors are satisﬁed that, whilst
market conditions have stabilised, there continues to be certain
risks, including mortgage availability and weakened demand due to
market environment. However, the Directors are satisﬁed that the
Group will be able to continue to operate within the available
ﬁnancing facilities for at least the next 12 months from the date
of signing these ﬁnancial statements.
Accordingly the consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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All Directors receive formal reports and brieﬁngs during the year
about the Company’s investor relations programme and receive
detailed feedback through surveys, direct contact and other
means, through which they are able to develop an understanding
of the views of major shareholders about the Company.
The Board encourages all shareholders to participate in the Annual
General Meeting, which is attended by all Directors. Shareholders’
attention is drawn to the Notice of Meeting on page 106 which sets
out details of the rights of shareholders in connection with the
notice of, and participation in, general meetings of the Company.
Information about the Company, including full year and half year
results and other major announcements, and additional information
about shareholder facilities, is published on the Company’s Web
site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk
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Remuneration Report

Consistent with past practice, the Committee has engaged in a
dialogue with key institutional investors and shareholder representative
bodies with regard to Director level remuneration and in particular on
some adjustments to the long term incentive plans, short term incentive
and salary, all of which is covered later in the report. As in previous
years, the Committee has taken into account the feedback which it
has received and is very grateful for the constructive engagement.

The Committee has followed the principles of good governance relating
to Directors’ remuneration as set out in the Main Principles, Supporting
Principles and Code Provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the ‘Code’) relating to remuneration. The Committee has reviewed and
taken into account a number of governance related developments and
guidance issued during the year including the remuneration guidelines
and guidance issued by the Association of British Insurers (‘ABI’)
and RREV.
Key developments during the year included the following:
t the carrying out of a wide-ranging review of the reward structure
across the business;
t as part of the Board’s desire to increase the levels of share ownership
in the Company by employees, the decision to introduce from 2012
an opportunity for employees (not included in the executive short
term incentive arrangements) to receive an enhanced bonus if they
elect to take the award entirely in shares and agree to hold them for
twelve months;
t the maintenance of the all-employee share plans (the Taylor Wimpey
save as you earn plan and the share incentive plan) which are
designed to encourage and enable employees to acquire shares
in the Company on favourable terms;

As set out later in the report, we have also made some adjustments
to the long term incentive plan in order to ensure the targets remain
aligned with the Company’s strategy but without changing the
overall structure or challenging nature.
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The long term philosophy for remuneration has remained one which
is focused upon attracting, developing and retaining leaders who are
focused and incentivised to deliver the Company’s business priorities
and strategy, all within a framework which is aligned with the interests
of the Company’s shareholders.

t further extending revised share ownership guidelines below
the level of the Group Management Team in order to increase
the alignment of interest between our senior executives
and shareholders;
t the introduction, during 2012, of a ‘Land Value Plan’ for
designated key executives (below Executive Director level)
which is designed to reward enhancement in returns on land
development; and
t expanding the concept of clawback of short term incentives
for executives principally in the event of a material misstatement
of the Company’s accounts.
As part of the 2011 remuneration review, the Committee also
took the opportunity to review the remuneration of the Executive
Directors, although that was not the main objective of the review.
The Committee concluded that the remuneration should remain
largely unchanged for 2012 and therefore the maximum bonus will
remain capped at a maximum of 130% of salary with 25% of any
payment again being required to be deferred into shares in the
Company for three years with no matching.
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I am pleased to be able to take this opportunity in my capacity as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee to summarise the ongoing
policies of the Committee and the work that has been carried out
during 2011, which, as set out in last year’s Remuneration Report,
included a detailed review of the Company’s remuneration at all levels
across our businesses. The main outcomes of the review are
summarised brieﬂy below and did not result in any material changes
proposed at Executive Director level.
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Dear shareholder
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The aim of our remuneration policy is
to attract, develop and retain leaders
who are focused and adequately
incentivised to deliver outstanding
business results.

Turning to salaries, Pete Redfern and James Jordan will this year
receive the standard staff increase of 2.5%. Ryan Mangold, who
was promoted to Group Finance Director in November 2010, will
receive an increase of 8.5%. This level of increase reﬂects the fact
that upon appointment, Ryan Mangold’s salary was acknowledged
by the Committee to be below market level and, as disclosed to
shareholders last year, subject to performance and other factors,
the Committee expects to bring his salary up to a mid market
level in 2013.
The Committee believes that it has developed a remuneration
structure that will both support and motivate our senior team whilst
aligning them both to the Company’s strategic objectives and to
achieving long term growth for our shareholders. I hope that you
will be able to support the Committee’s policy at this year’s Annual
General Meeting.
Yours sincerely

Tony Reading
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Introduction
The role of the Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’) is to
recommend to the Board a strategy and framework for remuneration
for Executive Directors and senior management in order to attract
and retain leaders who are focused and incentivised to deliver the
Company’s business priorities within a remuneration framework
which is aligned with the interests of our shareholders.
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The Committee has adopted the principles of good governance relating
to Directors’ remuneration as set out in the Code which applied to the
Company from 1 January 2011. The Company also complied with the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and regulations thereunder
(the ‘Regulations’).
The Regulations require that the Company’s auditors report to
shareholders on certain parts of this report and state whether in their
opinion those parts of it have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Regulations. Accordingly, the Report has been divided into
separate sections consisting of unaudited and audited information.
A resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company on 26 April 2012 (‘AGM’). Details
of the resolution and its status as an advisory vote are set out on
page 107 and page 112 respectively.
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This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board.
The Company’s remuneration policy and practices are kept under
regular review by the Committee which consults with the Company’s
major shareholders and their representative bodies as appropriate.
During 2011, the Company conducted a thorough Remuneration
Review across all levels of its business. The main objective of the
review was to ensure that the remuneration arrangements support the
remuneration strategy as outlined in this report. Details of the outcome
of the review are set out later in this report and were reviewed by the
Committee in detail.
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Detailed information on the application of these remuneration
policies during 2011 and during 2012 to the date of this report, is
set out below.

Part 1: Unaudited information: Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee has clearly deﬁned terms of reference
which are available on the Company’s Web site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk.
The key remit of the Committee is to recommend to the Board the
remuneration strategy and framework for Executive Directors and
senior management in line with the Code and related investor
guidance. Within this framework the Committee’s main responsibilities
are to:
t establish and maintain formal and transparent procedures for
developing policy on executive remuneration and for ﬁxing the
remuneration packages of individual Directors, and to monitor
and report on them;
t determine the remuneration, including pension arrangements,
of the Executive Directors;
t monitor and make recommendations in respect of remuneration
for the tier of senior management one level below that of the Board;
t approve annual and long term incentive arrangements together
with their targets and levels of awards;
t determine the level of fees for the Chairman of the Board; and
t select and appoint the external advisers to the Committee.
40

The Committee currently comprises three Independent Non Executive
Directors and the Chairman of the Board. Tony Reading is the
Committee Chairman and he chaired the Committee throughout the
year. The other members of the Committee are Kevin Beeston, Brenda
Dean and Rob Rowley. Membership of the Committee is in line with
the Code.
Katherine Innes Ker was a member of the Committee until she stood
down from the Board on 21 April 2011.
Details of attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings held
during 2011 are set out in the table on page 35.
No Director or other executive is involved in any decisions about
his/her own speciﬁc remuneration.

Advice to the Committee
The Committee keeps itself fully informed on developments and best
practice in the ﬁeld of remuneration and it seeks advice from external
advisers when appropriate.
The Committee appoints its own independent remuneration advisers
and during the year it continued to retain the services of New Bridge
Street (an Aon Hewitt company). New Bridge Street’s ultimate parent
company is Aon Corporation (following the merger between Aon and
Hewitt) and is a trading name of that organisation.
New Bridge Street provides no other services to the Company. The
wider Aon Corporation group of companies provides insurance broking
and pension administration support services to the Company and the
Committee is satisﬁed that the provision of such services, which existed
prior to the above mentioned merger, does not create any conﬂicts
of interest.
The Committee also receives legal advice from Slaughter and May
as and when necessary.
Advice was also provided to the Board by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP (‘PwC’) on the Enhanced Transfer Value (‘ETV’) Offer which was
offered to the majority of deferred members of the George Wimpey
Staff Pension Scheme on 2 August 2011. The Offer consisted of a
pension enhancement of 10% of the transfer value, plus a further 5%
enhancement on the transfer value, which the member could either
elect to take as a cash lump sum or as a further pension lump sum. It is
anticipated that around 14% of the eligible membership will accept the
Offer. Approximately £36.3m of liabilities have been removed from the
Scheme on a Valuation basis, with a corresponding deﬁcit reduction of
£8.0m (£46.1m on a Buyout basis). The Company also proposes to
run a similar ETV exercise for deferred members of the Taylor Woodrow
Group Pension and Life Assurance Fund in 2012.
In line with the statement that was included in last year’s Remuneration
Report relating to fees, and also reﬂecting recent best practice
guidelines, the fees paid to the Committee’s main adviser – New Bridge
Street – in 2011 were £137,000 (2010: £74,000) representing a full
year’s appointment. On behalf of the Committee, New Bridge Street
were closely involved in the 2011 remuneration review.
The Chief Executive, Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
and the Group Human Resources Director attend Committee meetings
by invitation only but are not present for any discussions that relate
directly to their own remuneration.

Remuneration policy
A key part of the Committee’s role is to ensure that the remuneration
of Executive Directors and senior management is aligned to the
Company’s strategic objectives as set out earlier in this Annual
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2011 Remuneration Review
During 2011, the Committee undertook a comprehensive review
of remuneration across the Group and for all levels of employee.

CEO

The key ﬁndings of this review were:

UK Based Directors

t the remuneration framework is considered to be competitive
and operates within a structure that is ﬁt for purpose;
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Other Executive Directors

t the share ownership guidelines for senior executives required
updating for current circumstances and could be widened;
40
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The Committee’s remuneration strategy continues to ensure that a
signiﬁcant percentage of the overall package of Executive Directors
and senior management remains at risk.

t the balance of remuneration linked to longer-term performance
should be increased for some employee groups;
t the Company could do more to encourage employees to become
shareholders, although the two all-employee share schemes are
a very positive start; and
t improving the level of ﬂexibility and choice in the reward package
would help support and motivate a diverse employee population.
As a consequence of the review, the Company has updated its
shareholding requirement and has launched a number of initiatives in
2012. These include: the ability for many employees not participating in
the executive short term incentive arrangements to elect to take their
performance payment in shares rather than cash; the introduction of
the Land Value Plan; improvements to the company car scheme; and
a number of new ﬂexible and voluntary beneﬁts.
The exercise was considered very useful and the Committee intend
to undertake a similar review on a three yearly basis, as set out in last
year’s report.
The Remuneration Committee reviews the base salaries of Executive
Directors annually in order to ensure that they remain competitively
aligned with external market practices and are competitive when
measured against FTSE peers.

In line with the Association of British Insurers’ (‘ABI’) Guidelines on
Responsible Investment Disclosure, the Remuneration Committee
ensures that the incentive structure for Executive Directors and senior
management will not raise environmental, social or governance (‘ESG’)
risks by inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour. More generally,
the Committee under its terms of reference may, where it considers
appropriate, take ESG matters into account when considering the
overall remuneration structure. The Committee considers that no
element of the remuneration arrangements will encourage inappropriate
risk taking or behaviour by any executive.

t the level of pay awards across the rest of the business; and

Subject to Board approval and provided that such appointments fall
within the general requirements of the Code (and do not give rise to
any conﬂict issues which cannot be managed by the Board), Executive
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Base salary

With all packages substantially geared towards share incentive
schemes and performance, the Committee believes that the pay and
beneﬁts of its Executive Directors and senior management adequately
takes account of reward versus risk. The chart above shows the
proportion of ﬁxed to performance based remuneration for 2012. Fixed
remuneration comprises base salary. Performance based remuneration
comprises an annual short term cash incentive and, for the CEO and
other Directors, a long term incentive plan. The chart illustrates the mix
of remuneration assuming that target levels of short term incentive
arrangements and the annualised expected value of long term
incentive provision are met.

External non executive director positions
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Report. It is, of course, key that the Company is able to attract and
retain leaders who are focused and also appropriately incentivised to
deliver the Company’s strategic objectives within a framework which
is aligned with the interests of the Company’s shareholders. This
alignment is achieved through a combination of deferral into shares
of a percentage of the short term incentive arrangements for
Executive Directors, shareholding requirements and also via retention
requirements which apply to any shares that vest under long term
incentive plans including the new Land Value Plan – details of these
requirements are set out later in this Remuneration Report on page 45.
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Directors are permitted to take on non executive positions with other
companies. Executive Directors are permitted to retain their fees in
respect of such positions. During 2011 and up to the date of this
Report, no Executive Director held any relevant non executive positions.

Proportion of ﬁxed to performance-based
remuneration (%) (2012)

When the Committee considers base salaries, it seeks independent
advice from New Bridge Street and takes into account the following:
t the performance, role and responsibility of each individual Director;
t the economic climate, general market conditions and the
performance of the Company;
t salary levels in comparably-sized companies and other major
housebuilders.
With effect from 1 April 2012, and in line with the general increase
awarded to all staff (subject to a small number of exceptions), the
Committee has decided to award Pete Redfern and James Jordan
an increase of 2.5%.
Ryan Mangold: in last year’s report it was reported that following his
appointment to the role of Group Finance Director in November 2010
his salary had been increased to £285,000 (£292,125 with effect from
1 April 2011) which is below the Committee’s assessment of a mid
market salary for this role. It was also reported that the Committee
expected to increase his salary to a mid market level over time.
Accordingly, based on Ryan Mangold’s increased experience and
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performance, the Committee has awarded an increase of £24,831
(8.5%) with effect from 1 April 2012 and subject to ongoing
performance intends to make a further similar increase in 2013 with a
view to achieving an appropriate mid market base salary position.
There was no further salary increase implemented for James Jordan
when he joined the Board on 21 July 2011.
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The Committee acknowledges the revised ABI and RREV remuneration
guidelines and guidance and believes that whilst undertaking
comparator reviews is important as a point of reference for determining
the appropriate salary for speciﬁc roles, it does not undertake salary
comparisons simply to apply a median position. The Committee is also
aware of the multiplier effect that increasing base salary has on overall
remuneration packages.

employment for the full period in order for vesting to take place.
This deferral is designed to further align the interests of Directors
with shareholders.
The STIA has a clawback mechanism which the Committee reviewed
during the year as part of the Remuneration Review, such that it now
applies to all participants (rather than to Executive Directors only) and
allows the Company to claw back bonuses (and not just deferred
elements) in the event of a material misstatement of the Group’s
accounts and also now for other deﬁned reasons.

Pete Redfern

£735,437

For 2011, the Committee measured performance against each
individual performance target (the 2011 performance targets were
based upon a number of measures including PBIT, cash performance,
ROCE, order book, build costs, customer services, the achievement of
strategic objectives/successful debt reduction and waste tonnage)
which has resulted in a payment to the Executive Directors of 81.9% of
their maximum STIA potential, of which 25% is required to be deferred
into shares for three years, as described above. Some of the 2011
performance targets were met in full whereas others such as those
relating to cash performance, ROCE and order book were partially met.

James Jordan
Ryan Mangold

£341,453
£316,956

The amounts paid to Pete Redfern, Ryan Mangold and James Jordan
in respect of 2011 are set out in the remuneration table on page 47.

Reﬂecting the above increases of 2.5% for Pete Redfern and James
Jordan and 8.5% for Ryan Mangold, the salaries of the Executive
Directors effective from 1 April 2012 are as follows:
Name

Amount
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Salaries are paid monthly and in cash via bank transfer.

Other beneﬁts, including beneﬁts-in-kind
The Executive Directors receive additional beneﬁts which include
an expensed Company-provided car or a cash allowance in lieu,
life assurance and private medical insurance. Beneﬁts-in-kind are
not pensionable.
Details of the pension arrangements in place for Executive Directors
are set out later in this report.

Short term incentive arrangements (‘STIA’)
Shareholder Information
p106-116

The Company operates performance related STIAs based on achieving
annual stretching performance targets.
The maximum STIA opportunity for Executive Directors is set at
150% of base salary. However, in 2009 and 2010, the Remuneration
Committee capped the STIA opportunity for its UK based Executive
Directors at 75% of the maximum potential of 150% of salary which
equated to a maximum opportunity of 112.5% of base salary.
As reported in last year’s report, for 2011 in light of the Company’s
improved proﬁtability, and following consultation with shareholders, the
Committee determined that whilst it remained appropriate for there to
be a cap set at a level below the maximum STIA opportunity of 150%
of base salary, it should be increased from 112.5% of base salary to
130% of base salary which equated to 86.6% of the maximum
potential of 150% of base salary.
For 2012, the Committee has again reviewed the cap and has decided
that it currently remains appropriate to retain a cap set at a level below
the maximum STIA opportunity of 150% of salary. The Committee has
therefore decided, following consultation with shareholders, that it
should be set at the same level that was applied for 2011, namely
at 130% of base salary, which equates to 86.6% of the maximum
potential of 150% of base salary.
Consistent with 2010 and 2011, Executive Directors will be required to
defer 25% of the STIA paid in respect of 2012 performance into shares
in the Company for three years. Deferrals have no matching element or
performance criteria but generally require the Director to remain in
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Challenging and speciﬁc targets for 2012 have been put in place for
the Executive Directors by the Committee and these are detailed
below. The Committee has made the targets more challenging to
achieve and has replaced the build cost target with a stretching relative
margin target recognising the importance of achieving this target for
the Company:
Measure

Weighting

PBIT
Cash generated (before land spend)
ROCE
Order book
Customer service
Relative margin (compared to other housebuilders)
Waste tonnage reduction

40%
15%
10%
15%
5%
10%
5%

A build cost target has remained in place for executives below
Executive Director level as it remains a key area of focus and it is
considered that such executives are closer to this objective.
No element of any STIA is pensionable.

Sheryl Palmer’s long term incentive plans awards
Sheryl Palmer (President of the Taylor Morrison North America
business) stood down from the Board of Taylor Wimpey plc on
20 July 2011 following the sale of the Company’s North American
business. Details of her remuneration up to the date of her standing
down are set out in the remuneration table on page 47.
Sheryl Palmer was awarded long term incentive awards in 2009 and
2010 and in line with the policy applied to designated ‘good leavers’
these awards will be reduced pro rata to the date of her leaving and will
be performance tested at the end of the applicable performance period
which will be at the same time as other participants and based on the
same tests.
Details of Sheryl Palmer’s long term incentive awards and the effect of
the pro-rating are set out in the table on page 49.
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Long Term Incentive Plans
Current plans

Source: Thomson Reuters

The Company has two long term incentive plans: the Taylor Wimpey
Performance Share Plan (‘TWPSP’) and the Taylor Wimpey Share
Option Plan (‘TWSOP’), both of which were approved by shareholders
at the 2008 Annual General Meeting.

The Committee’s policy continues to be to make awards under the
TWPSP only. Awards of performance shares provide better alignment
with shareholders than awards of share options, as they deliver the
full value of the shares, which can increase and decrease over the
performance period.

LTIP Performance Criteria

TWPSP

–
TSR vs FTSE
250 (25%)
TSR vs
industry
peer group
(25%)
–

2010

2011

The performance targets governing the vesting of these awards are set
out in the LTIP Performance Criteria table above and are substantially
based on the targets put in place with regard to the 2011 awards
namely, Margin, Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) and Return on Capital
Employed (‘ROCE’).
Margin: margin achieved on new homes by the UK business was
introduced as a measure in 2011. The Committee regards margin as a
key measure for the Company and the housebuilding industry and the
inclusion of margin improvement is consistent with the strategy that has
been presented to shareholders. Following the sale of the North
American business during 2011, from 2012 onwards, the measure
will now be based on the Group as a whole rather than on
UK margins only.
Challenging targets have again been put in place by the Committee
requiring the achievement of double digit margins in the 2014 ﬁnancial
year. The margin targets for the 2012 awards are as follows:
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This graph shows the value, by 31 December 2011, of £100 invested in Taylor
Wimpey plc on 31 December 2006 compared with the value of £100 invested in
(i) the FTSE 250 Index, (ii) the industry peer group used for TWPSP awards made
before 2012 and (iii) the housebuilders index introduced for the 2012 TWPSP
awards. The other points plotted are the values at intervening ﬁnancial year ends.
Taylor Wimpey plc
FTSE 250 Index
Sector Peer Group
Housebuilders Index

TSR performance will continue to be measured against two TSR
peer groups as in previous years. However, whereas previous awards
have used a FTSE 250 peer group and a sector group comprising
of housebuilders and building materials related companies, the
Committee has decided that for future awards the sector group should
be replaced with a ‘Housebuilders’ index (Barratt Developments,
Bellway, Berkeley Homes, Bovis Homes Group, Galliford Try,
Persimmon and Redrow), as using a more focused group will provide a
more appropriate benchmark for the Company’s performance. Given
that using a comparator group with this relatively small number of
comparators may prove difﬁcult if a traditional ranking approach to
TSR measurement is used, the Company’s TSR performance will be
measured on an ‘index +’ basis with the TSRs of the comparators
being averaged to create an unweighted index. No vesting will occur
unless the Company’s TSR is at least equal to the index, with full
vesting occurring if the Company’s TSR is at least equal to the index
plus 8% p.a. on a multiplicative basis (i.e. if the TSR of the index is
100% over three years, the TSR required for maximum vesting of
this element of the award would be approximately 126%).
The level of performance required for maximum vesting is intended
to be at least as stretching as the conditions which applied to the ﬁrst
awards made under the TWPSP and has been arrived at based on
analysis carried out by the Committee’s independent advisers New
Bridge Street on historic levels of upper quartile performance among
the companies in the index. The Committee considers that TSR
performance remains appropriate as it rewards management for
delivering superior returns to shareholders than its peers.

Margin in
2014

0% Less than 10%
20%
10%
100%
13%
20%-100%
10%-13%
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2012 awards

Below Threshold
Threshold
Maximum
Between threshold and maximum

80

2012

–
–
Absolute
Absolute
Absolute
ROCE (40%) ROCE (30%) ROCE (30%)
TSR vs FTSE TSR vs FTSE TSR vs FTSE
250 (30%)
250 (20%)
250 (20%)
TSR vs
TSR vs
TSR vs
industry housebuilders
industry
index
peer group
peer group
(20%)
(20%)
(30%)
– Margin (30%) Margin (30%)

% of this element
of the award
vesting

100
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TWSOP

2009

Absolute
ROCE (50%)

120

Directors’ Report: Governance
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Other than in exceptional circumstances, the combined value of
awards made under the two plans may not exceed that of an expected
value of a TWPSP award with a face value of 200% of base salary, in
the case of Executive Directors, or 300% of base salary in the case of
other employees. The Committee has not made any exceptional
awards in excess of these limits since the plans were introduced. In
calculating the value of awards, one TWPSP award is deemed to have
the same expected value as two options granted under the TWSOP.

Name

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Total shareholder return

Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

ROCE is also considered an appropriate measure, as it directly
measures the efﬁcient use of capital. For the 2012 award (and future
awards), the deﬁnition of ROCE will be aligned with the Company’s
Return on Net Operating Assets (RONA), which is a strategic priority
and will also provide consistency with the Company’s external reporting.
RONA is deﬁned on page 1 of the Annual Report as ‘operating proﬁt,
divided by the average of the opening and closing net operating assets,
which is deﬁned as capital employed plus intangibles less tax balances’.
The ROCE targets for the 2012 awards, which will be measured in the
2014 ﬁnancial year, are as follows:

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

% of this element
of the award
vesting

Below threshold
Threshold
Maximum
Between threshold and maximum

Absolute
ROCE in 2014

0% Less than 10%
20%
10%
100%
20%
20%-100%
10%-20%
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Consistent with award levels made in 2011 and following consultation
with shareholders, the Committee has determined award levels for
Executive Directors will be maintained at 200% of salary. Details of the
2012 awards under the TWPSP will be included in next year’s
Remuneration Report.

Land Value Plan

Shareholder Information
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Arising out of the 2011 remuneration review, the Company is introducing
the Taylor Wimpey Land Value Plan (‘LVP’) in 2012 for designated senior
executives below Executive Director level. The LVP is designed to reward
participants for managing the landbank in a way which adds value,
through a combination of managing and adding value to the existing
land portfolio and buying land and adding value over and above the
base case for each acquisition. Performance will be measured over a
three year period and awards to senior participants will be in shares
which will be required to be retained for 12 months. In time the
Committee may consider making LVP awards to the Executive Directors.
Any such participation (if any) will, however, be subject to a prior and
comprehensive shareholder consultation and if introduced there would
be a corresponding reduction in award levels under the TWPSP.

Previous awards
Vesting of the awards made during 2009, 2010 and 2011 is subject
to the achievement of a combination of Return on Capital Employed
(‘ROCE’), relative TSR performance and, for the 2011 awards only,
operating margin. The table on page 43 summarises the performance
conditions attached to each year’s awards – straight line vesting takes
place between the minimum and maximum vesting levels as set out in
the table above. Awards were made under the TWPSP and TWSOP
for 2009 and under the TWPSP only for 2010 and 2011.
With regard to the awards made in 2008, in addition to the ROCE
and EPS tests not being met (as reported in the 2010 Remuneration
Report), the TSR performance criteria were also not met and therefore
it can now be conﬁrmed that no vesting took place for any participant
under these awards. Accordingly, these awards have now lapsed in full.
Performance testing for the 2009 awards which were made in August
of that year will be undertaken at the conclusion of the performance
period at the end of 2012, with any vesting to only take place after
the announcement of the Company’s 2012 Full Year results in
March/April 2013.
With regard to the awards made in two equal tranches in March and
August 2010, performance testing will be undertaken at the conclusion
of the relevant performance period, namely, at the end of 2012 and
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30 June 2013. Any vesting will only take place after the announcement
of the 2012 Full Year results (in or around March 2013) in respect of the
ﬁrst tranche and after the Half Year results in or around August 2013
in respect of the second tranche.
During 2011, awards were made to 21 executives (2010: 23) over an
aggregate of 11,902,398 shares (2010: 13,879,107), based on a share
price of 41.18 pence (35.15 pence for the later grant for a new joiner
below Director level) (2010: 40.01 pence, 35.1 pence and 31.3 pence).
Dependant upon the performance conditions as set out in the table
on page 43, the awards will be tested after the conclusion of the
performance period at the end of 2013 with any vesting to only take
place after the announcement of the 2013 Full Year results in or around
March 2014 (save for one award made later to a new joiner below
Board level which will only be capable of vesting on 3 October 2014).
Details of awards made to Executive Directors appear on pages
48 to 49.

Taylor Wimpey Share Option Plan
Awards under this plan may be income tax-approved up to HMRC’s
aggregate limit of £30,000. Awards normally vest after three years from
the start of the performance measurement period (four years for awards
made during 2009) provided that the performance condition has then
been achieved. No awards were made under the TWSOP in either 2010
or in 2011 and no awards will be made under the TWSOP in 2012.
Details of awards held by Executive Directors appear on pages 48 to 49.

Additional performance tests
An underlying requirement for any vesting under the current share-based
incentive plans is that at the time of approving the vesting, the Committee
must be satisﬁed with the overall ﬁnancial performance of the Group.
With regard to margin performance measure, the Committee will retain
the right (as part of its overall discretion) to reduce the vesting of this
part of the award if volumes (i.e. the number of homes sold) have
not been satisfactory during the relevant performance period.

All-employee share plans
The Company encourages share ownership by employees in order
to help to align employee interest with that of the Company and its
shareholders. Accordingly, it operates two all-employee share plans,
a Sharesave Plan and a Share Incentive Plan (‘UK Share Purchase
Plan’). Both Schemes are HMRC approved and have standard terms
under which all UK employees with at least three months’ service can
participate. During 2011, 800 employees (2010: 600) applied to join
the Sharesave Plan. Options were granted over 15,030,026 shares
(2010: 11,532,281) at an option price of 24.04 pence per share
(2010 22.88 pence per share). A total of 663 participants (2010: 568)
contributed to the UK Share Purchase Plan and purchased 1,408,537
partnership shares (2010: 1,563,702). Such shares are eligible for a 1:1
match if held for three years. Details of awards held during the year by
Executive Directors appear on pages 48 to 49.

Performance graph
The graph on page 43 shows the Company’s performance, measured
by TSR, for the ﬁve year period to 31 December 2011, compared with
the performance of the FTSE 250 Share Indices and the TWPSP
sector peer group used for awards made up to 2011 and the new
Housebuilders index to be used from 2012.
The FTSE 250 and the peer group comparator groups are those used
in successive years’ awards under the TWPSP and TWSOP, described
above. The FTSE 100 is not shown as it is no longer used as a
performance measure for the share plans.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, details
of the sources of shares issued or transferred during the year to meet
maturing or vesting rights under the Company’s share-based reward
schemes, and the potential further requirement for shares to satisfy
options and awards outstanding at the end of the year, are shown in
Note 23 to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. Share plans are also
compliant with the ABI’s dilution guidelines and meet investor guidelines.

Share ownership guidelines
As part of the Remuneration Review, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed its share ownership guidelines in order to encourage greater
levels of shareholding by employees at all levels within the Company
and the Committee has also taken into account comments received
from key institutional shareholders and investor bodies.

The Committee will continue to keep these guidelines under regular
review to ensure that they remain both reasonable and appropriate
having regard to all relevant circumstances. These guidelines are
intended to demonstrate the Committee’s commitment of aligning
the interests of its Executive Directors and management with those
of its shareholders.

Pete Redfern and James Jordan are members of the Executive section
of The George Wimpey Staff Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme’). They
have a Normal Retirement Age under this Scheme of 62. The Scheme
was closed to new members on 1 January 2002 and was closed to
future accrual on 31 August 2010. All active members were invited to
join the PCP from 1 September 2010, referred to above and to which
members and the Company contribute.
In addition, Pete Redfern receives a pension allowance amounting to
25% of the difference between his basic salary and the pension
scheme earnings cap. For 2011 a total of £171,876 (2010: £144,100)
was paid in respect of Pete Redfern. James Jordan also receives a
pension allowance amounting to 28% of the difference between his
basic salary and the pension scheme earnings cap. Between his
appointment to the Board on 21 July 2011 and 31 December 2011
a total of £36,996 was paid in respect of James Jordan.
Pension allowances do not count towards the calculation of any bonus
awards which are based only on base salary. Details of the pension
arrangements for Ryan Mangold and Sheryl Palmer are set out on
page 50.

Taylor Woodrow Group Pension and Life Assurance Fund
(the ‘Fund’)
The Fund was closed to new entrants from 31 March 2002. With effect
from 1 September 2004, a restriction was applied so as to limit the
amount of any increase in pensionable salary of members of the Fund
to the lesser of the actual increase in basic salary or the RPI, subject
to a maximum of 5% per annum. The Fund ceased future accrual on
30 November 2006 and from 1 December 2006 existing active Fund
members were invited to participate in the PCP.

Life assurance arrangements

The Chairman and the Non Executive Directors are also encouraged to
hold shares in the Company in order to align their interests with those
of shareholders.

Life assurance of up to four times basic salary and a pension of up
to two-thirds of the member’s entitlement for a spouse on death
in service, or in retirement, are provided, together with a children’s
allowance of up to 100% of the dependant’s pension for three or
more eligible children.

Pension arrangements

Directors’ contracts

Details of the Group’s principal UK pension schemes are given in
Note 21 on page 83 to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

It is the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should have
contracts of employment providing for a maximum of one year’s
notice either way.

Taylor Wimpey Pension Schemes
Taylor Wimpey Personal Choice Plan (‘PCP’)
The PCP was introduced on 1 April 2002. It is a deﬁned contribution
stakeholder pension scheme, which all new eligible UK employees are
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Service contracts for all Executive Directors and letters of appointment
for all Non Executive Directors are available for inspection as described
in the Notice of 2012 Annual General Meeting on page 106.
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Following the review, Executive Directors are still expected to maintain a
qualifying interest in ordinary shares of broadly equivalent in value to not
less than their annual base salary and should do so within ﬁve years of
their appointment. As part of this requirement, Executive Directors are
required to retain at least 50% of their net of taxes gain arising from any
shares vesting or acquired pursuant to the Company’s long term
incentive share plans, until such time as the guidelines have been met.
The net amount of shares held on trust by way of deferral under the
STIA will continue to count towards the target shareholding for each
Executive Director. Members of the Group Management Team and
other designated executives are expected to maintain an interest of
equivalent to 50% and 20% of their base salaries respectively and
will accordingly, be required to retain at least 50% of shares vesting
or acquired pursuant to the Company’s long term incentive plans until
such guidelines are met.

The George Wimpey Staff Pension Scheme
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The guidelines have been extended to cover a larger number of
executives who participate in share schemes, with all participating
executives required to build up shareholdings through the retention
of shares vesting under the Company’s share plans.

Pete Redfern and James Jordan each have a pension allowance of
20% of the earnings cap, in lieu of pension membership, due to
legislative changes introduced in 2009. For 2011 a total of £25,920
(2010: £8,240) was paid to Pete Redfern and between 21 July and
31 December 2011 a total of £10,800 was paid to James Jordan.
The payment is made in addition to their respective existing pension
allowance of 25% of salary (Pete Redfern) and 28% of salary (James
Jordan) above the earnings cap as described below – details of these
payments are set out below under The George Wimpey Staff Pension
Scheme section.
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The Company’s present intention is to meet the requirement for shares
in respect of share plans by a mix of market purchases and utilising
the remaining balance of shares in the appropriate Employee Share
Trust, wherever it is possible to do so. Where there are relatively
small requirements for shares, these may continue to be met for
administrative convenience from other sources, including new issue.

invited to join. All active members of the deﬁned beneﬁt arrangements
were invited to join the PCP when those arrangements closed to
future accrual.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
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Other share plan information
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Details of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are summarised in the table below:
Name

Pete Redfern
Ryan Mangold
James Jordan

Date of contract

13 October 2004
16 November 2010
20 September 2005
Note 2

Unexpired
term (months)

Notice period by
Company (months)

Notice period by
Director (months)

Normal retirement
age

Current
age

12
12
12

12
12
12

12
12
12

62
Note 1
62

41
40
50

Note 1: Ryan Mangold is a member of the Taylor Wimpey Personal Choice Plan, a stakeholder pension scheme described earlier, which can be taken any time after reaching age 55,
the Minimum Pension Age.
Note 2: James Jordan already had an appropriate service contract with the Company in his previous role as Group Company Secretary and General Counsel, which has remained
in place.
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It is the Company’s policy that liquidated damages should not automatically apply on the termination of an Executive Director’s contract. In
accordance with this approach, payment for early termination of contract (without cause) by the Company is to be determined, in the case of
each of the Executive Directors, having regard to normal legal principles which require mitigation of liability on a case-by-case basis. Any such
payment would typically be determined by reference to the main elements of a Director’s remuneration, namely: salary, bonus entitlement
(subject to Committee discretion as appropriate), beneﬁts-in-kind and pension entitlements. Phased payments will be considered by the
Company where appropriate. There are no change of control provisions that apply in relation to the service contract of any Executive Director.

Chairman and Non Executive Directors
Neither the Chairman nor the Non Executive Directors have service contracts. Their terms of engagement are regulated by letters of appointment
as follows:

Financial Statements
p55-105

Name

Date of appointment
as a Director

Date of initial letter
of appointment

Term of
appointment

Notice
period by
Company
(months)

Kevin Beeston
Kate Barker
Brenda Dean
Mike Hussey
Tony Reading
Rob Rowley

1 July 2010
13 May 2010
21 April 2011
7 February 2011
3 July 2007 21 November 2007
1 July 2011
30 June 2011
3 July 2007 21 November 2007
1 January 2010 1 December 2009

3 years, reviewed annually
3 years, reviewed annually
3 years, reviewed annually
3 years, reviewed annually
3 years, reviewed annually
3 years, reviewed annually

6
6
6
6
6
6

Notice
period by
Director
(months)

6
6
6
6
6
6
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The Chairman receives an annual fee of £250,000 which is paid monthly. The Chairman’s fees were ﬁxed by the Board prior to his appointment as
Chairman following independent advice provided by New Bridge Street.
Brenda Dean and Tony Reading were independent non executive directors of George Wimpey Plc (‘GW’) until the merger with Taylor Woodrow
plc on 3 July 2007. Their respective dates of appointment were 7 October 2003 and 15 April 2005 and, as set out in the
Corporate Governance Report, time spent as a director of GW is deemed to count towards each Director’s overall term of ofﬁce as
a Director of the Company from a Code perspective.
Fees of Non Executive Directors are determined by the Board in their absence taking into account the research carried out by independent
remuneration consultants of fees paid to Non Executive Directors of similar sized companies and the sector-based peer group. Non Executive
Director fees are subject to the aggregate annual limit of £1,000,000 imposed by the Articles of Association and will be reviewed annually.
The basic fee paid to each Non Executive Director is £50,000 per annum and has been at this level since July 2007. The Senior Independent
Director receives an additional payment of £10,000 per annum in respect of the performance of this role. The standard fee for chairing a Board
Committee is £10,000 per annum. The Chairman does not receive any additional fee for chairing the Nomination Committee.
Neither the Chairman nor the Non Executive Directors participate in any of the Company’s share plans or bonus plans and are not eligible to join
the Company’s pension scheme.
All Directors will submit themselves for election or re-election, as appropriate, at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Code.
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Basic
salary/fee
£000

713
290(e)(g)

James Jordan (Appointed 21 July 2011)(b)
(c)

Sheryl Palmer (Resigned 21 July 2011)

Chris Rickard (Resigned 16 November 2010)

2011
total(b)
£000

2010
total
£000

Basic salary
p.a. with
effect from
01.04.2012
£000(f)

172
34

25
1

764
311

–
13

1,674
649

1,563
76

735
317

149

37

15

355

–

556

–

341

212

1

5

–

–

218

2,124

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

1,213

–
Fees p.a.
with effect
from
01.01.2012

250
35
50
25
60
70
15
15
–
–
1,884

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
244

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
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–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1,430

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
13

250
35
50
25
60
70
15
15
–
–
3,617

125
–
50
–
60
68
50
56
100
18

250
50
50
50
60
70
–
–
–
–

5,503

(b) At the time of his appointment on 21 July 2011, James Jordan’s annual salary was £333,125 per annum. James Jordan’s pension allowance and beneﬁts in kind are for the period
21 July to 31 December 2011. The STIA amount is for the full year.
(c) Sheryl Palmer received a base salary at the rate of £404,000 p.a. from 1 January 2011 to 26 March 2011. On 27 March 2011 she received an increase of 2.5% and received a base
salary at the rate of £414,100 from 27 March 2011 until her date of leaving the Board on 21 July 2011. Post completion of the sale of the North American business which took place in
July 2011 (the ‘transaction’), and pursuant to an ongoing contractual matter in relation to the service agreement between Sheryl Palmer and Taylor Morrison Inc. (“TMI”), Sheryl Palmer
received from TMI the sum of US$1.5m which, following agreement with the purchasers on a number of commercial matters relating to the transaction was treated as an offset by
them against the ﬁnal price paid for the business.
(d) The Company also paid £25,000 (2010: £10,416) at the rate of £2,083.33 per month as a contribution towards the Chairman’s annual ofﬁce and related administration costs incurred
in carrying out his role. Kevin Beeston’s base fee is £250,000 per annum.
(e) Ryan Mangold has joined the Flexible Pension Arrangement (salary exchange) operated by the Company and the amount exchanged since his appointment as a Director on
16 November 2010 was £2,138. The Flexible Pension Arrangement is a voluntary arrangement, the effect of which is to allow members and the Company to beneﬁt from savings in
National Insurance contributions through the sacriﬁce of a portion of salary, which would then be paid into a pension scheme as a Company contribution, prior to NIC being calculated.
The Scheme therefore reduces the effective salary of the individual.
(f) With effect from 1 April 2012, the base salaries of Pete Redfern, Ryan Mangold and James Jordan will be £735,437, £316,956 and £341,453 respectively reﬂecting the proposed
salary increases of 2.5%. 8.5% and 2.5%. Their base salaries with effect from 1 April 2011 were £717,500, £292,125 and £333,125 respectively.
(g) This includes £25,600 (2010: £2,138) company contribution in lieu of salary to Ryan Mangold’s non-Group pension arrangements described on page 50.

Aggregate emoluments of the Group Management Team (excluding Executive Directors)
Basic
salary/fee
£000

Pension
allowance
£000

1,001

101

Beneﬁtsin-kind
£000(a)

72

STIA in
respect of
2011
£000

Other
beneﬁts
£000

2011
total
£000

2010
total
£000

Basic salary
p.a. with
effect from
01.04.2012
£000

931

160

2,265

3,117

862

(a) Includes non-cash payments.
(b) There were ﬁve members who were not Executive Directors until 21 July 2011, when James Jordan joined the Board, from which date there were four members
(2010: seven members who were not Executive Directors)
(c) In addition, a charge of £281,000 (2010: £424,000) was booked in respect of share-based payments.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

47

Shareholder Information
p106-116

(a) Beneﬁts-in-kind includes non-cash payments such as health insurance, company car provision and fuel allowances. Other beneﬁts include car allowance and employer’s contribution
to a pension scheme.

4 members(b)

Financial Statements
p55-105

Non Executive
Kevin Beeston (Appointed 1 July 2010)(d)
Kate Barker (Appointed 21 April 2011)
Brenda Dean
Mike Hussey (Appointed 1 July 2011)
Tony Reading
Rob Rowley
Andrew Dougal (Resigned 21 April 2011)
Katherine Innes Ker (Resigned 21 April 2011)
Norman Askew (Resigned 30 June 2010)
David Williams (Resigned 31 March 2010)
Aggregate emoluments
2010

Beneﬁtsin-kind
£000(a)

Other
beneﬁts/
payments
£000(a)
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Executive
Pete Redfern
Ryan Mangold (Appointed 16 November 2010)

Pension
allowance
£000

STIA in
respect of
2011
£000
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Part 2: Audited information
Directors’ emoluments

Remuneration Report continued
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Directors’ share-based reward and options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed on page 47 do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company and
any other share-based reward granted to or held by the Directors. Set out below are details of one Director who exercised options over ordinary
shares during the year (2010 nil).

Share Options exercised

Name of Director

Number of
option
shares
exercised

Plan

James Jordan Sharesave Plan

37,614*

Exercise Market price at
price
exercise date
(pence)
(pence)

25.52

37.93

Gains on
exercise
2011
£

Gains on
exercise
2010
£

4,668

–

* All shares have been retained by James Jordan
Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Details of options and conditional awards over shares held by Directors who served during the year are as follows:

Name of Director

Plan

1 January
2011(a)

Financial Statements
p55-105
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Pete Redfern Deferred Shares (STIA)
305,345
Deferred Shares (STIA)
497,284
Deferred Shares (STIA)
–
Performance Share Plan 637,902
Performance Share Plan 1,601,423
Performance Share Plan 1,574,606
Performance Share Plan 2,012,779
Performance Share Plan
–
Share Option Plan
1,497,345
Share Option Plan
3,202,846
Sharesave Plan
–
Total
11,329,530
Ryan Mangold Deferred Shares (STIA)
–
Performance Share Plan 190,645
Performance Share Plan 171,238
Performance Share Plan 218,889
Performance Share Plan
–
Share Option Plan
381,291
Sharesave Plan
39,335
Total
1,001,398
James Jordan Deferred Shares (STIA)
230,882
Deferred Shares (STIA)
190,205
Performance Share Plan 557,638
Performance Share Plan 548,300
Performance Share Plan 700,878
Performance Share Plan 1,617,897
Share Option Plan
1,115,277
Sharesave Plan
37,614
Sharesave Plan
–
Total
4,998,691
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Granted/
Awarded in
2011
(number)

Lapsed in
2011
(number)

Exercised/
vested
(number)
(i)

31 December
2011

–
– 305,345
–
–
–
–
497,284
409,674(b)
–
–
409,674
–
637,902
–
–
–
–
– 1,601,423
–
–
– 1,574,606
–
–
– 2,012,779
3,484,701(d)
–
– 3,484,701
– 1,497,345
–
–
–
–
– 3,202,846
63,331(c)
–
–
63,331
3,957,706 2,135,247 305,345 12,846,644
–
–
20,848
20,848(b)
–
–
–
190,645
–
–
–
171,238
–
–
–
218,889
1,418,771(d)
–
– 1,418,771
–
–
–
381,291
–
–
–
39,335
1,439,619
–
– 2,441,017
–
–
–
230,882
–
–
–
190,205
–
–
–
557,638
–
–
–
548,300
–
–
–
700,878
–
–
– 1,617,897
–
–
– 1,115,277
–
– 37,614
–
(c)
63,331
–
–
63,331
63,331
– 37,614 5,024,408

Date
from which
exercisable
/capable of
vesting

Expiry date

13.03.08
22.03.10
04.04.11
17.04.08
07.08.09
22.03.10(f)
06.08.10(f)
01.04.11(g)
93.49 28.04.08
39.34 07.08.09(h)
24.04 11.10.11

31.12.10
31.12.12
31.12.13
17.04.11(e)
01.01.13(e)
22.03.13(e)
06.08.13(e)
01.04.14(e)
28.04.11
01.01.13(e)
01.12.16

31.12.10
31.12.12
31.12.13
17.04.11
01.01.13
22.03.13
06.08.13
01.04.14
28.04.18
07.08.19
31.05.17

–
–
–
–
–
39.34
22.88

04.04.11
07.08.09
22.03.10(f)
06.08.10(f)
01.04.11(g)
07.08.09(h)
06.10.10

31.12.13
01.01.13(e)
22.03.13(e)
06.08.13(e)
01.04.14(e)
01.01.13(e)
01.12.13

31.12.13
01.01.13
22.03.13
06.08.13
01.04.14
07.08.19
31.05.14

–
–
–
–
–
–
39.34
25.52
24.04

22.03.10
04.04.11
07.08.09
22.03.10(f)
06.08.10(f)
01.04.11(g)
07.08.09(h)
15.10.08
11.10.11

31.12.12
31.12.13
01.01.13(e)
22.03.13(e)
06.08.13(e)
01.04.14(e)
01.01.13(e)
01.12.11
01.12.16

31.12.12
31.12.13
01.01.13
22.03.13
06.08.13
01.04.14
07.08.19
31.05.12
31.05.17

Exercise
price
(pence)

Date of
grant

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
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Plan

1 January
2011(a)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

140,280
150,406(j)
265,125(j)
387,316(j)
329,278
300,812(j)
1,573,217

Exercised/
vested
(number)

31 December
2011

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
266,102
189,374
193,658
–
532,204
1,181,338

Exercise
price
(pence)

–
–
–
–
93.49
39.34

Date of
grant

17.04.08
07.08.09
22.03.10(f)
06.08.10(f)
28.04.08
07.08.09(h)

Expiry date

17.04.11(e)
01.01.13(e)
22.03.13(e)
06.08.13(e)
28.04.11
01.01.13(e)

17.04.11
01.01.13
22.03.13
06.08.13
28.04.18
07.08.19

margin (2011 awards only)) and 100% (2010 for both tranches and 2009: 100%) for
upper quartile performance (75th percentile for TSR; 20% ROCE; 13% margin (2011
awards only)) with straight line vesting between these two thresholds.

(a) Or date of appointment.
(b) Market value per share on date of grant 4 April 2011 was 41.58 pence.
(c) Market value per share on date of grant 11 October 2011 was 36.79 pence.

(h) Vesting will be 25% for threshold performance (2009: 10% ROCE; 2008: ROCE to
exceed Cost of Capital (‘CoC’)) and 100% for upper quartile performance (2009: 20%
ROCE; 2008: ROCE to exceed CoC by 3%) with straight line vesting between these
two thresholds.

(d) Market value per share on date of grant 1 April 2011 was 40.88 pence.
(e) Or later publication of the preliminary full year or half year results announcement on
which the associated performance condition will be calculated.
(f) Due to the timing of the 2009 awards, the 2010 awards were made in two equal
tranches, after the full year and half year announcements. This was to reduce the
potential overlap of the vesting of the 2009 and 2010 awards in 2013 due to the fact
that the 2009 awards were effectively based on four year performance periods.

(j) Sheryl Palmer’s interests in the TWPSP and TWSOP have been reduced on a pro rata
basis following her standing down from the Board on 20 July 2011. Testing on the
balance will take place at the end of the applicable performance period in line with
other participants.

There have been no variations to the terms and conditions or performance criteria for outstanding share options during the ﬁnancial year.
The performance criteria relating to the Performance Share Plans and Share Option Plans appear earlier in this Directors’ Remuneration Report.
The market price of the ordinary shares on 31 December 2011 was 37.5 pence and the range during the year was 28.71 pence to 43.31 pence.
Details of any share awards made to Executive Directors during 2012 will be included in the 2012 Remuneration Report.
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(g) Vesting will be 20% for the 2011 award (2010 award 20% for both tranches; 2009
award 25%) for threshold performance (50th percentile for TSR; 10% ROCE; 10%

(i) Vesting of deferred shares pursuant to the 2008 Bonus Plan which had been held in
the Company’s Share Trust for a period of three years.
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Sheryl Palmer Performance Share Plan 140,280
Performance Share Plan 416,508
Performance Share Plan 454,499
Performance Share Plan 580,974
Share Option Plan
329,278
Share Option Plan
833,016
Total
2,754,555

Lapsed in
2011
(number)

Date
from which
exercisable
/capable of
vesting
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Name of Director

Granted/
Awarded in
2011
(number)

Directors’ interests in shares of the Company
Directors’ interests in 1p ordinary shares held (fully paid) (‘ordinary shares’):

Kevin Beeston
Pete Redfern
Ryan Mangold(e)
James Jordan(e)
Kate Barker
Brenda Dean
Mike Hussey
Tony Reading
Rob Rowley

905,562
548,427
28,510
179,639
–
33,065
–
300,000
200,000

1,055,562
832,239
56,370
220,825
20,000
59,704
75,000
400,000
200,000

(a) Or date of appointment.
(b) Shares conditionally held as deferral of Company bonus count towards the
achievement of the share retention targets described on page 45. Accordingly, only the
net amount of shares has been included in this column and in the percentages set out
in the ﬁfth and sixth columns.
(c) Percentage of shareholding achieved at 31 December 2011 towards the targets
described on page 45 calculated on 2011 salary and at 31 December 2011 share
price. Salaries as at 31 December 2011 for Pete Redfern, Ryan Mangold and James
Jordan were £717,500, £292,125 and £333,125 respectively.

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

Deferred
Shares held on
trust under the STIA(b)

444,409
10,215
206,332

67%
9%
48%

91%
11%
66%

(d) Percentage of shareholding achieved at 31 December 2011 towards the targets
described on page 45 calculated on 1 April 2012 salary and at 28 February 2012
share price. Salaries as at 1 April 2012 for Pete Redfern, Ryan Mangold and James
Jordan will be £735,437, £316,956 and £341,453 respectively.
(e) Including partnership and matching shares held under the Share Purchase Plan
described on page 44.
Note: The Share price on 31 December 2011 and used in the above calculation was 37.5
pence per share and on 28 February 2012 was 52.65 pence per share.
Note: The above table does not include the deferral into shares of 25% of the 2011 STIA
for any Executive Director.

49

Shareholder Information
p106-116

at 01.01.11
at 31.12.11
ordinary
shares(a) ordinary shares

Executive Directors’
Executive Directors’
share interests (including
share interests (including
Deferred Shares) at
Deferred Shares) at
31.12.11 valued at
31.12.11 valued at
31.12.11 share price and
28.02.12 share price and
expressed as a percentage expressed as a percentage
of base salary at
of base salary at
31.12.11(c)
01.04.12(d)

Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Directors’ pension entitlements
Defined benefit schemes
The George Wimpey Staff Pension Scheme
Pete Redfern and James Jordan are members of The George Wimpey Staff Pension Scheme (‘GWSPS’). The following table sets out the transfer
value of their accrued beneﬁts under the Scheme calculated in a manner consistent with ‘The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
Regulations 2008’.
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Increase in accrued
Accrued
pension from
Accrued
pension as at
31 December 2010
pension as at
31 December 2010 to 31 December 2011 31 December 2011(a)
£
£
£

Pete Redfern
James Jordan

26,551
23,576

1,381
1,226

27,932
24,802

Transfer value
Transfer
gross of Director’s
value gross
contributions at
of Director’s
31 December
contributions at
(b)
2011
31 December 2010(b)
£
£

366,600
425,300

Increase in transfer
value from
31 December
Increase in accrued
2010 to
pension from
31 December 2011
31 December 2010
less Director’s
to 31 December
contributions(c)
2011 less inﬂation
£
£

269,800
332,500

96,800
92,800

Transfer value
of accrued
pension
increase less
Director’s
contributions(d)
£

0
0

0
0

(a) The GWSPS closed to future accrual on 31 August 2010 so pension accrual ceased on that date. Pension accrual shown above is the amount which would be paid annually on
retirement based on service to 31 August 2010. Pension beneﬁts include a two thirds spouse’s pension. Pensions accrued up to 5 April 2006 are guaranteed to increase in payment in
line with inﬂation limited each year to 5%. Pensions accrued after 5 April 2006 are guaranteed to increase in payment in line with inﬂation limited each year to 2.5%. Pensions accrued
up to 5 April 2009 will revalue in deferment in line with inﬂation subject to an overall cap of 5% per annum. Pensions accrued after 5 April 2009 will revalue in deferment in line with
inﬂation subject to an overall cap of 2.5% per annum. We have only taken into account deﬁned beneﬁts accrued over the period to 31 August 2010 and have not included any Deﬁned
Contribution pension beneﬁts accrued after this date.
(b) Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with the occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Value) Regulations 2008.
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(c) The increase in the transfer value includes the effect of ﬂuctuations in the transfer value due to factors beyond the control of the Company and Directors, such as ﬁnancial
market movements.
(d) The GWSPS closed to future accrual on 31 August 2010 and so no contributions were made after 31 August 2010.

Non-Group pension arrangements
Ryan Mangold has, and Sheryl Palmer had until her resignation on 20 July 2011, non-Group pension arrangements, to which contributions were
paid by the Company as set out below:
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Ryan Mangold(a)
Sheryl Palmer(b)

2011
£

2010
£

24,861

4,275
7,300

(c)

(a) Ryan Mangold also received a pension allowance of £33,928 in 2011 (2010: Nil) in lieu of Company pension contributions over the Annual Allowance limit introduced in April 2011 of
£50,000.
(b) To date of resignation.
(c) Sheryl Palmer’s US cash balance pension plan was frozen on 1 January 2011.

Approval
This Remuneration Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2012 and signed on its behalf by the Remuneration
Committee Chairman:

Anthony Reading
28 February 2012
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Statutory, regulatory and other formal information
This section contains the remaining matters on which the Directors
are required to report each year, which do not appear elsewhere
in this Directors’ Report. Certain other matters required to be
reported on appear elsewhere in the Report and Accounts as
detailed below:
t a list of the subsidiary and associated undertakings, including
branches outside the UK, principally affecting the proﬁts or net
assets of the Group in the year appears on page 104;

t the Group’s proﬁt before taxation and the proﬁt after taxation
and minority interests appear in the consolidated income
statement on page 56 and in the Notes to the accounts
on pages 61 to 103; and
t a detailed statement of the Group’s treasury management
and funding is set out in Note 20 on page 78.

Directors
The following Directors held ofﬁce throughout the year:

Qualifying third party indemnity
The Company has granted an indemnity in favour of its Directors
and ofﬁcers and those of its Group companies against the ﬁnancial
exposure that they may incur in the course of their professional
duties as Directors and ofﬁcers of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries/afﬁliates. The indemnity has been put in place in
accordance with section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 in
respect of which the Company took advice from Slaughter
and May.

Pete Redfern, Chief Executive;

Audit and auditor

Ryan Mangold, Group Finance Director;

Each Director has, at the date of approval of this Report,
conﬁrmed that:

Brenda Dean, Independent Non Executive Director;
Tony Reading MBE, Independent Non Executive Director;

t to the best of their knowledge there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

Kate Barker CBE was appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on 21 April 2011;

This conﬁrmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Mike Hussey was appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on 1 July 2011;

Deloitte LLP have conﬁrmed their willingness to continue in ofﬁce
as auditor of the Company and a resolution to re-appoint them will
be proposed at the AGM.

James Jordan was appointed as Group Legal Director on
21 July 2011 (and also continues in his role as the Group
Company Secretary);
Andrew Dougal and Katherine Innes Ker, Independent Non
Executive Directors, each stood down as a Director on
21 April 2011; and
Sheryl Palmer, formerly the Director with executive responsibility
for the Group’s US and Canadian businesses, stood down as a
Director on 20 July 2011 following the completion of their sale.
The Directors together with their biographical information are
shown on pages 28 and 29.

Retirement, election and re-election
The Company has determined that in accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should seek
election or re-election at this year’s AGM as explained in the
Notes to the Notice of Meeting and on page 33 of the
Corporate Governance Report.
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It is the Company’s general policy that its auditors will not carry
out non-audit services except where it is appropriate to do so and
in accordance with the Company’s formal policy for the carrying
out of such work. Deloitte LLP provided non-audit services to the
Group during the year within the policy framework as described
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM will be held at 11:00 am on 26 April 2012 at The British
Medical Association, BMA House, Tavistock Square, London,
WC1H 9JP.
Formal notice of the AGM including details of special business
is set out in the Notice of Meeting on page 106 and on the
Company’s Web site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk. Voting on all
resolutions at this year’s AGM will again be conducted by way
of a poll as the Board believes this gives as many shareholders
as possible the opportunity to have their votes counted, whether
their votes are tendered by proxy in advance of, or in person
at the AGM.
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The following changes took place during the year:

t they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor
is aware of that information.

Rob Rowley, Independent Non Executive Director and Senior
Independent Director.
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Kevin Beeston, Chairman;

The Articles of Association of the Company further regulate the
appointment and removal of Directors, as does the Companies Act
2006 and related legislation. The Company’s Articles of Association
may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.
The powers of the Directors are described in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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t changes in asset values are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet on page 58 and in the Notes to the accounts on pages
61 to 103;

Each of the Directors proposed for election or re-election at
the AGM is being unanimously recommended by all of the
other members of the Board. This recommendation follows the
completion of the annual performance evaluation process, which
included a detailed appraisal of the Board, its Committees and
in respect of each Director. Further information relating to the
evaluation is set out below and in the Corporate Governance
Report on page 33.
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Introduction

Statutory, regulatory and other formal information continued
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With shareholders’ consent, the Company has adopted Web
communication. The beneﬁts of Web communication are that it:

Details of employee share schemes are set out in the Remuneration
Report on page 44. The Employee Share Ownership Trusts
generally abstain from voting in respect of shares held by them.

t enables the Company to signiﬁcantly reduce its printing and
postage costs;

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s
share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

t enables shareholders to access information faster, on the day
documents are published on the Company’s Web site; and

Substantial interests

Web communication

t reduces the amount of resources consumed, such as paper,
and lessens the impact of printing and mailing activities on
the environment.

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Shareholder communications (including the 2011 Annual Report
and Accounts) are available electronically through the Company’s
Web site.
The Company provides hard copy documentation to those
shareholders who have requested this and is, of course, happy
to meet any such requests.

Registrar
The Company’s registrar is Capita Registrars. Their details, together
with information on facilities available to shareholders, are set out
in the Shareholder Facilities section on page 114.
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Capital structure
Details of the Company’s issued share capital, together with details
of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
year are shown in Note 23 on page 88.
The Company has two classes of shares: Ordinary Shares of 1p,
each of which carries the right to one vote at general meetings
of the Company and such other rights and obligations as are set
out in the Company’s Articles of Association; and Deferred
Shares which carry no voting rights.
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As part of the debt restructuring announced on 21 April 2009
the Company issued Warrants to certain of its lenders giving
the holders the right, up to 29 April 2014, to subscribe for up
to an aggregate of approximately 58 million Ordinary Shares
(representing approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital at the time the Warrants were issued). Warrants remain
over approximately 1.47% of the current issued share capital at
the subscription price per share of 17.4473 pence (25 pence prior
to the Placing and Open Offer). The Warrants are transferable and
carry entitlement to subscription for three months after the
passing of a resolution for the winding-up of the Company. To
date, aggregate exercises of Warrants have resulted in the issue
of 10,864,768 new Ordinary Shares of 1p each.
The authority given by shareholders at the AGM held on
21 April 2011 for the Company to purchase a maximum of 319.8
million of its own shares remained valid at 31 December 2011.
The authority was not exercised during 2011 or prior to the date
of this Report. The Company has no current intention of exercising
the authority but will nevertheless be seeking the usual renewal of
this authority at the AGM. The Company currently holds no shares
in treasury.
There are no speciﬁc restrictions on the size of a holding, the
exercise of voting rights, nor on the transfer of shares, which are
governed by the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation.
The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or on voting rights.
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The persons set out in the table below have notiﬁed the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.1 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of
their interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company.
At 28 February 2012, no change in these holdings had been
notiﬁed nor, according to the Register of Members, did any other
shareholder at that date have a disclosable holding of the
Company’s issued share capital.
Directors’ interests, including interests in the Company’s shares,
are shown in the Remuneration Report.

Substantial interests in the Company’s
shares as at 28 February 2012
Name

Schroders plc
BlackRock Inc
Third Avenue Management LLC
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc
Legal & General Group Plc
Ignis Asset Management Limited
Standard Life Investments Limited

Number of
shares held
(millions)

Percentage of
issued voting
share capital

474.65
313.62
191.58
159.64
127.16
97.50
96.39

14.80
9.81
5.98
4.99
3.97
3.05
3.02

Dividend
Information relating to the recommended 2011 ﬁnal dividend is set
out in the Chairman’s Statement on page 4 and in the notes to
resolution 2 on page 109 in the Notes to the Notice of Annual
General Meeting.
The Company will be operating a Dividend Re-Investment Plan,
further details of which are set out on page 110 of this Annual
Report.
The right to receive any dividend has been waived in part by the
Trustee of the Company’s Employee Share Ownership Trusts over
those Trusts’ combined holding of 22,911,329 shares.

Research and development
During 2011 the Company continued to prototype the previously
introduced house type range. Feedback from customers and the
Company’s regional business units, fed through divisional review
groups, allowed the Company to make further revisions and
improvements to ensure it has the best house type range to
support the business and to provide customers with what
they want.
In addition, during 2011 the Company started building its ﬁrst
houses to the 2010 building regulations. These provided for an
improvement in the thermal efﬁciency of the Company’s homes.
Simultaneously, the Company started to work with its expert
consultant team and supply chain on how it would meet the
evolving 2013 building regulations. These will be a stepping stone
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Taylor Wimpey personnel chaired the NICOLE (Network for
industrially contaminated land in Europe) Brownﬁeld Working
Group which published a signiﬁcant report in 2011 on
environmental liability transfer in Europe.
Taylor Wimpey personnel sit on the Advisory Board of HOMBRE
(Holistic Management of Brownﬁeld Regeneration), a four year
Seventh Framework EU funded research project looking at
sustainable brownﬁeld re-use.

Taylor Wimpey personnel are also continuing collaborative work
with WRAP (Waste and Resources Action Programme) on wastage,
recyclates, reverse logistics and qualitative supply chain
assessment on waste and resource efﬁciency.

Employee involvement and communication

Employment of people with disabilities
It is our policy that people with disabilities should have fair
consideration for all vacancies within the Group.
The Company is therefore committed, where possible, to ensuring
that people with disabilities are supported and encouraged to apply
for employment and to achieve progress once employed. They
will be treated so as to ensure that they have an equal opportunity
to be selected, trained and promoted. In addition, every
reasonable effort is made for disabled persons to be retained in the
employment of the Group by investigating the possibility of making
reasonable adjustments to the job, workplace or equipment.

Charitable donations

During 2011, a total of fourteen presentations took place across
the country, which were attended by staff from all the Company’s
Business Units, at which the Chief Executive and other senior
management presented the Company’s strategy ﬁrst hand. This
was a very successful exercise and was very well received
by the Company’s workforce. All employees were invited to
contribute to the development of the strategy and several of their
ideas were adopted in framing both the strategy and its method
of implementation. An internal forum has been established on the
Group’s intranet inviting employees to comment and make
suggestions on the strategy and its implementation with each
one being read by the Chief Executive and responded to.

During the year, Group companies donated £211,000
(2010: £95,000 excluding North America) to various charities
in the UK.

This is in addition to the continuing forum on the intranet called
‘Open Door’ which allows direct communication with the Chief
Executive on strategic areas of focus and other matters in order to
enable all employees to contribute and comment. All employees
are encouraged to participate and use the forum.
The Company promotes share ownership as widely as possible
and maintains all-employee share plans, including the Save As You
Earn share option scheme and the Share Incentive Plan, as widely
as possible across the Group.

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

The Company has a Charity Committee, which operates within
written terms of reference and charitable guidelines approved by
the Board. The Committee’s aims are to monitor and review
charitable donations made by regional businesses as against the
guidelines and to assess and administer larger donations centrally.
The members of the Committee are the Group HR Director
(Chairman), Group Legal Director and Company Secretary, UK
Land and Planning Director, Group Investor Relations Manager
and Group Financial Controller. The Company and the Committee
encourage non-ﬁnancial contributions also and for employees
to participate in charitable causes.

Further information on the Group’s donations, activities and
initiatives can be found in the 2011 Corporate Responsibility
Report which is available on the Company’s Web site:
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/CorporateResponsibility

Political donations
The Company does not make donations to political parties and
neither does it intend to. The Company does support certain
industry-wide organisations which directly assist the housebuilding
industry such as the Home Builders Federation and the CBI. Whilst
we do not regard this as political in nature, the Companies Act
2006 deﬁnition of ‘political organisations’ and related terms is very
wide and in certain circumstances a donation or a subscription to
a charity or other organisation could retrospectively be categorised
as a political donation. Accordingly, the Company will be seeking
the usual annual dispensation at the Annual General Meeting as
a matter of prudency.
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The Company is committed to ensuring open and regular
communication throughout the Group on both business-related
issues and issues of general interest. There is a formal Employee
Consultative Committee structure in place in all operations and
elected representatives meet with management to consult on
appropriate issues. Intranet systems are continually updated which
provide a valuable communication tool across the Group and an
important facility for providing employees with access to a wide
range of information. Information is regularly cascaded throughout
the Group via e-mail – including regular communications from the
Chief Executive – and via verbal brieﬁngs and by management
presentations.

Financial Statements
p55-105

Through the Land Forum, Taylor Wimpey personnel have
supported various early stage research initiatives into evaluating
the true cost of brownﬁeld land, supporting the revised statutory
guidance and better regulation of regeneration.

The Company remains committed to equality of opportunity in all
of its employment practices, policies and procedures across the
Group. To this end, within the framework of applicable law, we are
committed, wherever practicable, to achieving and maintaining a
workforce which broadly reﬂects that of the local catchment area
within which we operate. No employee or potential employee will
receive less favourable treatment due to their race, creed, colour,
nationality, ethnic origin, religion, political or other opinion, afﬁliation,
gender, sexual orientation, marital status, family connections, age,
membership or non-membership of a trade union, or disability,
unless justiﬁable in exceptional circumstances, for example due to
health and safety considerations. Instruction on equal opportunities
is part of the induction programme.
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Through CIRIA (Construction Industry Research Information
Association) Taylor Wimpey personnel have contributed to Steering
Groups on VOC (volatile organic contamination) remediation and
asbestos in soils.

Equal opportunities

Directors’ Report: Business Review
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from the 2010 regulations to Zero Carbon housing in 2016. The
Company will continue to pursue its strategy of building fabric ﬁrst
before adding renewables.

Statutory, regulatory and other formal information continued
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Policy on payment of suppliers
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The nature of the Group’s operations means that there is no
single Group standard in respect of payment terms to suppliers.
Generally, business units are responsible for establishing payment
terms with suppliers when entering into each transaction or series
of linked transactions. In the absence of dispute, valid payment
requests are met as expeditiously as possible within such terms.
Our standard framework agreements with contractors establish
the due date for payment as 30 days from the later of the date
of issue of the invoice or request for payment, or the relevant
month end notiﬁed by the employer, and for suppliers, the due
date for payment is the end of the month following the month
of receipt of the supplier’s invoice for goods and/or services
delivered to the Company.
Trade creditor days for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 were 32 days (2010: 30 days). This is based on the ratio of
year end Group trade creditors (excluding sub-contract retentions
and unagreed claims of £31.2 million (2010: £34.4 million) and land
creditors, see Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)
to amounts invoiced during the year by trade creditors. The
Company had no signiﬁcant trade creditors at 31 December 2011.

Agreements
Financial Statements
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Apart from a small number of borrowing agreements, pursuant
to which the Company borrows or is able to borrow money, which
could potentially be terminated by the other party upon a change
of control of the Company, there are no signiﬁcant contracts or
agreements which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company.

Important events since the year end
There have been no important events affecting the Company
or any of its subsidiary undertakings since 31 December 2011.

Directors’ responsibilities statement
Shareholder Information
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare ﬁnancial statements
for each ﬁnancial year. Under that law the Directors are required
to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and
have elected to prepare the parent company ﬁnancial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not
approve the accounts unless they are satisﬁed that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the proﬁt
or loss of the Company for that period.

t prepare the ﬁnancial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.
In preparing the Group ﬁnancial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:
t properly select and apply accounting policies;
t present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;
t provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
speciﬁc requirements in IFRSs are insufﬁcient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s ﬁnancial position and ﬁnancial
performance; and
t make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufﬁcient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the ﬁnancial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the ﬁnancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and ﬁnancial information included on the
Company’s Web site. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of ﬁnancial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
The Directors conﬁrm that to the best of their knowledge:
t the ﬁnancial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant ﬁnancial reporting framework, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, ﬁnancial position and proﬁt or loss of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; and
t the management report, which is incorporated into the
Directors’ Report, includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
a whole, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they face.
This Report of the Directors was approved by the Board
of Directors on 28 February 2012.

In preparing the parent company ﬁnancial statements, the Directors
are required to:
t select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;
t make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

James Jordan

t state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the ﬁnancial statements; and

28 February 2012
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Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
Taylor Wimpey plc

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

;12=2;12;AB16A<?@'2=<?A

'2@=20A6C2?2@=<;@6/696A62@<36?20A<?@.;1.B16A<?

(0<=2<3A52.B16A<3A5236;.;06.9@A.A2:2;A@

.470E4=>C78=6C>A4?>AC8=A4B?42C>5C745>;;>F8=6
,=34AC74><?0=84B2C
8=>DA>?8=8>=

F40A4A4@D8A43C>A4?>ACC>H>D85 

 24AC08=38B2;>BDA4B>58A42C>ABA4<D=4A0C8>=B?42858431H;0F0A4
=>C<034>A
 F470E4=>CA4248E430;;C748=5>A<0C8>=0=34G?;0=0C8>=BF4
A4@D8A45>A>DA0D38C 
 ,=34AC74$8BC8=6)D;4BF40A4A4@D8A43C>A4E84F
 C748A42C>AB*C0C4<4=C2>=C08=43F8C78=C748A42C>AB)4?>AC>=
>A?>A0C4>E4A=0=248=A4;0C8>=C>6>8=62>=24A=
 C74?0AC>5C74>A?>A0C4>E4A=0=24*C0C4<4=CA4;0C8=6C>C74
><?0=HB2><?;80=24F8C7C74=8=4?A>E8B8>=B>5C74,#
>A?>A0C4>E4A=0=24>34B?42858435>A>DAA4E84F0=3
 24AC08=4;4<4=CB>5C74A4?>ACC>B70A47>;34AB1HC74>0A3>=
8A42C>ABA4<D=4A0C8>= 

%A52?:.AA2?@
.470E4A4?>AC43B4?0A0C4;H>=C74?0A4=C><?0=H58=0=280;
BC0C4<4=CB>5+0H;>A.8<?4H?;25>AC74H40A4=343424<14A
 0=3>=C748=5>A<0C8>=8=C748A42C>AB)4<D=4A0C8>=)4?>AC
C70C8B34B2A81430B70E8=6144=0D38C43 




Shareholder Information
p106-116

=0D38C8=E>;E4B>1C08=8=64E834=2401>DCC740<>D=CB0=3
38B2;>BDA4B8=C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CBBD558284=CC>68E4A40B>=01;4
0BBDA0=24C70CC7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB0A45A445A><<0C4A80;
<8BBC0C4<4=C F74C74A20DB431H5A0D3>A4AA>A +78B8=2;D34B0=
0BB4BB<4=C>5F74C74AC74022>D=C8=6?>;8284B0A40??A>?A80C4C>
C74A>D?B28A2D<BC0=24B0=370E4144=2>=B8BC4=C;H0??;8430=3
034@D0C4;H38B2;>B43C74A40B>=01;4=4BB>5B86=85820=C022>D=C8=6
4BC8<0C4B<0341HC748A42C>AB0=3C74>E4A0;;?A4B4=C0C8>=>5
C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB !=0338C8>= F4A4030;;C7458=0=280;0=3
=>= 58=0=280;8=5>A<0C8>=8=C740==D0;A4?>ACC>834=C85H<0C4A80;
8=2>=B8BC4=284BF8C7C740D38C4358=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB !5F4142><4
0F0A4>50=H0??0A4=C<0C4A80;<8BBC0C4<4=CB>A8=2>=B8BC4=284BF4
2>=B834AC748<?;820C8>=B5>A>DAA4?>AC 

#.AA2?@<;D5605D2.?2?2>B6?21A<?2=<?A/F2E02=A6<;

Financial Statements
p55-105

B4G?;08=43<>A45D;;H8=C748A42C>AB)4B?>=B818;8C84B*C0C4<4=C 
C748A42C>AB0A4A4B?>=B81;45>AC74?A4?0A0C8>=>5C7458=0=280;
BC0C4<4=CB0=35>A148=6B0C8B5843C70CC74H68E40CAD40=3508AE84F 
'DAA4B?>=B818;8CH8BC>0D38C0=34G?A4BB0=>?8=8>=>=C7458=0=280;
BC0C4<4=CB8=022>A30=24F8C70??;8201;4;0F0=3!=C4A=0C8>=0;
*C0=30A3B>=D38C8=6,#0=3!A4;0=3 +7>B4BC0=30A3BA4@D8A4
DBC>2><?;HF8C7C74D38C8=6(A02C824B>0A3BC7820;
*C0=30A3B5>AD38C>AB 

!=>DA>?8=8>=C748=5>A<0C8>=68E4=8=C748A42C>AB)4?>AC5>AC74
58=0=280;H40A5>AF7827C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB0A4?A4?0A438B
2>=B8BC4=CF8C7C74A>D?58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB 

<96;B1@<;(2;6<?(A.ABA<?FB16A<?
5>A0=3>=1470;5>54;>8CC4$$(
70AC4A4322>D=C0=CB0=3)468BC4A43D38C>A
$>=3>= ,=8C43#8=63><
41AD0AH 

%=6;6<;<;36;.;06.9@A.A2:2;A@
!=>DA>?8=8>=C74A>D?58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB
 68E40CAD40=3508AE84F>5C74BC0C4>5C74A>D?B05508AB0B0C
424<14A 0=3>58CB?A>58C5>AC74H40AC74=4=343
 70E4144=?A>?4A;H?A4?0A438=022>A30=24F8C7!)*B0B03>?C43
1HC74DA>?40=,=8>=0=3
 70E4144=?A4?0A438=022>A30=24F8C7C74A4@D8A4<4=CB>5C74
><?0=84B2C 0=3AC82;4>5C74!*)46D;0C8>= 


Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

+78BA4?>AC8B<034B>;4;HC>C74><?0=HB<4<14AB 0B01>3H 8=
022>A30=24F8C770?C4A>5(0AC>5C74><?0=84B2C  
'DA0D38CF>A:70B144=D=34AC0:4=B>C70CF4<867CBC0C4C>C74
><?0=HB<4<14ABC7>B4<0CC4ABF40A4A4@D8A43C>BC0C4C>C74<
8=0=0D38C>ABA4?>AC0=35>A=>>C74A?DA?>B4 +>C745D;;4BC4GC4=C
?4A<8CC431H;0F F43>=>C0224?C>A0BBD<4A4B?>=B818;8CHC>
0=H>=4>C74AC70=C74><?0=H0=3C74><?0=HB<4<14AB0B
01>3H 5>A>DA0D38CF>A: 5>AC78BA4?>AC >A5>AC74>?8=8>=BF4
70E45>A<43 

%=6;6<;<;<A52?:.AA2?@=?2@0?6/21/FA52
<:=.;62@0A 

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

.470E40D38C43C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB>5+0H;>A.8<?4H?;25>AC74
H40A4=343424<14A F78272><?A8B4C74>=B>;830C43
!=2><4*C0C4<4=C C74>=B>;830C43*C0C4<4=C>5><?A474=B8E4
!=2><4 C74>=B>;830C430;0=24*744C C74>=B>;830C43*C0C4<4=C
>570=64B8=@D8CH C74>=B>;830C430B7;>F*C0C4<4=C0=3C74
A4;0C43=>C4BC> +7458=0=280;A4?>AC8=65A0<4F>A:C70C70B144=
0??;8438=C748A?A4?0A0C8>=8B0??;8201;4;0F0=3!=C4A=0C8>=0;8=0=280;
)4?>AC8=6*C0=30A3B!)*B0B03>?C431HC74DA>?40=,=8>= 

55

&%)&#"*%&$**$%*
%-02'$6$ 02-

$"$+!$0 



Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

/$"##"&%

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

&%*"%+"% &'(*"&%)
,%+
-12-%1 *$1
0-11.0-%(2*-11
$2-.$0 2(,&$5.$,1$1
(&"*#&))&%&("%(.*","*")&("%%&)*)
,2$0$120$"$(4 !*$
(, ,"$"-121
' 0$-%0$13*21-%)-(,24$,230$1
(&"*#&))&%&("%(.*","*")&(*-*"&%
 5 2(-,"' 0&$"0$#(2
(&"*#&))&(*!.((&$&%*"%+"% &'(*"&%)

-2$





Financial Statements
p55-105


(1"-,2(,3$#-.$0 2(-,1
0-%(2%-02'$6$ 0
(&"*&(*!.(

220(!32 !*$2-
/3(26'-*#$01-%2'$. 0$,2
-,"-,20-**(,&(,2$0$121


&(
-'*"&%#
"*$)


-'*"&%#
"*$)
&* 



  

  
 

  


  


0
0
0
 
 
0
  
0
 






0


&*#



  

  
  


 
 
 








0


$%-0$
$5"$.2(-, *
(2$+1
 
$12 2$#
-2$ 

5"$.2(-, *
(2$+1
-2$ 
 
$12 2$#
-2$ 

-2 *
 
$12 2$#
-2$ 


  

  


 
 
 
  
  

7
  
  
  
  
7
  
7
 




 
 

  


  
 



 







 



7




Shareholder Information
p106-116

 1("$ 0,(,&1.$01' 0$72-2 *0-3.
(*32$#$ 0,(,&1.$01' 0$72-2 *0-3.
 1("$ 0,(,&1.$01' 0$7"-,2(,3(,&-.$0 2(-,1
(*32$#$ 0,(,&1.$01' 0$7"-,2(,3(,&-.$0 2(-,1
#)312$#! 1("$ 0,(,&1*-11.$01' 0$
7"-,2(,3(,&-.$0 2(-,1
#)312$##(*32$#$ 0,(,&1*-11.$01' 0$
7"-,2(,3(,&-.$0 2(-,1

56

-2$











 






'
'
'
'

 .
.
 .
 .



'

  .



'

  .

Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

<;@<961.A21(A.A2:2;A<3<:=?252;@6C2;0<:2
5>AC74H40AC>424<14A 

G270=6438554A4=24B>=CA0=B;0C8>=>55>A486=>?4A0C8>=B
% >E4<4=C8=508AE0;D4>574368=634A8E0C8E4B
2CD0A80;;>BB 608=>=3458=4314=458C?4=B8>=B274<4B
+0G2A438C 270A64>=8C4<BC0:4=38A42C;HC>4@D8CH
%A52?0<:=?252;@6C22E=2;@2 6;0<:23<?A52F2.?;2A<3A.E
& ?<36A3<?A52F2.?
)<A.90<:=?252;@6C26;0<:23<?A52F2.?









  



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
H
 

 
K
 

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54


CCA81DC01;4C>
@D8CH7>;34AB>5C74?0A4=C
& >= 2>=CA>;;8=68=C4A4BCB


& >C4

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

G:6996<;

Financial Statements
p55-105
Shareholder Information
p106-116

Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


57

<;@<961.A21.9.;02(522A
0C424<14A 

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

G:6996<;

& >C4

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54
Financial Statements
p55-105
Shareholder Information
p106-116

$ <; 0B??2;A.@@2A@
>>3F8;;
'C74A8=C0=681;40BB4CB
(A>?4ACH ?;0=C0=34@D8?<4=C
!=C4A4BCB8=9>8=CE4=CDA4B
+A0340=3>C74AA4248E01;4B
454AA43C0G0BB4CB

B??2;A.@@2A@
!=E4=C>A84B
+A0340=3>C74AA4248E01;4B
+0GA4248E01;4B
0B70=320B74@D8E0;4=CB

)<A.9.@@2A@
B??2;A96./696A62@
+A0340=3>C74A?0H01;4B
+0G?0H01;4B
0=:;>0=B0=3>E4A3A05CB
(A>E8B8>=B

$ 2A0B??2;A.@@2A@
$ <; 0B??2;A96./696A62@
+A0340=3>C74A?0H01;4B
414=CDA4;>0=B
0=:0=3>C74A;>0=B
)4C8A4<4=C14=458C>1;860C8>=B
454AA43C0G;8018;8C84B
(A>E8B8>=B

)<A.996./696A62@

$ 2A.@@2A@
























>B6AF
*70A420?8C0;
*70A4?A4<8D<022>D=C
'F=B70A4B
'C74AA4B4AE4B
)4C08=4340A=8=6B
>B6AF.AA?6/BA./92A<=.?2;A
$ <; 0<;A?<996;46;A2?2@A@
)<A.92>B6AF







+7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB>5+0H;>A.8<?4H?;2A468BC4A43=D<14A
>=41AD0AH  +74HF4A4B86=43>=8CB1470;51H

& '2132?;
8A42C>A
58





  

H

 
 
 
 




 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  
 

  
 
 
 
  
  

 
 
H
 
 
  

  
 
 
 
  
  

  
  


 
H
  
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
   



  

 
  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
  

  




 F4A40??A>E431HC74>0A3>58A42C>AB0=30DC7>A8B435>A8BBD4

'#.;4<91
8A42C>A


Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

<;@<961.A21(A.A2:2;A<35.;42@
6;>B6AF
5>AC74H40AC>424<14A 


(5.?2
=?2:6B:

%D;
@5.?2@

%A52?
?2@2?C2@

'2A.6;21
2.?;6;4@

 
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
 

  

H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
  

 
H


 
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
 




H
H
H
H
H

H
H
 
  
H
 

 
H
H
H

 
H
H
 


H

 



*70A4
20?8C0;

*70A4
?A4<8D<

'F=
B70A4B

'C74A
A4B4AE4B

)4C08=43
40A=8=6B

0;0=240B0C"0=D0AH  
& 4FB70A420?8C0;BD1B2A8143
,C8;8B0C8>=>5>F=B70A4B
*70A4 10B43?0H<4=C2A438C
0B72>BC>5B0C8B5H8=6B70A4>?C8>=B
G270=6438554A4=24B>=CA0=B;0C8>=>55>A486=>?4A0C8>=B
42A40B48=508AE0;D4>574368=634A8E0C8E4B
2CD0A80;608=>=3458=4314=458C?4=B8>=B274<4B
454AA43C0G270A64
+A0=B54AC>A4C08=4340A=8=6B
(A>58C5>AC74H40A
@D8CH0CCA81DC01;4C>?0A4=C
& >= 2>=CA>;;8=68=C4A4BCB
+>C0;4@D8CH

 
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
 

 

K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
 

 
K
 
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
K
 



 
K
K
K
K
 
 
K
K
 
K
 

 
K
 

 
K
K
 
 

 
 

0;0=240B0C"0=D0AH 
& 4FB70A420?8C0;BD1B2A8143
'F=B70A4B02@D8A43
,C8;8B0C8>=>5>F=B70A4B
*70A4 10B43?0H<4=C2A438C
0B72>BC>5B0C8B5H8=6B70A4>?C8>=B
G270=6438554A4=24B>=CA0=B;0C8>=>55>A486=>?4A0C8>=B
!=2A40B48=508AE0;D4>574368=634A8E0C8E4B
2CD0A80;;>BB>=3458=4314=458C?4=B8>=B274<4B
454AA43C0G2A438C
+A0=B54AC>A4C08=4340A=8=6B
)42H2;8=6>5CA0=B;0C8>=A4B4AE4>=38B?>B0;>5BD1B8380A84B
(A>58C5>AC74H40A
@D8CH0CCA81DC01;4C>?0A4=C
& >= 2>=CA>;;8=68=C4A4BCB
+>C0;4@D8CH



)<A.9

 





 


 

H
  

 



Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

(5.?2
0.=6A.9

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

<?A52F2.?A< 202:/2?
G:6996<;



59

Shareholder Information
p106-116

Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


+>C0;

  

K

 
 
 
 
 
K
 
  

  

Financial Statements
p55-105

<?A52F2.?A< 202:/2?
G:6996<;

<;@<961.A21.@59<D(A.A2:2;A
5>AC74H40AC>424<14A 

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

G:6996<;

& >C4

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54
Financial Statements
p55-105

$ 2A0.@5B@216; 3?<:<=2?.A6;4.0A6C6A62@

;C2@A6;4.0A6C6A62@
!=C4A4BCA4248E43
8E834=3BA4248E435A><9>8=CE4=CDA4B
(A>2443B>=38B?>B0;>5?A>?4ACH ?;0=C0=38=E4BC<4=CB
(DA270B4B>5?A>?4ACH ?;0=C0=38=E4BC<4=CB
(DA270B4B>5B>5CF0A4
<>D=CB8=E4BC438=9>8=CE4=CDA4B
<>D=CBA4?0835A>< ;>0=43C>9>8=CE4=CDA4B
8B?>B0;>5BD1B8380A84B
$ 2A0.@53?<:6;C2@A6;4.0A6C6A62@

6;.;06;4.0A6C6A62@
(A>2443B5A><B0;4>5>F=B70A4B
0B72>BC>5B0C8B5H8=6B70A4>?C8>=B
(DA270B4>5>F=B70A4B
)4?0H<4=C>53414=CDA4;>0=B
!=2A40B48=3414=CDA4;>0=B
)4?0H<4=C>5>E4A3A05CB 10=:0=3>C74A;>0=B
!=2A40B48=10=:0=3>C74A;>0=B
$ 2A0.@5B@216;36;.;06;4.0A6C6A62@

$ 2A120?2.@2 6;0?2.@26;0.@5.;10.@52>B6C.92;A@
.@5.;10.@52>B6C.92;A@.A/246;;6;4<3F2.?
5542C>55>A486=4G270=64A0C4270=64B
.@5.;10.@52>B6C.92;A@.A2;1<3F2.?














  

 

 




 
 
H

  
 


 

 
 
 
 
K



 
 
 
H
 
H
  

K
 
K
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Shareholder Information
p106-116
60



Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

$ <A2@A<A52<;@<961.A216;.;06.9(A.A2:2;A@
5>AC74H40AC>424<14A 

9>8=CE4=CDA4B C74A>D?A42>6=8B4B>=;H8CBB70A4>50=H?A>58CB>A
;>BB4B =0<4;HC70C?A>?>AC8>=B>;3>DCB834C74A>D? 

+742>=B>;830C4358=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB70E4144=?A4?0A43>=06>8=6
2>=24A=10B8B0=3>=078BC>A820;2>BC10B8B4G24?C0B>C74AF8B4
BC0C4314;>F 

.74A409>8=C;H2>=CA>;;43>?4A0C8>=8BD=34AC0:4=C74A4;0C430BB4CB
0=3;8018;8C84B0A42>=B>;830C43>=0?A>?>AC8>=0;2>=B>;830C8>=10B8B 

+74A>D?70BB86=85820=C;HA43D2438CB341C>DCBC0=38=6C7A>D67C74
H40A0=370B?A4?0A4305>A420BC5>A0?4A8>36A40C4AC70=<>=C7B 
+78B5>A420BC8=3820C4BC70CC74A>D?F8;;70E4BD558284=CA4B>DA24B5>A
0C;40BCC74=4GC<>=C7B5A><C7430C4>5B86=8=6C74B458=0=280;
BC0C4<4=CB 

.@6@<3.00<B;A6;4

(24:2;A.9?2=<?A6;4
+74A>D?8B38E83438=C>C7A44>?4A0C8=638E8B8>=B5>A<0=064<4=C
A4?>AC8=60=32>=CA>;
 >DB8=6,=8C43#8=63><
 >DB8=6*?08=0=3
 >A?>A0C4
+74A>D?2><?;4C43C7438B?>B0;>58CB& >AC7<4A820=1DB8=4BB
8="D;H  +74B4A4BD;CB70E4144=?A4B4=C430B38B2>=C8=D43
>?4A0C8>=B !=022>A30=24F8C7C74A4@D8A4<4=CB>5!)*
/8B2>=C8=D43>?4A0C8>=B0=30BB4CB74;35>AB0;4C74?A8>AH40A
A4BD;CB>5C74& >AC7<4A820=1DB8=4BB70E4144=A4BC0C435>AC74
8=2><4BC0C4<4=C 20B75;>F0=3A4;0C43=>C4B 

">8=CE4=CDA4B
,=34AC0:8=6B0A4344<43C>1409>8=CE4=CDA4F74=C74A>D?70B
9>8=C2>=CA>;E8048C74AE>C8=6A867CB>A05>A<0;06A44<4=CF7827
8=2;D34BC70CD=0=8<>DB2>=B4=C8BA4@D8A435>ABCA0C4682 58=0=280;0=3
>?4A0C8=63428B8>=B ">8=CE4=CDA4B0A42>=B>;830C43D=34AC744@D8CH
022>D=C8=6<4C7>3 '=CA0=B54A>5;0=30=3 >AF>A:8=?A>6A4BBC>
Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


.74A4C74>DC2><4>502>=BCAD2C8>=2>=CA02C20==>C144BC8<0C43
A4;801;H 2>=CA02CA4E4=D48BA42>6=8B43C>C744GC4=C>52>=CA02C2>BCB
8=2DAA43C70C8C8B?A>101;4F8;;14A42>E4A01;4 >=CA02C2>BCB0A4
A42>6=8B430B4G?4=B4B8=C74?4A8>38=F7827C74H0A48=2DAA43 
.74=8C8B?A>101;4C70CC>C0;2>=CA02C2>BCBF8;;4G2443C>C0;2>=CA02C
A4E4=D4 C744G?42C43;>BB8BA42>6=8B430B0=4G?4=B48<<4380C4;H 

3 !=C4A4BCA4248E01;4
!=C4A4BC8=2><4>=10=:34?>B8CB8BA42>6=8B43>=0=022AD0;B10B8B 
;B>8=2;D3438=8=C4A4BCA4248E01;40A48=C4A4BC0=38=C4A4BCA4;0C43
?0H<4=CBC74A>D?A4248E4B>=>C74AA4248E01;4B 




61

Shareholder Information
p106-116

+74A4BD;CB>5BD1B8380A84B02@D8A43>A38B?>B43>53DA8=6C74H40A0A4
8=2;D3438=C74>=B>;830C43!=2><4*C0C4<4=C5A><C7445542C8E430C4
>502@D8B8C8>=>AD?C>C7445542C8E430C4>538B?>B0; 0B0??A>?A80C4 
.74A40BD1B8380AH8B38B?>B43>5F78272>=BC8CDC430<09>A;8=4>5
1DB8=4BB 8C8B38B2;>B430B038B2>=C8=D43>?4A0C8>= .74A4
=424BB0AH 039DBC<4=CB0A4<034C>C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB>5
BD1B8380A84BC>1A8=6C74022>D=C8=6?>;8284BDB438=C>;8=4F8C7C7>B4
DB431HC74A>D? ;;8=CA0 A>D?CA0=B02C8>=B 10;0=24B 8=2><40=3
4G?4=B4B0A44;8<8=0C43>=2>=B>;830C8>= 

Financial Statements
p55-105

+742>=B>;830C4358=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB70E4144=?A4?0A438=
022>A30=24F8C70??;8201;4!=C4A=0C8>=0;22>D=C8=6*C0=30A3B!* 
!=C4A=0C8>=0;8=0=280;)4?>AC8=6*C0=30A3B!)*0=3!=C4A=0C8>=0;
8=0=280;)4?>AC8=6!=C4A?A4C0C8>=B><<8CC44!)!8=C4A?A4C0C8>=B
0B03>?C435>ADB48=C74DA>?40=,=8>=0=3C7>B4?0ACB>5C74
'2C2;B2
><?0=84B2C 0??;8201;4C>2><?0=84BA4?>AC8=6D=34A!)*
A4;4E0=CC>C74A>D?B>?4A0C8>=B0=345542C8E45>A022>D=C8=6?4A8>3B )4E4=D42><?A8B4BC74508AE0;D4>5C742>=B834A0C8>=A4248E43>A
A4248E01;4 =4C>5E0;D403343C0G A410C4B0=338B2>D=CB0=305C4A
1468==8=6>="0=D0AH  
4;8<8=0C8=6B0;4BF8C78=C74A>D? )4E4=D40=3?A>58C0A4A42>6=8B43
.@6@<30<;@<961.A6<;
0B5>;;>FB
+742>=B>;830C4358=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB8=2>A?>A0C4C7458=0=280;
0 (A8E0C47>DB8=634E4;>?<4=C?A>?4AC84B0=3;0=3B0;4B
BC0C4<4=CB>5C74><?0=H0=34=C8C84B2>=CA>;;431HC74><?0=H
)4E4=D48BA42>6=8B438=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=CF74=C74B86=85820=C
8CBBD1B8380A84B<034D?C>424<14A4027H40A >=CA>;8B
A8B:B0=3A4F0A3B>5>F=4AB78?70E4144=CA0=B54AA43C>C74
02784E43F74A4C74><?0=H70BC74?>F4AC>6>E4A=C7458=0=280;
?DA270B4A )4E4=D48=A4B?42C>5C74B0;4>5A4B834=C80;?A>?4AC84B8B
0=3>?4A0C8=6?>;8284B>50=8=E4BC444=C8CHB>0BC>>1C08=14=458CB
A42>6=8B430CC74508AE0;D4>5C742>=B834A0C8>=A4248E43>AA4248E01;4
5A><8CB02C8E8C84B +744G8BC4=240=345542C>5?>C4=C80;E>C8=6A867CB
>=;460;2><?;4C8>= 
C70C0A42DAA4=C;H4G4A28B01;4>A2>=E4AC81;40A42>=B834A43F74=
0BB4BB8=6F74C74AC74A>D?2>=CA>;B0=>C74A4=C8CH 
1 0B78=24=C8E4B
0B78=24=C8E4B0A42>=B834A43C>14038B2>D=C5A><C74?DA270B4
'=02@D8B8C8>= C740BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B0=32>=C8=64=C;8018;8C84B>50
?A824>554A43C>C7402@D8A4A0=30A4C74A45>A4022>D=C435>A0B0
BD1B8380AH0A4<40BDA430CC748A508AE0;D4B0CC7430C4>502@D8B8C8>= 
A43D2C8>=C>A4E4=D4 
=H4G24BB>5C742>BC>502@D8B8C8>=>E4AC74508AE0;D4B>5C74
834=C85801;4=4C0BB4CB02@D8A438BA42>6=8B430B6>>3F8;; =H
2 >=CA02C8=6F>A:0=3B>280;7>DB8=62>=CA02CB
3458284=2H>5C742>BC>502@D8B8C8>=14;>FC74508AE0;D4B>5C74
.74A4C74>DC2><4>502>=BCAD2C8>=2>=CA02C20=144BC8<0C43
834=C85801;4=4C0BB4CB02@D8A438 4 38B2>D=C>=02@D8B8C8>=8B2A438C43 A4;801;H A4E4=D40=32>BCB0A4A42>6=8B431HA454A4=24C>C74BC064>5
C>C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C8=C74?4A8>3>502@D8B8C8>= +748=C4A4BC>5
2><?;4C8>=>5C742>=CA02C02C8E8CH0CC7410;0=24B744C30C4 +78B8B
<8=>A8CHB70A47>;34AB8BBC0C430CC74<8=>A8CHB?A>?>AC8>=>5C74508A
=>A<0;;H<40BDA431HBDAE4HB>5F>A:?4A5>A<43C>30C4 -0A80C8>=B8=
E0;D4B>5C740BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84BA42>6=8B43 *D1B4@D4=C;H 0=H
2>=CA02CF>A: 2;08<B0=38=24=C8E4?0H<4=CB0A48=2;D343C>C74
;>BB4B0??;8201;4C>C74=>= 2>=CA>;;8=68=C4A4BC8=4G24BB>5C74=>=
4GC4=CC70C8C8B?A>101;4C70CC74HF8;;A4BD;C8=A4E4=D40=3C74H0A4
2>=CA>;;8=68=C4A4BC0A40;;>20C430608=BCC748=C4A4BCB>5C74?0A4=C 
20?01;4>5148=6A4;801;H<40BDA43 

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

+74?A8=28?0;022>D=C8=6?>;8284B03>?C43 F782770E4144=0??;843
2>=B8BC4=C;H 4G24?C0B>C74AF8B4BC0C43 0A4B4C>DC14;>F 

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

(64;6360.;A.00<B;A6;4=<96062@
.@6@<3=?2=.?.A6<;

$ <A2@A<A52<;@<961.A216;.;06.9(A.A2:2;A@0<;A6;B21

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27
Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

(64;6360.;A.00<B;A6;4=<96062@0<;A6;B21
E02=A6<;.96A2:@

A42>6=8B438<<4380C4;H8=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C0=38B=>C
BD1B4@D4=C;HA4E4AB43 

G24?C8>=0;8C4<B0A43458=430B8C4<B>58=2><4>A4G?4=38CDA4
F7827 8=C74>?8=8>=>5C748A42C>AB 0A4<0C4A80;0=3D=DBD0;8=
=0CDA4>A>5BD27B86=85820=24C70CC74HA4@D8A4B4?0A0C438B2;>BDA4
>=C745024>5C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C8=022>A30=24F8C7!*
/(A4B4=C0C8>=>58=0=280;*C0C4<4=CB 

>AC74?DA?>B4>58<?08A<4=CC4BC8=6 6>>3F8;;8B0;;>20C43C>20B7
64=4A0C8=6D=8CB +740;;>20C8>=8B<034C>C7>B420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8CB
C70C0A44G?42C43C>14=458C5A><C741DB8=4BB2><18=0C8>=8=F7827
C746>>3F8;;0A>B4 0B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8CBC>F78276>>3F8;;70B144=
0;;>20C430A4C4BC435>A8<?08A<4=C0==D0;;H >A<>A45A4@D4=C;HF74=
C74A48B0=8=3820C8>=C70CC74D=8C<0H148<?08A43 !5C74A42>E4A01;4
0<>D=C>5C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8C8B;4BBC70=C7420AAH8=60<>D=C
>5C74D=8C C748<?08A<4=C;>BB8B0;;>20C4358ABCC>A43D24C7420AAH8=6
0<>D=C>50=H6>>3F8;;0;;>20C43C>C74D=8C0=3C74=C>C74>C74A
0BB4CB>5C74D=8C?A> A0C0>=C7410B8B>5C7420AAH8=60<>D=C>54027
0BB4C8=C74D=8C 

<?264;0B??2;062@
+748=38E83D0;58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB>54027A>D?2><?0=H0A4
?A4B4=C438=C742DAA4=2H>5C74?A8<0AH42>=><824=E8A>=<4=C8=
F78278C>?4A0C4B8CB5D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H +A0=B02C8>=B8=2DAA4=284B
>C74AC70=C745D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H0A4A42>A3430CC74A0C4B>5
4G270=64?A4E08;8=6>=C7430C4B>5C74CA0=B02C8>=B C402710;0=24
B744C30C4 <>=4C0AH0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84BC70C0A434=><8=0C438=
5>A486=2DAA4=284B>C74AC70=C745D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H0A4A4CA0=B;0C43
0CC74A0C4B?A4E08;8=6>=C7410;0=24B744C30C4 & >= <>=4C0AH
0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B20AA8430C508AE0;D4C70C0A434=><8=0C438=5>A486=
2DAA4=284B0A4CA0=B;0C430CC74A0C4B?A4E08;8=60CC7430C4F74=C74
508AE0;D4F0B34C4A<8=43 08=B0=3;>BB4B0A8B8=6>=A4CA0=B;0C8>=0A4
8=2;D3438==4C?A>58C>A;>BB5>AC74?4A8>3 

'=38B?>B0;>50BD1B8380AH>A9>8=C;H 2>=CA>;;434=C8CH C7420AAH8=6
E0;D4>50=H0CCA81DC01;46>>3F8;;8B8=2;D3438=C7434C4A<8=0C8>=>5C74
?A>58C>A;>BB>=38B?>B0; 

%A52?6;A.;46/92.@@2A@
A0=3B

Financial Statements
p55-105

!=C4A=0;;H64=4A0C431A0=3B0A4=>C20?8C0;8B43 2@D8A431A0=3B0A4
20?8C0;8B43 +748AE0;D4B0A420;2D;0C4310B43>=C74A>D?BE0;D0C8>=
<4C7>3>;>6H F78278B10B43>=E0;D0C8>=B>538B2>D=C4320B75;>FB 
A0=3B0A4BC0C430C2>BC ;4BB022D<D;0C430<>AC8B0C8>=0=30=H
022D<D;0C438<?08A<4=C;>BB4B 

'=2>=B>;830C8>= C740BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B>5C74A>D?B>E4AB40B
>?4A0C8>=B0A4CA0=B;0C430C4G270=64A0C4B?A4E08;8=6>=C7410;0=24
B744C30C4 !=2><40=34G?4=B48C4<B0A4CA0=B;0C430C0=
0??A>?A80C40E4A064A0C45>AC74H40A G270=6438554A4=24B0A8B8=60A4
2;0BB858430B4@D8CH0=3CA0=B54AA43C>C74A>D?BCA0=B;0C8>=A4B4AE4 
*D27CA0=B;0C8>=38554A4=24B0A4A42>6=8B430B8=2><4>A0B4G?4=B4B
8=C74?4A8>38=F7827C74>?4A0C8>=8B38B?>B43>5 

*>5CF0A434E4;>?<4=C2>BCB
>BCBC70C0A438A42C;H0BB>280C43F8C7C74?A>3D2C8>=>5834=C85801;4
0=3D=8@D4B>5CF0A42>=CA>;;431HC74A>D? 0=3C70C64=4A0C4
42>=><8214=458CB14H>=3>=4H40A 0A4A42>6=8B430B8=C0=681;4
0BB4CB ><?DC4AB>5CF0A434E4;>?<4=C2>BCBA42>6=8B430B0BB4CB
0A40<>AC8B43>=0BCA0867C ;8=410B8B>E4AC7A44C>58E4H40AB5A><C74
C8<4>58<?;4<4=C0C8>= 0=30A4BC0C430C2>BC;4BB022D<D;0C43
0<>AC8B0C8>=0=30=H022D<D;0C438<?08A<4=C;>BB4B 

Shareholder Information
p106-116

>>3F8;;0=3508AE0;D4039DBC<4=CB0A8B8=6>=C7402@D8B8C8>=>50
5>A486=4=C8CH0A4CA40C430B0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B>5C745>A486=4=C8CH
0=3CA0=B;0C430CC742;>B8=6A0C4 +74A>D?70B4;42C43C>CA40C
6>>3F8;;0=3508AE0;D4039DBC<4=CB0A8B8=6>=02@D8B8C8>=B145>A4C74
30C4>5CA0=B8C8>=C>!)*0B0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B34=><8=0C438=C74
5D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H>5C742><?0=H8=F7827C74H0A>B4 

& ?<=2?AF=9.;A.;12>B6=:2;A
$0=30=31D8;38=6B74;35>ADB48=C74?A>3D2C8>=>ABD??;H>56>>3B
>AB4AE824B >A5>A03<8=8BCA0C8E4?DA?>B4B 0A4BC0C438=C7410;0=24
B744C0C2>BC;4BB022D<D;0C4334?A4280C8>=0=30=H022D<D;0C43
8<?08A<4=C;>BB4B A447>;3;0=38B=>C34?A4280C43 D8;38=6B0A4
34?A4280C43>E4A H40AB 

+74A>D?4=C4AB8=C>5>AF0A32>=CA02CB8=>A34AC>743648CB
4G?>BDA4C>24AC08=5>A486=4G270=64CA0=B02C8>=A8B:BA4;0C8=6C>C74
5D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H8=022>A30=24F8C7A>D??>;82H !C0;B>DB4B
5>A486=2DAA4=2H1>AA>F8=6B0=334A8E0C8E4BC>743648CB=4C
8=E4BC<4=C4G?>BDA4C>24AC08=>E4AB40BBD1B8380A84BB4414;>F5>A
34C08;B>5C74A>D?B022>D=C8=6?>;8284B8=A4B?42C>5BD2734A8E0C8E4
58=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB 

(;0=C0=34@D8?<4=C8BBC0C430C2>BC;4BB34?A4280C8>= 4?A4280C8>=
8B270A643B>0BC>4G?4=B4C742>BC>AE0;D0C8>=>50BB4CB>E4AC748A
4BC8<0C43DB45D;;8E4B 4?A4280C8>=8B270A643 F74A4<0C4A80; >=
1D8;38=6B>E4AC744G?42C43DB45D;;854>5C740BB4C 'C74A0BB4CB0A4
34?A4280C43DB8=6C74BCA0867C ;8=4<4C7>3 >=C745>;;>F8=610B4B

%=2?.A6;492.@2@
+74A>D?0B;4BB44
)4=C0;B?0H01;4D=34A>?4A0C8=6;40B4B0A4270A643C>8=2><4>=0
BCA0867C ;8=410B8B>E4AC74C4A<>5C74A4;4E0=C;40B4 4=458CBA4248E43
0=3A4248E01;40=32>BCB?0830=3?0H01;40B0=8=24=C8E4C>4=C4A
8=C>0=>?4A0C8=6;40B40A40;B>B?A403>=0BCA0867C ;8=410B8B>E4AC74
;40B4C4A< 

(;0=C 58GCDA4B0=34@D8?<4=C 0=32><?DC4A
4@D8?<4=C 
+74608=>A;>BB0A8B8=6>=C7438B?>B0;>AA4C8A4<4=C>50=0BB4C8B
34C4A<8=430BC7438554A4=2414CF44=C74B0;4?A>2443B ;4BB0=H
B4;;8=64G?4=B4B 0=3C7420AAH8=60<>D=C>5C740BB4C0=3C78B
38554A4=248BA42>6=8B438=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C 

 <<1D699
>>3F8;;0A8B8=6>=2>=B>;830C8>=A4?A4B4=CBC744G24BB>5C742>BC>5
02@D8B8C8>=>E4AC74A>D?B8=C4A4BC8=C74508AE0;D4>5C74834=C85801;4
0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B>50BD1B8380AH>A9>8=C;H2>=CA>;;434=C8CH0CC74
30C4>502@D8B8C8>= >>3F8;;8B8=8C80;;HA42>6=8B430B0=0BB4C0C2>BC
0=38BBD1B4@D4=C;H<40BDA430C2>BC;4BB0=H022D<D;0C43
8<?08A<4=C;>BB4B >>3F8;;F78278BA42>6=8B430B0=0BB4C8B
A4E84F435>A8<?08A<4=C0C;40BC0==D0;;H =H8<?08A<4=C8B

62



Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011



C402710;0=24B744C30C4 C74A>D?A4E84FBC7420AAH8=60<>D=CB
>58CBC0=681;40=38=C0=681;40BB4CBC>34C4A<8=4F74C74AC74A4
8B0=H8=3820C8>=C70CC7>B40BB4CB70E4BD554A430=8<?08A<4=C;>BB 
!50=HBD278=3820C8>=4G8BCB C74A42>E4A01;40<>D=C>5C740BB4C8B
4BC8<0C438=>A34AC>34C4A<8=4C744GC4=C>5C748<?08A<4=C;>BB
850=H .74A4C740BB4C3>4B=>C64=4A0C420B75;>FBC70C0A4
8=34?4=34=C5A><>C74A0BB4CB C74A>D?4BC8<0C4BC74A42>E4A01;4
0<>D=C>5C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8CC>F7827C740BB4C14;>=6B 

!5C745D;;8<?08A<4=C>58=C0=681;40BB4CB8B=>CBD558284=CC>A43D24C74
20AAH8=6E0;D4>5C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8CC>8CBA42>E4A01;40<>D=C 
C0=681;458G430BB4CB<DBCC74=14A4E84F435>A8<?08A<4=C !5C74
A42>E4A01;40<>D=C>5C0=681;458G430BB4CB4G2443BC748A20AAH8=6
E0;D4 =>5DAC74A8<?08A<4=C8BA4@D8A43 =8<?08A<4=C;>BB8B
A42>6=8B430B0=4G?4=B48<<4380C4;H D=;4BBC74A4;4E0=C0BB4C8B
20AA8430C0A4E0;D430<>D=C 8=F782720B4C748<?08A<4=C;>BB8B
CA40C430B0A4E0;D0C8>=342A40B4 

6;.;06.96;@A?B:2;A@
8=0=280;0BB4CB0=358=0=280;;8018;8C84B0A4A42>6=8B43>=C74A>D?B
10;0=24B744CF74=C74A>D?142><4B0?0ACHC>C742>=CA02CD0;
?A>E8B8>=B>5C748=BCAD<4=C 

+A034A4248E01;4B0=3>C74AA4248E01;4B
+A034A4248E01;4B>==>A<0;C4A<B4G2;D38=634A8E0C8E458=0=280;
8=BCAD<4=CB3>=>C20AAH0=H8=C4A4BC0=30A4BC0C430CC748A=><8=0;
E0;D40BA43D2431H0??A>?A80C40;;>F0=24B5>A4BC8<0C43
D=A42>E4A01;40<>D=CB +A034A4248E01;4B>=4GC4=343C4A<B 
?0AC82D;0A;H8=A4B?42C>5;0=3 0A4<40BDA430C0<>AC8B432>BCDB8=6
C7445542C8E48=C4A4BC<4C7>3 ;4BB0=H8<?08A<4=C !=C4A4BC8=2><48B
A42>6=8B431H0??;H8=6C7445542C8E48=C4A4BCA0C4 4A8E0C8E458=0=280;
8=BCAD<4=CB0A4<40BDA430C508AE0;D4 
% >AC6064A4248E01;4BA4;0C4C>B0;4B8=24=C8E4B8=2;D38=6B70A43
4@D8CH .74A4C74A4248E01;48B3D4>E4A>=4H40A8C8B38B2>D=C43
C>?A4B4=CE0;D4 

Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


!=C4A4BC140A8=610=:;>0=B0=3>E4A3A05CB0A4A42>A3430CC74
?A>2443BA4248E43 =4C>538A42C8BBD42>BCB 8=0=24270A64B 
8=2;D38=6?A4<8D<B?0H01;4>=B4CC;4<4=C>AA434<?C8>=0=338A42C
8BBD42>BCB 0A4022>D=C435>A>=0=022AD0;B10B8BC>C748=2><4
BC0C4<4=CDB8=6C7445542C8E48=C4A4BC<4C7>30=30A403343C>C74
20AAH8=60<>D=C>5C748=BCAD<4=CC>C744GC4=CC70CC74H0A4=>C
B4CC;438=C74?4A8>38=F7827C74H0A8B4 

+A034?0H01;4B
+A034?0H01;4B>==>A<0;C4A<B0A4=>C8=C4A4BC140A8=60=30A4
BC0C430CC748A=><8=0;E0;D4 +A034?0H01;4B>=4GC4=343C4A<B 
?0AC82D;0A;H8=A4B?42C>5;0=3 0A4A42>A3430CC748A508AE0;D40CC74
30C4>502@D8B8C8>=>5C740BB4CC>F7827C74HA4;0C4 +7438B2>D=CC>
=><8=0;E0;D48B0<>AC8B43>E4AC74?4A8>3>5C742A438CC4A<0=3
270A643C>58=0=242>BCB 

4A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB0=374364022>D=C8=6
+74A>D?DB4B5>AF0A34G270=642>=CA02CBC>74364CA0=B02C8>=B
34=><8=0C438=5>A486=2DAA4=284B +74A>D?0;B>DB4B5>A486=
2DAA4=2H1>AA>F8=6B0=334A8E0C8E4BC>743648CB=4C8=E4BC<4=C
4G?>BDA4C><>E4<4=CB8=4G270=64A0C4B>=CA0=B;0C8>=>524AC08=
8=38E83D0;58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB34=><8=0C438=5>A486=2DAA4=284B>C74A
C70=*C4A;8=6F78278BC745D=2C8>=0;2DAA4=2H>5C74?0A4=C><?0=H 
!=C4A4BCA0C434A8E0C8E4B0A4DB43C><0=0648=C4A4BCA0C4A8B:8=A4B?42C
>51>AA>F8=6B +74A>D?3>4B=>CDB434A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB
5>AB?42D;0C8E4?DA?>B4B 
4A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB0A4<40BDA430C508AE0;D4 70=64B
8=C74508AE0;D4>534A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CBC70C0A434B86=0C43
0=345542C8E40B74364B>5=4C8=E4BC<4=CB8=5>A486=>?4A0C8>=B0A4
A42>6=8B4338A42C;H8=A4B4AE4B0=3C748=45542C8E4?>AC8>= 850=H 
8BA42>6=8B438<<4380C4;H8=C74>=B>;830C43!=2><4*C0C4<4=C 
>A0=45542C8E474364>50=4G?>BDA4C>270=64B8=C74508AE0;D4 C74
7436438C4<8B039DBC435>A270=64B8=508AE0;D40CCA81DC01;4C>C74A8B:
148=6743643F8C7C742>AA4B?>=38=64=CAH8=C74>=B>;830C43
!=2><4*C0C4<4=C 08=B>A;>BB4B5A><A4<40BDA8=6C7434A8E0C8E4 >A
5>A=>= 34A8E0C8E4BC745>A486=2DAA4=2H2><?>=4=C>58CB20AAH8=6
0<>D=C 0A40;B>A42>6=8B438=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C 
70=64B8=C74508AE0;D4>534A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CBC70C3>=>C
@D0;85H5>A74364022>D=C8=60A4A42>6=8B438=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C
0BC74H0A8B4 
4364022>D=C8=68B38B2>=C8=D43F74=C7474368=68=BCAD<4=C
4G?8A4B>A8BB>;3 C4A<8=0C43 >A4G4A28B43 >A=>;>=64A@D0;8584B5>A
74364022>D=C8=6 CC70CC8<4 0=H2D<D;0C8E4608=>A;>BB>=C74
74368=68=BCAD<4=CA42>6=8B438=A4B4AE4B8BA4C08=438=A4B4AE4BD=C8;
C745>A420BC43CA0=B02C8>=>22DAB !50743643CA0=B02C8>=8B=>;>=64A
4G?42C43C>>22DA C74=4C2D<D;0C8E4608=>A;>BBA42>6=8B438=
A4B4AE4B8BCA0=B54AA43C>C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C5>AC74?4A8>3 !=C74
B8CD0C8>=C70C034A8E0C8E458=0=280;8=BCAD<4=C3>4B=>C<44CC74
B?4285822A8C4A80>5!*/8=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB5>A74368=68C8B
?A4B4=C430B074;35>ACA038=60BB4C>A;8018;8CH
63

Shareholder Information
p106-116

.74A40=8<?08A<4=C;>BBBD1B4@D4=C;HA4E4AB4B C7420AAH8=60<>D=C
>5C740BB4C>A20B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8C8B8=2A40B43C>C74A4E8B43
4BC8<0C4>58CBA42>E4A01;40<>D=C 1DCB>C70CC748=2A40B4320AAH8=6
0<>D=C3>4B=>C4G2443C7420AAH8=60<>D=CC70CF>D;370E4144=
34C4A<8=43703=>8<?08A<4=C;>BB144=A42>6=8B435>AC740BB4C>A
20B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8C8=?A8>AH40AB A4E4AB0;>50=8<?08A<4=C;>BB8B
A42>6=8B430B8=2><48<<4380C4;H D=;4BBC74A4;4E0=C0BB4C8B20AA843
0C0A4E0;D430<>D=C 8=F782720B4C74A4E4AB0;>5C748<?08A<4=C
;>BB8BCA40C430B0A4E0;D0C8>=8=2A40B4 

>AA>F8=6B

Financial Statements
p55-105

!5C74A42>E4A01;40<>D=C>50=0BB4C8B4BC8<0C43C>14;4BBC70=8CB
20AAH8=60<>D=C C7420AAH8=60<>D=C>5C740BB4C8BA43D243C>8CB
A42>E4A01;40<>D=C !5C74A42>E4A01;40<>D=C>5020B7 64=4A0C8=6
D=8C8B4BC8<0C43C>14;4BBC70=8CB20AAH8=60<>D=C 8<?08A<4=C;>BB4B
0A40;;>20C4358ABCC>C748=C0=681;40BB4CB8=C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8C 

8=0=280;;8018;8C84B0=34@D8CH8=BCAD<4=CB0A42;0BB85843022>A38=6C>
C74BD1BC0=24>5C742>=CA02CD0;0AA0=64<4=CB4=C4A438=C> =4@D8CH
8=BCAD<4=C8B0=H2>=CA02CC70C4E834=24B0A4B83D0;8=C4A4BC8=C74
0BB4CB>5C74A>D?05C4A343D2C8=60;;>58CB;8018;8C84B @D8CH
8=BCAD<4=CB8BBD431HC74><?0=H0A4A42>A3430CC74?A>2443B
A4248E43 =4C>538A42C8BBD42>BCB 

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

)42>E4A01;40<>D=C8BC7478674A>5508AE0;D4;4BB2>BCBC>B4;;0=3
E0;D48=DB4 !=0BB4BB8=6E0;D48=DB4 C744BC8<0C435DCDA420B75;>FB
0A438B2>D=C43C>C748A?A4B4=CE0;D4 DB8=60?A4 C0G38B2>D=CA0C4
C70CA45;42CB2DAA4=C<0A:4C0BB4BB<4=CB>5C74C8<4E0;D4>5<>=4H
0=3C74A8B:BB?428582C>C740BB4C5>AF7827C744BC8<0C4B>55DCDA4
20B75;>FB70E4=>C144=039DBC43 

8=0=280;;8018;8C84B0=34@D8CH8=BCAD<4=CB

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

(64;6360.;A.00<B;A6;4=<96062@0<;A6;B21
:=.6?:2;A<3A.;46/92.;16;A.;46/92.@@2A@
2E09B16;44<<1D699

$ <A2@A<A52<;@<961.A216;.;06.9(A.A2:2;A@0<;A6;B21

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

(64;6360.;A.00<B;A6;4=<96062@0<;A6;B21
B@A<:2?12=<@6A@

454AA43C0G0C8>=8B<40BDA43>=0=>= 38B2>D=C4310B8BDB8=6
C74C0GA0C4B0=3;0FBC70C70E4C74=144=4=02C43>ABD1BC0=C8E4;H
DBC><4A34?>B8CB0A4A42>A3430B0;8018;8CHF8C78=/>C74A?0H01;4B>= 4=02C431HC7410;0=24B744C30C4 
A4248?C0=3A4;40B43C>C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C0BA4E4=D4D?>=;460;
+7420AAH8=60<>D=C>53454AA43C0G0BB4CB8BA4E84F430C4027
2><?;4C8>= 
10;0=24B744C30C40=3A43D243C>C744GC4=CC70C8C8B=>;>=64A
?A>101;4C70CBD558284=CC0G01;4?A>58CBF8;;140E08;01;4C>0;;>F0;;>A
?0AC>5C740BB4CC>14A42>E4A43 454AA43C0G8B270A643>A2A438C43
8=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=C 4G24?CF74=8CA4;0C4BC>8C4<B270A643>A
2A438C4338A42C;HC>A4B4AE4B 8=F782720B4C743454AA43C0G8B0;B>
340;CF8C78=A4B4AE4B 

& ?<C6@6<;@

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

(A>E8B8>=B0A4A42>6=8B43F74=C74A>D?70B0?A4B4=C>1;860C8>=
0B0A4BD;C>50?0BC4E4=C 0=38C8B?A>101;4C70CC74A>D?F8;;14
A4@D8A43C>B4CC;4C70C>1;860C8>= (A>E8B8>=B0A4<40BDA430CC74
8A42C>AB14BC4BC8<0C4>5C744G?4=38CDA4A4@D8A43C>B4CC;4C74
>1;860C8>=0CC7410;0=24B744C30C40=30A438B2>D=C43C>?A4B4=C
E0;D4F74A4C7445542C8B<0C4A80; 

(5.?2 /.@21=.F:2;A@
+74A>D?70B0??;843C74A4@D8A4<4=CB>5!)*/*70A4 10B43
?0H<4=CB !=022>A30=24F8C7C74CA0=B8C8>=0;?A>E8B8>=B !)*70B
144=0??;843C>0;;6A0=CB>54@D8CH8=BCAD<4=CB05C4A& >E4<14A 
C70CF4A4D=E4BC430B>5"0=D0AH  

;C2;A<?62@

Financial Statements
p55-105

!=E4=C>A84B0A48=8C80;;HBC0C430C2>BC>A0CC74508AE0;D40C02@D8B8C8>=
30C4F74=02@D8A430B?0AC>501DB8=4BB2><18=0C8>=0=3C74=
74;30CC74;>F4A>5C78B8=8C80;0<>D=C0=3=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D4 >BC
2><?A8B4B38A42C<0C4A80;B0=3 F74A40??;8201;4 38A42C;01>DA
2>BCB0=3C7>B4>E4A7403BC70C70E4144=8=2DAA438=1A8=68=6C74
8=E4=C>A84BC>C748A?A4B4=C;>20C8>=0=32>=38C8>= & 4CA40;8B01;4
E0;D4A4?A4B4=CBC744BC8<0C43B4;;8=6?A824;4BB0;;4BC8<0C432>BCB
>52><?;4C8>=0=32>BCBC>148=2DAA438=<0A:4C8=6 B4;;8=60=3
38BCA81DC8>= $0=38BA42>6=8B438=8=E4=C>AHF74=C74B86=85820=C
A8B:B0=3A4F0A3B>5>F=4AB78?70E4144=CA0=B54AA43C>C74A>D? 

+74A>D?8BBD4B4@D8CH B4CC;43B70A4 10B43?0H<4=CBC>24AC08=
4<?;>H44B @D8CH B4CC;43B70A4 10B43?0H<4=CB0A4<40BDA430C508A
E0;D40CC7430C4>56A0=C +74508AE0;D48B4G?4=B43>=0BCA0867C ;8=4
10B8B>E4AC74E4BC8=6?4A8>3 10B43>=C74A>D?B4BC8<0C4>5
B70A4BC70CF8;;4E4=CD0;;HE4BC05C4A039DBC8=65>AC7445542C>5
=>= <0A:4CE4BC8=62>=38C8>=B 

:=9<F22/2;236A@
+74A>D?022>D=CB5>A?4=B8>=B0=3B8<8;0A14=458CBD=34A!*
<?;>H4414=458CB !=A4B?42C>53458=4314=458C?;0=B >1;860C8>=B0A4
<40BDA430C38B2>D=C43?A4B4=CE0;D4F78;BC?;0=0BB4CB0A4A42>A343
0C508AE0;D4 +74>?4A0C8=60=358=0=28=62>BCB>5BD27?;0=B0A4
A42>6=8B43B4?0A0C4;H8=C748=2><4BC0C4<4=CB4AE8242>BCB0A4
B?A403BHBC4<0C820;;H>E4AC74;8E4B>54<?;>H44B0=358=0=28=6
2>BCB0A4A42>6=8B438=C74?4A8>3B8=F7827C74H0A8B4 2CD0A80;
608=B0=3;>BB4B0A4A42>6=8B438<<4380C4;H8=C74BC0C4<4=C>5
2><?A474=B8E48=2><4 

& >= A45D=301;4;0=3>?C8>=?0H<4=CB0A48=8C80;;HA42>6=8B438=
8=E4=C>AH +74H0A4A4E84F43A46D;0A;H0=3FA8CC4=>55C>C748=2><4
BC0C4<4=CF74=8C8B?A>101;4C70CC74HF8;;=>C144G4A28B43 

).E.A6<;
+74C0G270A64A4?A4B4=CBC74BD<>5C74C0G2DAA4=C;H?0H01;40=3
3454AA43C0G 

DAA4=CC0G
Shareholder Information
p106-116

+74C0G2DAA4=C;H?0H01;48B10B43>=C0G01;4?A>58C5>AC74H40A 
+0G01;4?A>58C38554AB5A><=4C?A>58C0BA4?>AC438=C748=2><4
BC0C4<4=C1420DB48C4G2;D34B8C4<B>58=2><4>A4G?4=B4C70C0A4
C0G01;4>A343D2C81;48=>C74AH40AB0=38C5DAC74A4G2;D34B8C4<BC70C
0A4=4E4AC0G01;4>A343D2C81;4 +74A>D?B;8018;8CH5>A2DAA4=CC0G
8B20;2D;0C43DB8=6C0GA0C4BC70C70E4144=4=02C43>ABD1BC0=C8E4;H
4=02C431HC7410;0=24B744C30C4 

(0H<4=CBC>3458=432>=CA81DC8>=B274<4B0A4270A6430B0=
4G?4=B40BC74H50;;3D4 

!2F@<B?02@<32@A6:.A6<;B;02?A.6;AF.;10?6A60.9
.00<B;A6;47B142:2;A@
BC8<0C8>=>52>BCBC>2><?;4C4
!=>A34AC>34C4A<8=4C74?A>58CC70CC74A>D?8B01;4C>A42>6=8B4>=
C74?A>?>AC8>=>52><?;4C8>=B5>AC74?4A8>3 8=C4A=0;B8C4E0;D0C8>=B0A4
20AA843>DC5>A402734E4;>?<4=C0CA46D;0A8=C4AE0;BC7A>D67>DCC74
H40A +74E0;D0C8>=BF8;;8=2;D340=4BC8<0C8>=>5C742>BCBC>2><?;4C4
0=3A4<08=8=6A4E4=D4BF7827<0H38554A5A><C7402CD0;2>BCB
8=2DAA430=3A4E4=D4BA4248E43>=2><?;4C8>= 

454AA43C0G
454AA43C0G8BC74C0G4G?42C43C>14?0H01;4>AA42>E4A01;4>=
38554A4=24B14CF44=C7420AAH8=60<>D=CB>50BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B8=
C7458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB0=3C742>AA4B?>=38=6C0G10B4BDB438=C74
2><?DC0C8>=>5C0G01;4?A>58C 0=38B022>D=C435>ADB8=6C7410;0=24
B744C;8018;8CH<4C7>3 454AA43C0G;8018;8C84B0A464=4A0;;HA42>6=8B43
5>A0;;C0G01;4C4<?>A0AH38554A4=24B0=33454AA43C0G0BB4CB0A4
A42>6=8B43C>C744GC4=CC70C8C8B?A>101;4C70CC0G01;4?A>58CBF8;;14
0E08;01;40608=BCF7827343D2C81;4C4<?>A0AH38554A4=24B20=14
DC8;8B43 *D270BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B0A4=>CA42>6=8B4385C74C4<?>A0AH
38554A4=240A8B4B5A><6>>3F8;;>A5A><C748=8C80;A42>6=8C8>=>C74AC70=
8=01DB8=4BB2><18=0C8>=>5>C74A0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B8=0
CA0=B02C8>=C70C05542CB=48C74AC74C0G?A>58C=>AC74022>D=C8=6?A>58C 

0AAH8=6E0;D4>5;0=30=3F>A:8=?A>6A4BB
!=>A34AC>0BB4BBC740??A>?A80C4=4BB>5C7420AAH8=6E0;D4>5;0=3
0=3F>A:8=?A>6A4BB C74A>D?8BA4@D8A43C><0:44BC8<0C8>=B
>5B0;4B?A824B 2>BCB0=3<0A68=B4G?42C43>=B8C4B8=>A34AC>
34C4A<8=4F74C74A0=HFA8C4 3>F=B>AA4E4AB0;B0A4A4@D8A43C>
4=BDA48=E4=C>AH8BBC0C430CC74;>F4A>52>BC0=3=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D4 
>;;>F8=6?A4E8>DBB86=85820=C8<?08A<4=CB>58=E4=C>A84B C74A>D?
70B0608=D=34AC0:4=034C08;43A4E84F>=0B8C4 1H B8C410B8B>5C74
=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D4>58CB;0=30=3F>A:8=?A>6A4BB B<0A:4C
2>=38C8>=B70E4BC018;8B438=C74,=8C43#8=63>< C74A>D?70B=>C
A42>A3430=H>C74AA4E4AB0;B>5=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D40BC74A48B=>2;40A
4E834=24>50BDBC08=43270=648=C7442>=><8228A2D<BC0=24B0CC74
10;0=24B744C30C4 

454AA43C0G;8018;8C84B0A40;B>A42>6=8B435>AC0G01;4C4<?>A0AH
38554A4=24B0A8B8=6>=8=E4BC<4=CB8=BD1B8380A84B0=38=C4A4BCB8=9>8=C
E4=CDA4B 4G24?CF74A4C74A>D?8B01;4C>2>=CA>;C74A4E4AB0;>5C74
C4<?>A0AH38554A4=240=38C8B?A>101;4C70CC74C4<?>A0AH38554A4=24
F8;;=>CA4E4AB48=C745>A4B4401;45DCDA4 

64



Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011



+7434C4A<8=0C8>=>5F74C74A>C74A8=C0=681;40BB4CB0A48<?08A43
A4@D8A4B0=4BC8<0C8>=>5C74E0;D48=DB4>5C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8CB
C>F7827C740BB4C70B144=0;;>20C43 +74E0;D48=DB420;2D;0C8>=
8=E>;E4BB86=85820=C9D364<4=C8=2;D38=60=4BC8<0C4>5C745DCDA4
20B75;>FB4G?42C43C>0A8B45A><C7420B7 64=4A0C8=6D=8C C745DCDA4
6A>FC7A0C4>5A4E4=D40=32>BCB 0=30BD8C01;438B2>D=CA0C4 
!5C742DAA4=CCA038=62>=38C8>=BB86=85820=C;H8<?A>E4C748<?08A<4=C
?A>E8B8>=A4;0C8=6C>>C74A8=C0=681;40BB4CB<0HA4E4AB48=?0AC>A
8=F7>;4 
+74E0;D4>5?;0=0BB4CB0=3;8018;8C84B8B34C4A<8=4310B43>=E0A8>DB
;>=6C4A<02CD0A80;0BBD<?C8>=B 8=2;D38=65DCDA4A0C4B>58=5;0C8>= 
B0;0AH6A>FC7 H84;3B A4CDA=B>=8=E4BC<4=CB0=3<>AC0;8CHA0C4B 
70=64B8=C74B40BBD<?C8>=B>E4AC8<40=338554A4=24BC>C7402CD0;
>DC2><4F8;;14A45;42C438=C74A>D?B>=B>;830C43*C0C4<4=C>5
><?A474=B8E4!=2><4 & >C434C08;BC74<08=0BBD<?C8>=B8=
022>D=C8=65>AC74A>D?B3458=4314=458C?4=B8>=B274<4B 

+0G0=33454AA43C0G

!*0<4=343)4;0C43?0ACH38B2;>BDA4B ;0A8584B0=3B8<?;8584B
C743458=8C8>=>50A4;0C43?0ACH0=3F8;;A4@D8A424AC08=4=C8C84BC><0:4
0338C8>=0;38B2;>BDA4B +740<4=3<4=C8B=>C4G?42C43C>70E40=H
8<?02C>=C74A>D?B58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB 
!*0<4=3438=0=280;8=BCAD<4=CB?A4B4=C0C8>= ;0BB85820C8>=>5
)867CB8BBD4 F74A4>554A435>A058G430<>D=C>55>A486=2DAA4=2H 
C74B4B7>D;3142;0BB858430B4@D8CH +740<4=3<4=C8B=>C4G?42C43
C>70E40=H8<?02C>=C74A>D?B58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB 
!)!0<4=343(A4?0H<4=CB>50<8=8<D<5D=38=6A4@D8A4<4=C 
+74B40<4=3<4=CB2>AA42C0=D=8=C4=3432>=B4@D4=24>5!)!
F74A48=B><428A2D<BC0=24B4=C8C84B0A4=>C4=C8C;43C>A42>6=8B40B
0=0BB4CB><4E>;D=C0AH?A4?0H<4=CB5>A<8=8<D<5D=38=6
2>=CA81DC8>=B +78BF0B=>C8=C4=343F74=!)!F0B8BBD43 
!)!GC8=6D8B78=658=0=280;;8018;8C84B0=34@D8CH8=BCAD<4=CB 
)4@D8A4BC70CF74A40341C>A8BBD4B4@D8CH8=BCAD<4=CBC>02A438C>A
C>B4CC;40;;>A?0AC>5058=0=280;;8018;8CH C74B48=BCAD<4=CBB7>D;314
344<435D;;H?0830=3<40BDA430CC74508AE0;D4>5C74;8018;8CH
4GC8=6D8B743 +740<4=3<4=C8B=>C4G?42C43C>70E40=H8<?02C
>=C74A>D?B58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB 
!<?A>E4<4=CBC>!)*B  0<4=3<4=CB +78BA4;40B4
8=2>A?>A0C430<4=3<4=CBC>B4E4=!=C4A=0C8>=0;8=0=280;)4?>AC8=6
*C0=30A3B!)*B +78B8B?0AC>5C74!*B0<4=3<4=CB8BBD43
D=34AC740==D0;8<?A>E4<4=CB?A>24BB F78278B34B86=43C><0:4
=424BB0AH 1DC=>= DA64=C 0<4=3<4=CBC>!)*B 

!=34C4A<8=8=6C7420AAH8=60<>D=CB>53454AA43C0G0BB4CB 
<0=064<4=C8BA4@D8A43C>0BB4BBC74C8<8=6>5C74DC8;8B0C8>=>5
?A>E8B8>=B5>AC0G?DA?>B4B0=3F74C74A8C8B?A>101;4C70CBD558284=C
C0G01;4?A>58CBF8;;140E08;01;4C>4=01;4C740BB4CC>14A42>E4A43 

(A.;1.?1@.;1;A2?=?2A.A6<;@6;6@@B2/BA;<AF2A23320A6C2
CC7430C4>50DC7>A8B0C8>=>5C74B458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB C74A40A4
=>*C0=30A3B0=3!=C4A?A4C0C8>=BF782770E4=>C144=0??;8438=
C74B458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CBC70CF4A48=8BBD40=34=3>AB431HC74
,1DC=>CH4C45542C8E4 

>8=62>=24A=

   2;2?.96;3<?:.A6<;

+74A>D?70BA42>A343?A>58CB8=C742DAA4=CH40A0=370B
B86=85820=C;HA43D24358=0=280;1>AA>F8=6B ?0AC;H3D4C>C7438B?>B0;
>5C74& >AC7<4A820=1DB8=4BB 
+74A>D?70B?A4?0A435>A420BCBF8C724AC08=B4=B8C8E8C84B0=3F78;BC
C7442>=><822>=38C8>=B70E4BC018;8B43C74A42>=C8=D4BC>1424AC08=
A8B:B8=2;D38=6<>AC60640E08;018;8CH0=3F40:4=4334<0=33D4C>
<0A:4C4=E8A>=<4=C  >F4E4AC748A42C>AB0A4B0C8B5843C70CC74
A>D?F8;;1401;4C>2>=C8=D4C>>?4A0C4F8C78=C740E08;01;458=0=28=6
5028;8C84B5>A0C;40BCC74=4GC<>=C7B5A><C7430C4>5B86=8=6C74B4
58=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB 

Taylor
Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011


+0H;>A.8<?4H?;28B0><?0=H8=2>A?>A0C438=C74,=8C43#8=63><
D=34AC74><?0=84B2C  +74033A4BB>5C74A468BC4A43>55824
8B68E4=>=?064 +74=0CDA4>5C74A>D?B>?4A0C8>=B0=38CB
?A8=28?0;02C8E8C84B0A4B4C>DC8=C747845G42DC8E4B)4E84F>=?064B
C> 
+74B458=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB0A4?A4B4=C438=?>D=3B*C4A;8=61420DB4
C70C8BC742DAA4=2H>5C74?A8<0AH42>=><824=E8A>=<4=C8=F7827C74
A>D?>?4A0C4B >A486=>?4A0C8>=B0A48=2;D3438=022>A30=24F8C7
C74?>;82HB4C>DC>=?064BC> 


65

Shareholder Information
p106-116

B?42CB>5C0G022>D=C8=6A4@D8A4<0=064<4=C9D364<4=C0=3
8=C4A?A4C0C8>=>5C0G;468B;0C8>=02A>BB<0=H9DA8B382C8>=B 8=B><4
20B4BA4;0C8=6C>8C4<BF7827<0H=>C14A4B>;E43F8C7C74A4;4E0=C
C0G0DC7>A8CH5>A<0=HH40AB 

+745>;;>F8=6=4F0=3A4E8B43*C0=30A3B0=3!=C4A?A4C0C8>=B70E4
144=03>?C438=C742DAA4=CH40A +748A03>?C8>=70B=>C7030=H
B86=85820=C8<?02C>=C740<>D=CBA4?>AC438=C74B458=0=280;
BC0C4<4=CB1DC<0H8<?02CC74022>D=C8=65>A5DCDA4CA0=B02C8>=B
0=30AA0=64<4=CB 

Financial Statements
p55-105

(4=B8>=B

1<=A6<;<3;2D.;1?2C6@21(A.;1.?1@.;1;A2?=?2A.A6<;@

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

!<?08A<4=C>5>C74A8=C0=681;40BB4CB

22>A38=6;HC742>=B>;830C4358=0=280;BC0C4<4=CB70E4144=?A4?0A43
>=06>8=62>=24A=10B8B 

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

(64;6360.;A.00<B;A6;4=<96062@0<;A6;B21
>=C8=D8=6A>D?6A>BB?A>58C8=2;D34B0?>B8C8E42>=CA81DC8>=>5J 
<8;;8>=  J  <8;;8>= A4;0C8=6C>A40;8B0C8>=>5FA8CC4=3>F=
8=E4=C>AH01>E48CB>A868=0;;H4BC8<0C43=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D4 F74A4>DA
<0A:4C0BBD<?C8>=B8=?A4E8>DB=4CA40;8B01;4E0;D44G4A28B4B70E4
144=4G244343 +78B70B?0AC;H144=3D4C>02C8>=BC0:4=1HC74
A>D?8=C74A4 ?;0=>5B8C4B C745DAC74ADC8;8B0C8>=>5BC0=30A37>DB4
CH?4B0=32>=C8=D43E0;D44=68=44A8=63A8E8=61D8;32>BCB0E8=6B0B
F4;;0B>C74A4GC4A=0;502C>AB +74B40<>D=CB0A4BC0C43145>A4C74
0;;>20C8>=>5>E4A7403B4G2;D3435A><C74A>D?B=4CA40;8B01;4
E0;D44G4A28B4 

$ <A2@A<A52<;@<961.A216;.;06.9(A.A2:2;A@0<;A6;B21

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

 '2C2;B2
=0=0;HB8B>5C74A>D?B2>=C8=D8=6A4E4=D48B0B5>;;>FB

G:6996<;



 
)4BC0C43
& >C4


 
 

 

  
 
  

  



>DB8=6
$0=3B0;4B
>=B>;830C43A4E4=D4
!=C4A4BCA4248E01;4
+>C0;A4E4=D45>AC74H40A

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

>DB8=6A4E4=D48=2;D34BJ <8;;8>=  J <8;;8>=8=A4B?42C>5C74E0;D4>5?A>?4AC84B0224?C438=?0AC4G270=641HC74A>D? 

 %=2?.A6;4@24:2;A@
!)*'?4A0C8=6B46<4=CBA4@D8A4B8=5>A<0C8>=C>14?A4B4=C438=C74B0<410B8B0B8C8BA4E84F438=C4A=0;;H +74A>D?B>0A3>58A42C>AB
E84FC741DB8=4BB4B>=064>6A0?78210B8BF74=<0:8=6BCA0C46823428B8>=B5>AC74A>D?0=30BBD27C74A>D?8B>A60=8B438=C>C7A44
>?4A0C8=638E8B8>=BK >DB8=6,=8C43#8=63><  >DB8=6*?08= 0=3>A?>A0C4 
+74& >AC7<4A820=1DB8=4BB70B144=?A4B4=C430B38B2>=C8=D43>?4A0C8>=B5>;;>F8=68CB38B?>B0;>="D;H  +74?A8>AH40A=4C0BB4CB
>5C74& >AC7<4A820=1DB8=4BB70E4144=?A4B4=C43B4?0A0C4;H0B38B2>=C8=D43>?4A0C8>=B 
*46<4=C8=5>A<0C8>=01>DCC74B41DB8=4BB4B8B?A4B4=C4314;>F

Financial Statements
p55-105

<?A52F2.?A< 202:/2?
G:6996<;

<B@6;4
*;6A21
!6;41<:



Shareholder Information
p106-116

'2C2;B2
GC4A=0;B0;4B

'2@B9A
(A>58C ;>BB>=>A38=0AH02C8E8C84B145>A49>8=CE4=CDA4B 58=0=242>BCB0=34G24?C8>=0;8C4<B
*70A4>5A4BD;CB>59>8=CE4=CDA4B
(A>58C ;>BB>=>A38=0AH02C8E8C84B145>A458=0=242>BCB 4G24?C8>=0;8C4<B0=305C4AB70A4
>5A4BD;CB>59>8=CE4=CDA4B
G24?C8>=0;8C4<B
(A>58C ;>BB>=>A38=0AH02C8E8C84B145>A458=0=242>BCB 05C4AB70A4>5A4BD;CB
>59>8=CE4=CDA4B0=34G24?C8>=0;8C4<B
8=0=242>BCB =4C8=2;D38=64G24?C8>=0;58=0=242>BCB
(A>58C>=>A38=0AH02C8E8C84B145>A4C0G0C8>=
+0G0C8>=8=2;D38=64G24?C8>=0;C0G
'2@B9A3?<:0<;A6;B6;4<=2?.A6<;@

'2@B9A3?<:16@0<;A6;B21<=2?.A6<;@
(A>58C5>AC74H40A5A><38B2>=C8=D43>?4A0C8>=B
(A>58C5>AC74H40AKC>C0;A>D?

66




 


 


<B@6;4
(=.6;

<?=<?.A2 <;@<961.A21

 

H

 


H

  
H

 


 
 


H

  
H


 

 











  


 
 
 
 




Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

At 31 December 2011
£ million

2,761.9
31.7
(1,072.1)
1,721.5

Housing
Spain

76.1
0.2
(14.9)
61.4

Corporate

1.5
–
(115.8)
(114.3)

Consolidated

2,839.5
31.9
(1,202.8)
1,668.6
(59.5)
342.8
(116.9)
1,835.0

Corporate

Consolidated

0.8
4.1
0.6

0.1
–
0.2

–
–
–

0.9
4.1
0.8

For the year to 31 December 2010 (restated Note 1)
£ million

Housing
United
Kingdom

Housing
Spain

Corporate

Consolidated

Revenue:
External sales

1,736.6

31.1

–

1,767.7

123.3
(0.3)

(3.6)
–

(19.1)
–

100.6
(0.3)

123.0
–

(3.6)
(17.3)

(19.1)
(38.2)

100.3
(55.5)

123.0

(20.9)

(57.3)

44.8
(199.6)
(154.8)
329.5
174.7

Other information – continuing operations:
Property, plant and equipment additions
Software development costs
Depreciation – plant and equipment

Result:
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before joint ventures, finance costs and exceptional items
Share of results of joint ventures
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before finance costs, exceptional items
and after share of results of joint ventures
Exceptional items
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before finance costs, after share of results
of joint ventures and exceptional items
Finance costs, net (including exceptional finance costs)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation (including exceptional tax)
Result from continuing operations:
Result from discontinued operations:
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit for the year – total Group
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84.6
259.3

67

Shareholder Information
p106-116

Housing
Spain
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p55-105

Housing
United
Kingdom

2011
£ million

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Assets and liabilities:
Segment operating assets
Joint ventures
Segment operating liabilities
Continuing Group net operating assets/(liabilities)
Net current taxation
Net deferred taxation
Net debt
Net assets

Housing
United
Kingdom
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4. Operating segments continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. Operating segments continued
At 31 December 2010 (restated Note 1)
£ million
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Assets and liabilities – continuing operations:
Segment operating assets
Joint ventures
Segment operating liabilities
Net operating assets/(liabilities)
Discontinued operations
Operating assets
Operating liabilities

Housing
United
Kingdom

2,719.4
33.7
(1,124.5)
1,628.6

Housing
Spain

82.6
0.2
(12.9)
69.9

Corporate

10.3
–
(75.0)
(64.7)

Financial Statements
p55-105

Other information – continuing operations:
Property, plant and equipment additions
Software development costs
Depreciation – plant and equipment

2,812.3
33.9
(1,212.4)
1,633.8
900.5
(287.8)
612.7

Total net operating assets
Goodwill
Net current taxation
Net deferred taxation
Net debt
Net assets

2010
£ million (restated Note 1)

Consolidated

2,246.5
2.4
(142.9)
371.6
(654.5)
1,823.1
Housing
United
Kingdom

Housing
Spain

Corporate

Consolidated

1.7
1.0
2.2

0.1
–
0.2

–
–
–

1.8
1.0
2.4

2011

2010
(Restated
Note 1)

5. Net operating expenses and profit on ordinary activities before finance costs
Shareholder Information
p106-116

£ million

Administration expenses
Net other (income)/expense
Exceptional items

136.4
(7.0)
5.8
135.2

127.0
2.2
38.2
167.4

Net other income/(expense) includes profits on the sale of property, plant andಝequipment, VAT refunds and ground rents receivable.

2011

2010
(Restated
Note 1)

Net land and work in progress write-downs
Restructuring costs
Refinancing expenses
Pension enhanced transfer value offer

–
–
–
5.8

17.3
6.5
31.7
–

Exceptional items

5.8

55.5

Exceptional items:
£ million

Market conditions have stabilised in the United Kingdom, however there continues to be uncertainty due to continued scarcity of mortgage
finance and unemployment. The Spanish market whilst stable continues to be challenging, however there have been no material market
condition changes. The Group has completed its assessment on the carrying value of land and work in progress which has not resulted in
further land and work in progress net write-downs (31 December 2010: £17.3 million) to the lower of cost and net realisable value, nor any
reversals of previous write-downs (2010: £nil million) as there is no clear evidence of a sustained change in the economic circumstances at the
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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6. Staff costs continued
£ million

Remuneration
Wages and salaries
Redundancy costs
Social security costs
Other pension costs

Directors’ Report: Governance
p28-54

Discontinued operations

2011

2010
(Restated
Note 1)

143.9
1.8
18.1
6.6
170.4

143.2
1.8
17.3
7.2
169.5

33.2

64.7

The information required by the Companies Act 2006 and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority is contained on pages 39 to 50 in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

7. Finance costs
Finance costs from continuing operations are analysed as follows:
£ million

Financial Statements
p55-105

Interest on overdrafts, bank and other loans
Interest on debenture loans
Movement on interest rate derivatives and foreign exchange movements
Unwinding of discount on land creditors and other payables
Notional net interest on pension liability (Note 21)
Exceptional finance costs:
Senior Note 10.375% due 2015 premium and bank loans and debenture fees and breakage fees

2011

2010
(Restated
Note 1)

29.1
23.2
(1.0)
51.3
7.9
14.1
73.3

27.2
58.0
2.4
87.6
9.0
23.0
119.6

5.5
78.8

83.4
203.0

Shareholder Information
p106-116

The exceptional finance costs incurred in 2011 relate to the premium paid on the repurchase of £85.4 million of Senior Notes 10.375% due
2015 and the prior year costs relate to one-off interest related breakage payments following the early redemption of loan notes, debenture loans
and certain arrangement fees.

8. Tax
Tax (charged)/ credited in the income statement for continuing operations is analysed as follows:
£ million

Current tax:
UK corporation tax:
Foreign tax:

Deferred tax:
UK:

2011

2010
(Restated
Note 1)

Current year
Prior years
Current year
Prior years

–
6.0
–
(0.2)
5.8

(0.8)
60.8
–
0.1
60.1

Current year

(28.5)
(28.5)
(22.7)

269.4
269.4
329.5

Corporation tax is calculated at 26.5% (2010: 28%) of the estimated assessable profit (2010: loss) for the year in the UK. Taxation outside the
UK is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
The tax charge for the year includes a credit in respect of exceptional items of £1.5 million (2010: £360.8 million credit) in respect of UK tax. The
2010 credit in the UK related to the recognition of a deferred tax asset of £300.0 million relating to trading losses carried forward and the
settlement of various issues with HM Revenue and Customs.
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This notice of meeting is important and requires your immediate
attention. If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take,
you are recommended to seek your own ﬁnancial advice immediately
from a stockbroker, solicitor, bank manager, accountant, or other
independent ﬁnancial adviser authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Taylor
Wimpey plc (the ‘Company’), please pass this document together
with the accompanying documents to the purchaser or transferee, or
to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these
documents to the person who now holds the shares. If you have
sold or transferred part only of your holding of shares in the Company,
please consult the person who arranged the sale or transfer.
Notice is hereby given of the seventy seventh Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on 26 April 2012 at 11:00 am at The British
Medical Association, BMA House, Tavistock Square, London,
WC1H 9JP for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business
Ordinary Resolutions:
1. To receive the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors and the
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Financial Statements
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2. To declare due and payable on 22 May 2012 a ﬁnal dividend of
0.38 pence per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011 to shareholders on the register at close of
business on 20 April 2012.
3. To re-elect as a Director, Kevin Beeston.
4. To re-elect as a Director, Pete Redfern.
5. To re-elect as a Director, Ryan Mangold.
6. To re-elect as a Director, Kate Barker CBE.
7. To re-elect as a Director, Baroness Dean of Thornton-le-Fylde.
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8. To re-elect as a Director, Anthony Reading MBE.
9. To re-elect as a Director, Robert Rowley.
10. To elect as a Director, Mike Hussey who was appointed as a
Director of the Company by the Board since the last Annual
General Meeting.
11. To elect as a Director, James Jordan who was appointed as
a Director of the Company by the Board since the last Annual
General Meeting.
12. To re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company, to hold
ofﬁce until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts are laid before the Company.
13. Subject to the passing of resolution 12, to authorise the Audit
Committee to determine the remuneration of the auditors on behalf
of the Board.
14. That the Board be generally and unconditionally authorised to allot
shares in the Company and to grant rights to subscribe for or
convert any security into shares in the Company:
(A) up to a nominal amount of £10,716,327 (such amount to
be reduced by the nominal amount of any equity securities
(as deﬁned in the Companies Act 2006) allotted under
paragraph (B) below in excess of £10,716,327); and
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(B) comprising equity securities (as deﬁned in the Companies Act
2006) up to a nominal amount of £21,432,654 (such amount to
be reduced by any shares and rights to subscribe for or convert
any security into shares allotted under paragraph (A) above) in
connection with an offer by way of a rights issue:
(i) to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their existing holdings; and
(ii) to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of
those securities or as the Board otherwise considers necessary;
and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions and
make any arrangements which it considers necessary or
appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under
the laws of, any territory or any other matter,
such authorities to apply until the end of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in 2013 (or, if earlier, until the close of
business on 25 July 2013) but, in each case, so that the Company
may make offers and enter into agreements during this period
which would, or might, require shares to be allotted or rights to
subscribe for or convert securities into shares to be granted after
the authority ends; and the Board may allot shares or grant rights
to subscribe for or convert securities into shares under any such
offer or agreement as if the authority had not ended.

Special Resolutions:
15. That, if resolution 14 is passed, the Board be given the power to
allot equity securities (as deﬁned in the Companies Act 2006) for
cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or to sell
ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash,
free of the restriction in Section 561 of the Companies Act 2006,
such power to be limited:
(A) to the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury shares
for cash in connection with an offer of or invitation to apply for
equity securities (but in the case of the authority granted under
paragraph (B) of resolution 14, by way of a rights issue only):
(i) to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their existing holdings; and
(ii) to holders of other equity securities, as required by the
rights of those securities or, as the Board otherwise
considers necessary;
and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions and
make any arrangements which it considers necessary or
appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under
the laws of, any territory or any other matter; and
(B) in the case of the authority granted under paragraph (A)
of resolution 14 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury
shares for cash, to the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph (A) above) of equity securities up to a nominal
amount of £1,607,449,
such power to apply until the end of the Annual General Meeting
of the Company in 2013 (or, if earlier, until the close of business
on 25 July 2013), but during this period the Company may make
offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require
equity securities to be allotted (and treasury shares to be sold) after
the power ends; and the Board may allot equity securities (and sell
treasury shares) under any such offer or agreement as if the power
had not ended.
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

(A) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised
to be purchased shall be 321,489,828;
(B) the minimum price which may be paid for ordinary shares
is 1p per ordinary share;

(D) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the earlier of the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company in
2013 and 25 October 2013 unless such authority is renewed
prior to such time; and

Special Business
Ordinary Resolutions:
17. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended
31 December 2011.

Your Directors are of the opinion that the resolutions to be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting are in the best interests of shareholders as
a whole and recommend you to vote in favour of them. Each Director
will be doing so in respect of his or her own beneﬁcial shareholding.

Inspection of documents
The following documents will be available for inspection at the
Company’s registered ofﬁce, Gate House, Turnpike Road, High
Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP12 3NR, during normal business
hours from the date of this notice of meeting until the date of the
Annual General Meeting and at The British Medical Association,
BMA House, Tavistock Square, London WC1H 9JP from
15 minutes before the Annual General Meeting until it ends:
t copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts; and

(A) make political donations to political parties and/or independent
election candidates not exceeding £250,000 in aggregate;

t copies of the letters of appointment of the Chairman and the Non
Executive Directors.

(B) make political donations to political organisations other than
political parties not exceeding £250,000 in aggregate; and

A copy of the full Annual Report and Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011, including the
Directors’ Remuneration Report referred to in resolution 17, is also
available on our Web site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk.

(C) incur political expenditure not exceeding £250,000
in aggregate,
during the period beginning with the date of passing this resolution
and ending at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company in 2013.
For the purposes of this resolution the terms ‘political donations’,
‘political parties’, ‘independent election candidates’, ‘political
organisation’ and ‘political expenditure’ have the meanings given
by Sections 363 to 365 of the Companies Act 2006.

Special Resolution:
19. That a general meeting other than an Annual General Meeting
of the Company may continue to be called on not less than 14
clear days’ notice.
Explanatory notes relating to each of the above resolutions are set out
on pages 109 to 113.

Action to be taken
If you wish to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting in
person, please bring with you the attendance card accompanying this
document and retain it until the end of the meeting. It will authenticate
Taylor Wimpey plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011
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18. That in accordance with Sections 366 and 367 of the Companies
Act 2006, the Company and all companies which are its
subsidiaries when this resolution is passed are authorised to:

Recommendation
Financial Statements
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(E) the Company may make contracts to purchase ordinary shares
under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such
authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the
expiry of such authority, and may purchase ordinary shares in
pursuance of any such contracts, as if the authority conferred
by this resolution had not expired.

If you would like to vote on the resolutions but cannot come to the
Annual General Meeting, please ﬁll in the proxy form sent to you with
this notice and return it to our registrar as soon as possible. They
must receive it by no later than 11:00 am on 24 April 2012. If you
prefer, you can submit your proxy electronically either via the internet
at www.capitashareportal.com or, if you are a CREST member, through
the CREST system by completing and transmitting a CREST proxy
instruction as described in the procedural notes below.
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(C) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the
average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share
(as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Ofﬁcial List)
for the ﬁve business days immediately preceding the date on
which such ordinary share is purchased;

your right to attend, speak and vote, and will help us to register your
attendance without delay. Registration will be available from 9:30 am
on the day of the meeting. For the safety and comfort of those
attending the meeting, large bags, cameras, recording equipment
and similar items will not be allowed into the building. The meeting will
commence at 11:00 am and light refreshments will be available from
9:30 am and also after the conclusion of the meeting. There is
wheelchair access to the venue for shareholders who require it or those
with reduced mobility. However, attendees are strongly advised to bring
their own carers to assist with their general mobility around the venue.
An induction loop system operates in the meeting room. Directions to
the venue can be found on the reverse of your attendance card.
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16. That the Company be authorised for the purposes of Section 701
of the Companies Act 2006 to make market purchases (within the
meaning of Section 693(4) of the Companies Act 2006) of the
ordinary shares of 1p each of the Company (‘ordinary shares’),
provided that:

By Order of the Board

James Jordan
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
Taylor Wimpey plc
Registered Ofﬁce:
Gate House
Turnpike Road
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP12 3NR
(Registered in England and Wales under number 296805)
28 February 2012
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Procedural notes
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1. To be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting
(and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of
the votes which shareholders may cast), shareholders must be
registered in the Register of Members of the Company at
6:00 pm on 24 April 2012 (or, in the event of any adjournment,
on the date which is two days before the time of the adjourned
meeting). Shareholders then on the Register of Members
shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their
name at that time. Changes to entries on the relevant Register
of Members after that deadline shall be disregarded in
determining the rights of any person to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting.
2. As at 28 February 2012 (being the last business day prior to
the publication of this notice) the Company’s issued share
capital consisted of 3,207,563,590 ordinary shares, carrying
one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the
Company as at 28 February 2012 were 3,207,563,590.
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3. If you are a shareholder of the Company at the time and date
set out in note 1 above, you are entitled to appoint a proxy to
exercise all or any of your rights to attend and to speak and
vote on your behalf at the meeting. Shareholders may appoint
more than one proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting
provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights
attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder.
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company but must
attend the Annual General Meeting to represent you. A proxy
form which may be used to make such appointment and give
proxy instructions accompanies this notice. If you do not have
a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if you
require additional forms, please contact Capita Registrars on
0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras;
lines are open 8:30 am to 5:30 pm Monday to Friday).

Shareholder Information
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4. To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing a
proxy must be received by post to Freepost RSBH-UXKSLRBC, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent,
BR3 4TU, or (during normal business hours only) by hand at
Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, or, if you prefer, electronically via
the internet at www.capitashareportal.com or, if you are a
member of CREST, via the service provided by Euroclear UK
and Ireland Limited at the electronic address provided in note
9, in each case no later than 11:00 am on 24 April 2012. All
forms of proxy received after this time will be void. A form of
proxy sent electronically at any time that is found to contain any
virus will not be accepted.
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5. The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument
or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as further described in notes
8 and 9 below) will not prevent a shareholder attending the
Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/she
wishes to do so.
6. Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person
nominated under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to
enjoy information rights (a ‘Nominated Person’) may, under an
agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/
she was nominated, have a right to be appointed (or to have
someone else appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General
Meeting. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy
appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may,
under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to
the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights. Such
persons should direct any communications and enquiries to the
registered holder of the shares by whom they were nominated
and not to the Company or its registrar.
7. The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the
appointment of proxies in notes 3 and 4 above does not apply
to Nominated Persons. The rights described in these notes can
only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.
8. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may
do so by using the procedures described in the CREST
Manual. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a
service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or
voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behalf.
9. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the
CREST service to be valid, it must be properly authenticated
in accordance with Euroclear UK and Ireland Limited’s
speciﬁcations, and must contain the information required for
such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual (available
via www.euroclear.com/CREST). The message, regardless of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an
amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed
proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be
received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by 11:00 am on
24 April 2012. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be
taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied
to the message by the CREST Application Host) from which
the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry
to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time
any change of instructions to proxies appointed through
CREST should be communicated to the appointee through
other means.
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13. Under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 members
meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have
the right to require the Company to publish on a Web site a
statement setting out any matter relating to:
(i) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including the auditor’s
report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid
before the Annual General Meeting; or

The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any
such Web site publication to pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where
the Company is required to place a statement on a Web site
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward
the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time
when it makes the statement available on the Web site. The
business which may be dealt with at the Annual General
Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been
required under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to
publish on a Web site.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE RESOLUTIONS
ORDINARY BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolutions
Resolution 1: To receive the annual report and
financial statements
English company law requires the Directors to lay the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the reports of the Directors and Auditors before a general
meeting of the Company.

Resolution 2: To declare a final dividend
The Directors recommend the payment of a ﬁnal dividend of 0.38
pence per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011.
If approved at the Annual General Meeting, the dividend will be
paid on 22 May 2012 to shareholders who are on the Register of
Members at the close of business on 20 April 2012.
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(ii) any circumstance connected with an auditor of the
Company ceasing to hold ofﬁce since the previous meeting
at which annual accounts and reports were laid in
accordance with Section 437 of the Companies Act 2006.

16. Voting on all resolutions at this year’s Annual General Meeting
will be conducted by way of a poll, rather than on a show of
hands. The Board believes that a poll is more representative of
shareholders’ voting intentions because it gives as many
shareholders as possible the opportunity to have their votes
counted (whether their votes are tendered by proxy in advance
of, or in person at, the Annual General Meeting). The results of
the poll will be announced via a Regulatory News Service and
made available at plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk as soon as
practicable after the Annual General Meeting.

Financial Statements
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12. Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all
of its powers as a member provided that they do not do so in
relation to the same shares.

15. A copy of this Notice, and other information required by
Section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found
at plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk.
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11. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction
in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertiﬁcated Securities Regulations 2001.

14. Any member attending the meeting has the right to ask
questions and participate in the meeting. The Company
must cause to be answered any such question relating to the
business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer
need be given if: (i) to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of
conﬁdential information; (ii) the answer has already been given
on a Web site in the form of an answer to a question; or (iii) it is
undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order
of the meeting that the question be answered.
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10. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors
or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK and
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in
CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and
limitations will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST
Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST
personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a
voting service provider, to procure that his CREST sponsor or
voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means
of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors
or voting system providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations
of the CREST system and timings.

Notes to the Notice of Meeting continued
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Dividend Re-Investment Plan
Subject to shareholders approving the dividend as set out
in Resolution 2 at the Annual General Meeting scheduled
for 26 April 2012, the Company will be offering a Dividend
Re-Investment Plan (the ‘DRI Plan’). For 2012 and in future years,
the DRI Plan will be provided and administered by the DRI Plan
administrator, Capita IRG Trustees Limited, which is authorised
and regulated by the Financial Services Authority (‘FSA’). The DRI
Plan will offer shareholders the opportunity to elect to invest cash
dividends received on their ordinary shares, in purchasing further
ordinary shares of the Company. These shares would be bought in
the market, on competitive dealing terms.
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All shareholders will shortly be sent details of the DRI Plan and
how it will be offered in connection with the proposed 2011 ﬁnal
cash dividend. This will include, for current participants in the
Taylor Wimpey DRI Plan, details of certain changes to the terms
and conditions which are necessary from an FSA
compliance perspective.
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Full details of the terms and conditions of the DRI Plan and the
actions required to participate will be available on the Company’s
Web site: plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk or on request from the registrar,
Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU, e-mail: ssd@capitaregistrars.com
tel: 0871 664 0300 (UK) or +44 20 8639 3399 (overseas).

Resolutions 3 to 11: Election of Directors
In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code which
states that all directors of FTSE 350 companies should be subject
to annual election by shareholders, the Board has resolved that all
Directors of the Company will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election or election (as appropriate) by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholder Information
p106-116

Mike Hussey and James Jordan, who were each appointed as
Directors of the Company by the Board since the last Annual
General Meeting, held in April 2011, will retire and offer themselves
for election by shareholders for the ﬁrst time, as is required by the
Company’s Articles of Association.
Details of the Directors’ service contracts, remuneration and
interests in the Company’s shares and other securities are given
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report to shareholders on pages
39 to 50 of the Report and Accounts. Full biographical information
concerning each Director is on pages 28 and 29 of the Report and
Accounts.
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The following summary information is given in support of the
Board’s proposal for the election or re-election (as appropriate)
of the Directors of the Company:

Kevin Beeston – offers himself for re-election.
Kevin has been a Non Executive Director and Chairman of the
Group since July 2010. The Board is satisﬁed that he continues
to be independent in character and judgement in applying his
expertise at meetings of the Board and of the Nomination
Committee (which he Chairs) and the Remuneration Committee,
and that his other commitments do not detract from the extent
or quality of time which he is able to devote to the Company.
His biography appears on page 28.

Pete Redfern – offers himself for re-election.
Pete has been Chief Executive since July 2007 and was previously
Group Chief Executive of George Wimpey Plc. His biography
appears on page 28.

Ryan Mangold – offers himself for re-election.
Ryan has been Group Finance Director since November 2010.
His biography appears on page 28.

Kate Barker CBE – offers herself for re-election.
Kate has been an Independent Non Executive Director since
April 2011. The Board is satisﬁed that she continues to be
independent in character and judgement in applying her expertise
at meetings of the Board and of the Audit and Nomination
Committees, and that her other commitments do not detract from
the extent or quality of time which she is able to devote to the
Company. Her biography appears on page 29.

Baroness Dean of Thornton-le-Fylde – offers herself
for re-election.
Brenda has been an Independent Non Executive Director since
July 2007. She has been subjected to a rigorous annual appraisal,
having served for eight years in that capacity including previously
for George Wimpey Plc. The Board is satisﬁed that she continues
to be independent in character and judgement in applying her
expertise at meetings of the Board and of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees, and that her other commitments do
not detract from the extent or quality of time which she is able to
devote to the Company. Her biography appears on page 29.

Anthony Reading MBE – offers himself for re-election.
Tony has been an Independent Non Executive Director since
July 2007. He has been subjected to a rigorous annual appraisal,
having served for six years in that capacity including previously for
George Wimpey Plc and will have completed seven years by the
time of the Annual General Meeting. The Board is satisﬁed that he
continues to be independent in character and judgement in
applying his expertise at meetings of the Board and of the
Remuneration Committee (which he Chairs) and the Audit and
Nomination Committees, and that his other commitments do not
detract from the extent or quality of time which he is able to devote
to the Company. His biography appears on page 29.
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Rob has been an Independent Non Executive Director since
January 2010 and the Senior Independent Director since
April 2010. The Board is satisﬁed that he continues to be
independent in character and judgement in applying his expertise
at meetings of the Board and of the Audit Committee (which he
Chairs) and the Nomination and Remuneration Committees, and
that his other commitments do not detract from the extent or
quality of time which he is able to devote to the Company. His
biography appears on page 28.

Mike Hussey – appointed since last AGM and offers
himself for election.

James Jordan – appointed since last AGM and offers
himself for election.
James was appointed as a Director on 21 July 2011. He is the
Legal Director for the Group and is also the Group Company
Secretary, a position he has held since 2007. He has a wealth of
experience, having previously been Group Company Secretary and
General Counsel of George Wimpey Plc between 2002 and 2007,
when he was appointed to the same position with Taylor Wimpey
plc. James is a solicitor and held a number of posts in other
industrial sectors prior to joining the George Wimpey Plc.

In accordance with English company law, the Company is required
to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which accounts
are laid before the shareholders. It is therefore proposed that
the auditors are appointed from the conclusion of the 2012
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next general
meeting at which accounts are laid before shareholders. The
Board recommends the re-appointment of Deloitte as the
Company’s auditors.
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Your Directors wish to renew the existing authority to allot unissued
shares in the Company, which was granted at the Company’s last
Annual General Meeting held on 21 April 2011 and is due to expire
at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Accordingly,
Paragraph (A) of resolution 14 would give the Directors the
authority to allot ordinary shares or grant rights to subscribe for or
convert any securities into ordinary shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount equal to £10,716,327 (representing 1,071,632,700
ordinary shares). This amount represents approximately one-third
of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 14 March
2012, the latest practicable date prior to publication of this notice
of meeting.
In line with guidance issued by the Association of British Insurers
(‘ABI’), paragraph (B) of resolution 14 would give the Directors
authority to allot ordinary shares or grant rights to subscribe for or
convert any securities into ordinary shares in connection with a
rights issue in favour of ordinary shareholders up to an aggregate
nominal amount equal to £21,432,654 (representing 2,143,265,400
ordinary shares), as reduced by the nominal amount of any shares
issued under paragraph (A) of resolution 14. This amount (before
any reduction) represents approximately two-thirds of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at 14 March 2012, the
latest practicable date prior to publication of this notice of meeting.
The authorities sought under paragraphs (A) and (B) of resolution
14 will expire at the earlier of 25 July 2013 and the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2013.
The Directors have no present intention to exercise either of the
authorities sought under this resolution. However, if they do
exercise the authorities, the Directors intend to follow ABI
recommendations concerning their use (including as regards
the Directors standing for re-election in certain cases).
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Resolution 12: Re-appointment of Deloitte LLP (‘Deloitte’)
as auditors of the Company

Resolution 14: Authority to allot shares

Financial Statements
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Mike was appointed as a Non Executive Director on 1 July 2011.
He is Chief Executive of Alcamantar and has held a number of
senior roles in the property sector. The Board is satisﬁed that he is
independent in character and judgement and that his other
commitments do not detract from the extent or quality of time
which he will be able to devote to the Company

The Board seeks shareholders’ authority for the Audit Committee
to determine on behalf of the Board the remuneration of Deloitte for
their services. The Board has adopted a procedure governing the
appointment of Deloitte to carry out non-audit services, details of
which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. Details of
non-audit services performed by Deloitte in 2011 are given in
Note 5 on page 69 of the Report and Accounts.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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The Board conﬁrms that each of the above Directors has recently
been subject to formal performance evaluation, details of which are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report, and that each
continues to demonstrate commitment and to be an effective
member of the Board.

Resolution 13: Authorisation of the Audit Committee
to agree on behalf of the Board the remuneration
of Deloitte as auditors

Directors’ Report: Business Review
p02-27

Robert Rowley – offers himself for re-election.

Notes to the Notice of Meeting continued
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Special Resolutions
Resolution 15: Authority to dis-apply pre-emption rights
The Board wishes to renew the existing authority from shareholders
to allot shares or sell any shares held in treasury for cash otherwise
than to existing shareholders pro rata to their holdings. Resolution
15, which will be proposed as a special resolution and therefore
requires a 75% majority of votes to be cast in favour, would give
the Directors the authority to allot ordinary shares (or sell any
ordinary shares which the Company elects to hold in treasury)
for cash without ﬁrst offering them to existing shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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This authority would be, similar to previous years, limited to
allotments or sales in connection with pre-emptive offers and offers
to holders of other equity securities if required by the rights of those
shares or as the Board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,607,449 (representing
160,744,900 ordinary shares). This aggregate nominal amount
represents approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company as at 14 March 2012, the latest practicable date
prior to publication of this notice. In respect of this aggregate nominal
amount, the Directors conﬁrm their intention to follow the provisions
of the Pre-Emption Group’s Statement of Principles regarding
cumulative usage of authorities within a rolling three-year period
where the Principles provide that usage in excess of 7.5% should
not take place without prior consultation with shareholders.
The authority will expire at the earlier of 25 July 2013 and the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
in 2013.

Resolution 16: Authority to make market purchases of shares
This resolution will be proposed as a special resolution and
therefore requires a 75% majority of votes to be cast in favour.

Shareholder Information
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Any purchases under this authority would be made in one or more
tranches and would be limited in aggregate to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue at the close of business on
14 March 2012.
The maximum price to be paid on any exercise of the authority
would not exceed 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for the Company’s ordinary shares for the ﬁve business
days immediately preceding the date of the purchase. Shares
purchased pursuant to these authorities could be held as
treasury shares, which the Company can re-issue quickly and
cost-effectively, and provides the Company with additional ﬂexibility
in the management of its capital base. The total number of shares
held as treasury shall not at any one time exceed 10% of the
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Company’s issued share capital. Accordingly, any shares bought
back over the 10% limit will be cancelled. The Company currently
holds no shares in treasury.
This is a standard resolution, sought by the majority of public
listed companies at Annual General Meetings. The Board’s current
intention of utilising this authority is generally limited to acquiring
shares for the various share scheme arrangements. We would
only consider a more formal share purchase programme if it
would result in an increase in earnings per share and was in
the best interests of shareholders generally, having regard to
all relevant circumstances.
The total number of options, conditional share awards and
warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares outstanding as at the
close of business on 14 March 2012 was 120,146,771,
representing approximately 3.7% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at that date and approximately 4.2 % of
the Company’s issued ordinary share capital following any exercise
in full of this authority to make market purchases.
The Company has warrants over 39,715,323 ordinary shares,
representing 1.2% of the Company’s ordinary issued share capital
as at close of business on 14 March 2012. If the authority given by
Resolution 16 were to be fully used, these would represent 1.4% of
the Company’s ordinary issued share capital at that date.
This authority will last until the earlier of 25 October 2013 and the
conclusion of the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2013.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolutions
Resolution 17: Approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 December 2011
The Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended
31 December 2011 has been prepared in accordance with
Sections 420 and 421 of the Companies Act 2006. Section 439
of said Act requires the Company to give shareholders notice of an
ordinary resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
The Directors’ Remuneration Report is on pages 39 to 50 of
the Report and Accounts. The Board considers that appropriate
executive remuneration plays a vital part in helping to achieve
the Company’s overall objectives. The vote on the Remuneration
Report has advisory status in respect of the remuneration policy
and overall remuneration packages and is not speciﬁc to individual
levels of remuneration.
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General Meetings, which will continue to be held on at least
21 clear days’ notice) on not less than 14 clear days’ notice. As
this approval will expire at the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting, Resolution 19 proposes its renewal. The shorter notice
period of 14 clear days would not be used as a matter of routine
for any general meeting, but only where the ﬂexibility is merited by
the business of a particular meeting and is thought to be to the
advantage of shareholders as a whole. The renewed approval will
be effective until the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2013,
when it is intended that a similar resolution will be proposed.
Note that in order to be able to call a general meeting on less
than 21 clear days’ notice, the Company must in respect of that
meeting make available electronic voting to all shareholders.

Directors’ Report: Governance
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In order to comply with its obligations under the Companies Act
2006 and to avoid any inadvertent infringement of that Act, the
Board wishes to renew its existing authority for a general level of
political donation and/or expenditure. Resolution 18 seeks to renew
the existing authority for the Company to make political donations
and incur political expenditure. The Companies Act 2006 requires
this authority to be divided into three heads (as set out in
Resolution 18) with a separate amount speciﬁed as permitted for
each. An amount not exceeding £250,000 for each head of the
authority has been proposed. In accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, Resolution 18 extends approval to all of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

Directors’ Report: Business Review
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Resolution 18: Authority to make political donations

This authority will last until the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in 2013, unless renewal is sought at
that meeting.
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The Company and the Group do not make any donations to
political parties or organisations but do support certain industrywide initiatives such as the Home Builders Federation in the UK.
Whilst we do not regard this as political in nature, in certain
circumstances donations made for charitable or similar purposes
could possibly be treated as a donation to a political organisation
under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006. For
example, a donation to a humanitarian charity which may also
operate as a political lobby, sponsorship, subscriptions, paid
leave to employees fulﬁlling public duties and payments to
industry representative bodies could constitute a donation
to a political organisation within the current deﬁnitions in the
Companies Act 2006.
Details of the Company’s and the Group’s charitable donations
appear on page 53 of the Report and Accounts.

Special Resolution
Resolution 19: Notice of general meetings
Shareholder Information
p106-116

This resolution will be proposed as a special resolution and
therefore requires a 75% majority of votes to be cast in favour.
The Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 have
increased the notice period required for general meetings of the
Company to 21 days unless shareholders agree to a shorter notice
period, which cannot be less than 14 clear days. At the 2011
Annual General Meeting, a resolution was passed approving the
Company’s ability to call general meetings (other than Annual
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Shareholder Facilities
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Annual General Meeting
11:00 am on 26 April 2012 at:
The British Medical Association, BMA House,
Tavistock Square, London, WC1H 9JP.
Latest date for receipt of proxy instructions for the 2012
Annual General Meeting: 11:00 am on 24 April 2012.

Group Legal Director and Company Secretary and
Registered Ofﬁce

Shareholders’ Services
Web communications
Shareholders have previously passed a resolution enabling the
Company to make documents and information available to
shareholders by electronic means and via a Web site, rather than
by sending hard copies. This way of communicating is enabled in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Rule 6 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules and the Company’s Articles of Association.
Making documents and information available electronically:

Directors’ Report: Governance
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James Jordan
Gate House
Turnpike Road
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire HP12 3NR
Tel: +44 (0)1494 558323
Fax: +44 (0)1494 885663
E-mail: james.jordan@taylorwimpey.com

t enables the Company to reduce printing and postage costs;

Registrar

The Company provides hard copy documentation to those
shareholders who have requested this and is, of course, happy
to provide hard copies to any shareholders upon request.

For any enquiries concerning your shareholding or
details of shareholder services, please contact:
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Capita Registrars
The Registry
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent
BR3 4TU
E-mail: ssd@capitaregistrars.com
Tel: 0871 664 0300 (UK)
(Calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras;
lines are open 8:30 am to 5:30 pm Mon-Fri).
Tel: +44 20 8639 3399 (overseas)

Shareholder Information
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Auditors
Deloitte LLP

Solicitors
Slaughter and May

Stockbrokers
J.P. Morgan Cazenove
Jefferies Hoare Govett

t allows faster access to information and enables shareholders
to access documents on the day they are published on the
Company’s Web site;
t reduces the amount of resources consumed, such as paper,
and lessens the impact of printing and mailing activities on
the environment.

The Company’s Web site url is plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk and
shareholder documentation made available electronically is
generally accessible at plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations.

Electronic communications
The Company also encourages shareholders to elect to receive
notiﬁcation of the availability of Company documentation by means
of an e-mail. Shareholders can sign up for this facility by logging
onto our Web site at plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk.

On-line facilities for shareholders
You can access our Annual and Interim Reports and copies
of recent shareholder communications on-line at:
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/InvestorRelations.
To register for on-line access, go to
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk/ShareholderInformation, and click on the
service you require. To access some of these services you will ﬁrst
be required to apply on-line.
Once you have registered for access, you can make on-line
enquiries about your shareholding and advise the Company
of changes in personal details.

Dividend Re-Investment Plan
You can choose to invest your cash dividends in purchasing Taylor
Wimpey shares on the market under the terms of the Dividend
Re-Investment Plan. For further information on the Plan and how to
join, contact Capita Registrars.

Dividend mandates
We strongly encourage all shareholders to receive their cash
dividends by direct transfer to a bank or building society account.
This ensures that dividends are credited promptly to shareholders
without the cost and inconvenience of having to pay in dividend
cheques at a bank. If you wish to use this cost-effective and simple
facility, complete and return the dividend mandate form attached to
your dividend cheque. Additional mandate forms may be obtained
from Capita Registrars.
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Gifting shares to charity

If you are receiving more than one copy of our Annual Report, it
may be that your shares are registered in two or more accounts on
our Register of Members. You might wish to consider merging
them into one single entry. Please contact Capita Registrars who
will be pleased to carry out your instructions in this regard.

If you have a small holding of Taylor Wimpey plc shares, you may
wish to consider gifting them to charity. You can do so through
‘ShareGift’, which is administered by a registered charity, Orr
Mackintosh Foundation Limited. Shares gifted are re-registered
into the name of the charity, combined with other donated shares
and then sold through stockbrokers who charge no commission.
The proceeds are distributed to a wide range of recognised
charities. For further details, please contact Capita Registrars or
approach ShareGift directly on www.sharegift.org or telephone
them on +44 (0)20 7930 3737.

Low-cost share dealing services

Taylor Wimpey and ‘CREST’

Taylor Wimpey share price
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Our share price is printed in many of the UK daily newspapers and
is also available on our Web site plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk. It appears
on BBC Ceefax and other digital television interactive services.
It may also be obtained by telephoning the FT Cityline service,
telephone: +44 (0)9058 171690 and ask for ‘Taylor Wimpey’
on the voice activated response (calls cost 75p per minute from
a BT landline, other networks may vary).

We have received reports from a number of Taylor Wimpey
shareholders who have each received what appear to be fraudulent
approaches from third parties during recent months with respect to
their shareholding in the Company. In some cases these are ‘cold
calls’ and in others correspondence. They generally purport to be
from a ﬁrm of solicitors or an investment company and offer, or
hold out the prospect of, large gains on Taylor Wimpey shares or
other investments you may hold. The approaches normally include
the seeking of an advance payment from the shareholder, the
disclosure of the shareholder’s bank details or the sale of an
unrelated investment. Shareholders are advised to be extremely
wary of such approaches and advised to only deal with ﬁrms
authorised by the UK Financial Services Authority (‘FSA’). You can
check whether an enquirer is properly authorised and report scam
approaches by contacting the FSA on http://www.fsa.gov.uk/
Pages/Doing/Regulated/Law/Alerts/form.shtml or by calling
0845 606 1234 and you can contact the Taylor Wimpey Investor
Relations Department at twplc@taylorwimpey.com.
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Taylor Wimpey shares can be held in ‘CREST’ accounts, which do
not require share certiﬁcates. This may make it quicker and easier
for some shareholders to settle stock market transactions.
Shareholders who deal infrequently may, however, prefer to
continue to hold their shares in certiﬁcated form and this facility
will remain available for the time being, pending the likely general
introduction of dematerialised shareholdings in due course.

Unsolicited approaches to shareholders

Directors’ Report: Governance
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We have arranged both telephone and on-line share dealing
services for UK resident Taylor Wimpey shareholders to buy or
sell up to £25,000 worth of Taylor Wimpey plc shares. The services
are operated by Capita Registrars. To use the services either visit
www.capitadeal.com or telephone +44 (0)871 664 0446 (calls cost
10p per minute plus network extras; lines open 8:00 am to 4:30
pm Mon-Fri). To deal, you will need to provide your surname,
postcode, date of birth and investor code (which can be found on
your share certiﬁcate or any form of proxy you have been sent).
Shareholders are not in any way obliged to use this service when
dealing in the Company’s shares.
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Duplicate share register accounts
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Principal Operating Addresses
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UK
Taylor Wimpey plc

Spain
Taylor Wimpey de España S.A.U.

Gate House
Turnpike Road
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP12 3NR

C/Aragon, 223-223A
07008 Palma de Mallorca
Mallorca
Spain

Tel: +44 (0)1494 558323
Fax: +44 (0)1494 885663
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E-mail: twplc@taylorwimpey.com
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk
Registered in England and Wales number 296805

Tel: +00 (34)971 706 570
Fax: +00 (34)971 706 565
Details of all our operating locations
are available on our Web site
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk

Taylor Wimpey UK Limited
Gate House
Turnpike Road
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP12 3NR
Tel: +44 (0)1494 558323
Fax: +44 (0)1494 885663
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Go on-line for more information
plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk
The Taylor Wimpey plc Web site
provides information for investors
and shareholders, including:
– Corporate News
– Company announcements
and presentations
– Share price data
– Current and historic Annual
and Corporate Responsibility Reports
– Shareholder information

about.taylorwimpey.co.uk
The About Taylor Wimpey Web site
provides information on:
– Who we are
– What we do
– Development case studies

Designed and produced by Black Sun Plc
www.blacksunplc.com
Printed by Royle Print Limited

plc.taylorwimpey.co.uk
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